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Highlights of the Year 2016
2016 FEARE4C

November
e The Group's intelligent

January August
e The Group’s intelligent e The waterproof, dust-proof

2

manufacturing industry park was
approved as Industrial Robots
“Four News” Economy Innovation
Base by Shanghai Municipal
Commission of Economy and
Informatization;

Shanghai Simcom, a subsidiary
of the Group, was accredited
as “Shanghai Copyright
Demonstration Unit”;

June

SIM IMS, as a demonstration
project, was widely recognized by
the market, and has successfully
become one of the top 10 mobile
manufactures (e.g. OPPO, BYD)
in PRC, and was one of the 63
intelligent manufacturing pilot
demonstration units selected
by the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology of the PRC
(“MIT™).

July

The luxury handset researched,
developed and manufactured by
the Group for 8848 was proudly
launched.

Started mass production of the
LTE wireless legal enforcement
recording device jointly developed
by the Group and Keda (a leading
brand in security, protection and
monitoring in PRC);

Shanghai Simcom was accredited
as “Shanghai Famous Software
Enterprise (Innovation)”;

and shock resistant handset
researched, developed and
manufactured by the Group for
Huawei was launched;

Shanghai Sunrise Simcom, a
subsidiary of the Group, was
accredited Top 100 manufacturing
enterprises in Shanghai;

September

The Group started the co-operation
project with leading domestic
walkie-talkie brands, and entered
the high-endprofessional walkie-
talkie device market;

The intelligent turnkey production
line of the Group’s intelligent
manufacturing factory was
demonstrated at the NEPCON
South China 2016;

October

SIM Technology Group Limited Annﬁa/ Report 2016

Mass shipment of the Group’s
SIM800L modules for Mobike’s
bike-sharing program, and has
set off an upsurge of bike-sharing
with our client; subsequently, mass
shipment of our SIM800C and
SIM868 modules for Ubike’'s and
OFQ'’s shared-bike;

The camera handset researched,
developed and manufactured by
the Group for Kodak launched;

manufacturing factory was
introduced at the 18th China
International Industry Fair as
the demonstration enterprise for
intelligent manufacturing of MIIT;

“Exchange Session with Information
Technology Industry on Intelligent
Manufacturing” hosted by MIIT
and co-organized by the Group’s
intelligent manufacturing factory
was convened successfully at
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom.




1A

s SESREREEXAR LEME
ERAES - THEESA [
ROBEIFT R

o SEETFARLEFRBBEHKT
75 [ gk REENL ] -

6 A4

o RAEENREERFITHIS
BEZBE - BUEAT OPPO -
BYD % BN Al + A FHMRE - B
BERITEIH016F2H63RE
REBLER B RE B — -

77
o EEASUSTTWENEHTH
B4R b

o SHEBALPEEAHELMS
ERHES (ERE M LTERRBUARC
BARmEE

s LEFBRBWNS  LEMHE
BB (RIFARL) |

AR P

I 201410474

IES: & TLTER SR =HWETHEARRIFTT00
SRERE EWUS SR TR

8A
s SEAERMENENEX=N
FH L

. SEMETFATLERRESR
SO E OGRS R TRES

9A

o SEMEIABER AT AL e
REBAERE  EARHKERY
B ARIR R,

o SEBRIETHAERILEBR
Rl AEE =T EE R R
BFEERBEMEFIER

104

o HMESIMBOOLEMREEFHZE
BHEAE LAKMEHE  RAEFP
ME—BHFEER: 21k
SIM800C K SIMB68 112 53 Bl £ (&
FAMOFOAZESE T EBAME
HE

o S RKodaki & BLER TN FH#
£

HeAR20155R ML kel 7 BoAR RS IE S H

Highlights of the Year 2016
2016 FEAEL

11A4

SEERAETIRIESBRIE
MR RERERBEEREE TN
BB TR EES

BIEMEN SEEEET
BHHEOEFERTREE RS
BERBRIRSELBREATE
BREIN AR °

HWERA ZO—HEE

. X
iE B
FEEEREA (L) HRAR wws.

2016 S FFHIAE S A4l
(Bl8FE)

B EEH

LR AR MR TR RS #} . .
AR
Y ‘S

R AT A A A

201615550 b4~ 10038

(E8548)

I gl 4
2016.L 55 BB A k£ Mk 5058

e FHEERHAR (L) ARAF
st

FIER: R4

nn
- AR
P
[empran———

RANBREERRAE —F—NFFH 3



4

T~

R " Chairman's Statement
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of SIM
Technology Group Limited (“Company”), | am presenting the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 (“Year”).

For the Year, the Group achieved a profit attributable to owners of

the Company of HK$77.3 million (2015: HK$64.6 million). The basic
earnings per share was HK3.02 cents (2015: HK2.53 cents).

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016

BERE -

AAERRERARREEERAF ([ARF])
Ex(85)e((EFEDREARA NN
BAR (BB AEEDBHE—T— R F+_A
=T -RAEFE(AFE]) 22FRERSE -

REE » REBBBARBEA AEIEEF A
77,300,000 7t (ZZ — A : 64,600,000
L) e AEEEREARAEFA302BWL(ZE
—FEF 2.53%Al) -



e
IHEENRE

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board proposed to recommend a final dividend of HK1 cent per
ordinary share to shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) for the
Year. Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, the proposed final dividend will be paid on or
about Thursday, 29 June 2017 to Shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Friday, 16 June 2017. Based
on 2,557,896,300 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at the date
of this report, the total dividend will amount to approximately HK$25.6

million.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In these few years, the Group has continued to implement its strategies
of business models’ transformation, “shifting from the manufacturing
industry to the information technology services industry, and from a
product-oriented manufacturer to a service-oriented service provider”. To
align with the Group’s business positioning and development directions
after the transformation, all business segments of the Group are
transforming and upgrading their business models. The ODM terminal
business, for example, has changed its business model from serving
mid-to-low-end consumer handset market to industrial application and
Internet of Things (“I0T”) terminal markets that focus on high-end
differentiated market. Wireless communication modules also developed
very quickly. The Group has accelerated its development of new service-
oriented businesses while intelligent manufacturing business entered a
growth path. Automatic vending machine IOT business also adjusted its
development path to provide a one-stop asset-light service platform to
automatic vending machine vendors. Overall, since the handset business
shrunk its scale on mid-to-low-end consumer ODM handset which has
high risks yet low gross profit margin, the Group’s overall revenue for the
Year has dropped 14.8% when comparing to 2015. However, due to the
enormous growth of other businesses, the Group’s net profit surged by
19.5% while average gross profit margin recorded an increase of 1.4%.
The business transformation has resulted in a healthier business for the

Group in general.

Looking back at 2016, the overall development and business
re-positioning strategies implemented for the Group’s successful
business transformation started to bear fruit. For handset and intelligent
terminal business, since the Group has gradually switched to serve
differentiated consumer handsets and industrial application terminal
customers, the Group no longer developed mid-to-low-end consumer
handsets that are homogeneous, single model, in bulk shipments, and
generates narrow gross profit margins. As such, overall sales volume and
sales amount of this business declined year-on-year. Nevertheless, as the
industrial application terminals have higher average selling price (“ASP”)
and a more reasonable gross profit, the overall gross profit margin of this

business segment increased slightly for the Year.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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With the increasing demand for wireless communication modules in both
domestic and overseas markets, overall shipment grew by more than
27% when compared with last year, in which sales volume of 3G and 4G
products had greater growth. Hence, both the revenue and gross profit
of this business increased during the Year. Despite the decline in ASP of
2G and other low-end modules, with sales volume of 3G and 4G modules
attaining notable growth, the gross profit margin of this business remained

at the same level as last year.

In 2016, the Group adjusted its development path for the automatic
vending machines 10T business, and strived to transform to provide one-
stop-service asset-light service platform for mid-to-small-sized vending
machine operators and beverages manufacturers. The platform provides
services including backstage software system service, vending machine
storage upgrading and transformation service, online value-added
service, offline beverages wholesale distribution services, and financial

leasing services.

Since 2015, the Group has pushed ahead with developing its intelligent
manufacturing business. It began with developing automated robotic
testing equipment and, by 2016, it has ventured at full thrust into
the intelligent manufacturing field and expanded its research and
development (“R&D”) teaMs for robotics application and integration. As
the Group quickly captures market share in the handset manufacturing
market, it also expanded its business into other 3C electronic industries
and other manufacturing industry. Meanwhile, the Group also developed
industrial 10T technology with a focus on optical, artificial intelligence
technology and backstage software system. During the year under review,

the revenue and gross profit margin of this business grew significantly.
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Handsets and intelligent terminals business

Low-end brand and low-price handset models are still the main choice of
domestic operators for target markets where major high-ranking handset
brands basically sell their products through public channels and on
e-commerce platforms, and part of them also sell through the channels
of handset operators. As the PRC smartphone market approaches
saturation, there is an increasing trend of concentration of brands and
models, but certain brands and models have stood out and began to
target niche markets by introducing differentiated handset models. These
models, though of small shipment, have higher gross profit margin and
can enhance customer loyalty. The Group’s handset ODM business still
mainly focuses on mid-to-high-end differentiated consumer handset
products, mostly products of 4G models. At the same time, the Group is
closely monitoring the trend of various specialised 10T technology such
as the increasingly popular NB-IOT, and is prepared to enter the market
when suitable opportunities arise. In the short term, the Group’s terminal
business will still be mainly supported by the PRC market. However, as
overseas customers and products continue to increase, the domestic and
overseas markets are expected to eventually carry equal weight in the

business.

As the scope of application of 10T technology widens, the industrial
terminal market continues on the growth path. Especially product areas
such as scan terminal, mobile POS device and logistics terminal are
starting to see the emergence of immense market opportunities. Also,
intercom network terminal dedicated to enterprises, outdoor waterproof,
dust-proof and shock resistant terminal and vehicle terminal arenas also
have huge room for development. Recently, AR terminals for industrial
enterprises are also catching attention because of their strong potential.
The Group has products shipped and also projects underway in those

categories.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Europe, the United States (“US”), Japan and the Middle East continue
to be the Group’s major overseas markets. The Group also has its eye on
mid-to-high-end product opportunities in Southeast Asia and India. We
believe overseas markets are important markets for the Group’s terminal
segment, hence it has to step up investment to boost its development.
Overseas customers typically have more stringent requirements on
technological capability, quality control and ability to ensure long-term
supply. This is the Group’s core competitive strengths. The Group is,
according to plan, customising its industrial terminal and consumer
products for Japanese operators and overseas customers in the US and
Europe. Delivery of most of the newly developed products is expected to
start in the third quarter of 2017, therefore will contribute to the Group’s
business results in the second half of 2017 and year 2018.

Wireless communication modules business

In 2016, the overall market demand for 10T capacity continued to rise.
Overall shipments increased by more than 27% when compared with last
year, with sales volume of 3G and 4G products boasting higher growth.
By proportion, intelligent POS, intelligent meter and healthcare modules
accounted for larger shipment volume. Also, 4G module products have
higher selling prices, resulting in a notable growth in overall sales volume
of this business segment. In the PRC market, the Group had at first
instance launched a full range of products to meet customers’ needs. For
2G products, those new emerging industries that have smaller demand
for industry data still have room for growth in demand. For example, the
growth in bike sharing and healthcare industries are expanding rapidly. In
overseas markets, as many regions have been affected by slow economic
growth and lack of government support, some user-end projects in which
early stage investment were made only managed relatively slow progress
and many of them are still in the market grooming stage. However, in
some high-end markets such as regions including the US and Japan,
most of the Group’s 4G products had obtained international accreditation
and operator certifications, which laid a solid foundation for the Group
to bring its products to customers. The Group’s shipment volume to
overseas markets, especially Europe, still showed more significant growth
against last year, owed mainly to the contribution from the 2G and 3G

security and vehicle markets.
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Wireless communication modules business is the Group’s quality
asset with an outstanding R&D team and marketing team that has a
comprehensive range of products being well-received by customers
and supported by quality domestic and overseas agents and customers,
which explains the business segment’s world-leading shipment volume.
To aid its transformation, the Group has been looking for strategic
partners in recent years with strengths that can complement its own in the
hope of giving new impetus to the modules business in order to maintain

its world-leading position.

10T business

In 2016, cloud-based automatic vending machine switched its
development path from the originally asset-heavy operation mode of
directly managing operations and recruiting businesses for the financing
of leasing investments, to asset-light Online-to-Offline service platform.
Halfway into 2016, the Group’s cloud-based business changed its focus
and transformed into an integrated service platform for automatic vending
machine operators and beverages manufacturers. Other than having its
backstage systeMs to provide operators with data services, the Group
uses its strength in IT to provide upgrading services for operators with old
and outdated machines, so that they can upgrade the machines which
could only receive coins and notes to those that can enjoy integrated
online payment or even larger advertisement monitors, at low costs. This
significantly increased the sales volume of these beverages machines. In
addition, the service platform provides operators with integrated value-
added marketing service (including points redemption, voucher, effective
marketing of fast consumer goods, and advertisements). Also, the
platform provides beverages wholesale distribution services and financial
leasing services, which enables the Group to become an integrated
service platform designed for vending machine operators and beverages
manufacturers. At the same time, cloud-based business reduced the
scale of directly managed vending machines operation and left only a
small amount for testing of service platform. This asset-light operation
mode can unleash the Group’s IT technical strengths and business

operations will also be healthier.
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Intelligent manufacturing business

In the past year, the Group continued to invest in developing its
intelligent manufacturing business, aiming at manufacturing industry’s
three weaknesses. The Group developed three main divisions with the

foundation of its three core technologies.

The first division: the use of robotic integrated applications in automated
equipment to replace operations in the production line that requires large

amount of operation procedures.

This division started four years ago when the Group decided to enter the
intelligent manufacturing business. In the past year, the Group made full
use of its technological advantage in manufacturing robots for automatic
testing of circuit boards in handsets, and quickly began to gain market
share in the handset manufacturing industry. During the Year, various
domestic handset manufacturers in the PRC began mass procurement;
therefore the Group’s products during the Year recorded significant
growth in sales. However, the market competition of robotic integrated
applications industry has sped up faster than we expected. Chinese
companies that have strong mechanical and electrical equipment for
manufacturing also joined the industry during the past two years. As such,
the Group strives to, at the same time, improve its products’ performance
and efficiency, and also reduce the material costs so as to maintain the
core competitiveness and leading market position for survival in the cruel

price-competitive market.

In addition, other than deeply drilling into the handset industry by
continuously launching more automatic equipment to fulfil the vision of
fully automated and intellectualisation of handset manufacturing, the
Group will continue to explore other new industries apart from handset
and handset parts such as 3C electronics, vehicles parts manufacturing,

as well as low voltage electrical appliances industries.

The second division: the use of robotic vision and artificial intelligent
technologies in optical system products to replace large number of visual

inspections tasks done by workers.
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First of all, the Group made full use of its experiences in manufacturing
handset parts and its strengths in its visual software and technology in
artificial intelligence, and decided to enter the market within the visual
industry that has the largest potential but also with most obstacles —
detection of bad handset glass cover, as its main goal. After one year
of continuous experiments, the Group’s Automatic Optical Inspection
(AOI) detection and warning system have received recognition from the
two largest manufacturers in the PRC, which is expected to bring in

substantial revenue to the Group in 2017.

The third division: develop an industrial integrated internet intellectual
system with a focus on backstage software to replace or assist white-
collar workers in enterprises such as planners and warehouse managers

in simple and straightforward computer operation.

This division is mostly targeted at meeting the requirement from “Made
in China 2025” to build on the automatic systeMs of factories, coupled
with the digitalised, networked and ultimately high degree of intelligence.
This is consistent with the Industry description 4.0 from Germany and
Industrial Internet from the US. The Group will continue to develop a more
comprehensive Manufacturing Execution System (MES) and Warehouse
Management System (WMS). And the first step is to build a model
intelligent factory in its own handset manufacturing factories, including an
intelligent three-dimensional warehouse, which will start demonstration

and promotion to its customers in 2017.

During the Year, since the Group has demonstrated a successful
transformation of its business to intelligent manufacturing, it has
been awarded the “2016 Integrated Standardisation and New Model
Application for Intelligent Manufacturing” from the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the PRC, which is the highest honour to
date awarded in the country for intelligent manufacturing enterprises and

amongst 63 other enterprises in the industry.
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Properties development

As at 31 December 2016, “The Riverside Country” (28 o E#/KEL)
in Shenyang City, the PRC, had sold 1,338 residential units of the total of
1,842 in all its four phases.

As at 31 December 2016, Phase | of “Seven River in Sweet” (8%
&) in Taizhou City, the PRC, had sold 251 residential units of the total
of 310. Construction of Phase Il had commenced and is expected to be

completed in the second half of 2017.

The sales of properties recognised for 2016 amounted to HK$192.4
million (2015: HK$161.9 million), with gross profit margin at 12.1%
(2015: 15.8%).

PROSPECTS

In the future, the Group will continue to implement its development
strategies, “shifting from the manufacturing industry to the information
technology services industry, and transform itself from a product-oriented

manufacturer to a service-oriented service provider”.

For ODM handset business, global demand for differentiated handsets
and the industrial IOT market will continue to grow, which will bring
abundant opportunities to our terminal ODM business. The management
expects the handset business to derive most of its profits from differential
handsets and industrial application terminals in 2017. The Group will
continue to strengthen its development in overseas market with the future
development strategy of having equal emphasis on both the domestic and

overseas markets for its handset business.
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Regarding wireless communication module business, after years of
effort, the Group is one of the leading manufacturers in the industry now.
However, in order to bring in new impetus into the module business
for maintaining a global leading position, the Group has introduced a
strategic partner (for details, please refer to the announcement dated 22
January 2017). After the transaction is completed, the business nature
of the wireless communication module business will switch from product
oriented manufacturer (having its own brand with independent R&D
and marketing team) to service oriented EMs provider (only responsible
for procurement, logistics to manufacturing). Therefore, the Group’s
last product oriented business would be completely changed to service

oriented.

For automatic vending machine business, the Group will promote a
variety of quality services of the integrated service platform to vending
machine operators in 2017, especially through the transformation of
a large number of old and outdated vending machines in the existing
market, in order to rapidly expand the number of operators and vending
machines on the platform. The Group will continue to strengthen the
development of its value-added business for intelligent automatic vending
machine. Through the cooperation on cloud-based business with
UnionPay, we are able to achieve a win-win situation where UnionPay
uses the Group’s vending machine network to promote its new businesses
through this high-frequency yet small amount transaction channel while
the Group can benefit from UnionPay’s marketing and channel support.
Moreover, the Group will continue to expand the application of cloud
computing big data service platform to support development of its own
smart home and elderly care service systems, health monitoring systeMs

and vehicle security systems.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Intelligent manufacturing is the latest business pursuit of the Group.
It boasts huge development potential and after several years of hard
work, it has seen preliminary results. The Group intends to increase
investment and expand the business scope into more industrial markets.
Furthermore, it will continue to develop three technologies which are
robotic integrated applications, optical system and artificial intelligence,
and industrial internet to replace most of the blue-collar workers who are
responsible for non-technical manufacturing procedures, and also part
of the low skilled white-collar workers in order to assist them to move
to positions that require higher technical knowledge. The development
will help reduce production cost, improve labour environment, and
more importantly avoid the occurrence of human error, and thereby

significantly improving the overall quality of enterprises.

The management believes the development in the past year has proved
that the new development directions and strategies of the Group are
correct. The completion of business transformation achieved initial
results that laid the foundation for the sustainable development.
The management expects that new businesses will hurl the Group’s

development to new heights again in the next few years.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my cordial appreciation to
all members of the management and the employees for their efforts and
dedication throughout the Year. Finally, | would like to thank the financial
institutions, Shareholders and investors for their continuous support and

confidence in us.

Yeung Man Ying

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue from sale of
handsets, solutions and intelligent terminals, wireless communication
modules, internet of things business and intelligent manufacturing
business (“Core Business”) decreased by 16.6% to HK$2,531.9 million
(2015: HK$3,035.4 million). The revenue from the sale of residential
units in PRC amounted to HK$192.4 million (2015: HK$161.9 million).
The total revenue of the Group for the Year, included revenue of Core
Business and properties development, amounted to HK$2,724.4 million
(2015: HK$3,197.3 million).

The gross profit for Core Business of the Group for the Year decreased by
5.4% year-on-year to HK$378.6 million (2015: HK$400.2 million). The
gross profit margin for Core Business increased to 15.0% (2015: 13.2%).
The overall gross profit margin of the Group for the Year was 14.7%
(2015: 13.3%).

The Group achieved a profit attributable to owners of the Company which
increased year-on-year by 19.5% to HK$77.3 million (2015: HK$64.6
million) for the Year. The basic earnings per share for the Year was
HK3.02 cents (2015: HK2.53 cents).

B EE
HE-_Z—RFE+_A=1+—RHILFEF #
EFH - BAFRRERKN - EBRBHAE
¥R - VA TS R R RUE S ([ D 27 D)
2 U AR 4 16.6% £ 2,531,900,00058 7T ( —
T — R4 :3,035,400,000 ) - KA HEE
A7 AR B 2 (B B A 2 A & 192,400,000 74
JTE(ZZ—FF : 161,900,000/87T) - AEM
RAFEZ BB (RIEROEBRDEEE
R A ) A 2,724,400,0008 T (ZE—FF :
3,197,300,000587T) °

REBRAFEZZLEBNEFNIZER
15 .4% % 378,600,000 7t ( — & — A F
400,200,000/87T) ° /O EBHEFEIGNE
15.0% (ZZF—HF : 13.2%) o AEBRAF
EEREEFNERILTH(ZE—RF 1 133%) °

RAFE - NEBERSEANQ R A AT
R NN19.5% %= 77,300,000/8 T (ZE—F
F 1 64,600,000787L) « NFEF/RELREF
B3.028I (=T —RF 1 2.53781) -
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Research and development expenses

In 2016, the Group mainly focused on the development of intelligent
manufacturing businesses. The number of design and development team
members was 1,000 (2015: 790) in 2016. Total R&D expenditure of
the Group, including R&D expenses and development costs capitalised
as intangible assets, which amounted to HK$296.1 million (2015:
HK$319.7 million), represented 10.9% (2015: 10.0%) of the Group’s

revenue.

Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution costs of the Group for the Year increased by
5.9% to HK$135.9 million (2015: HK$128.3 million). The ratio of the
selling and distribution costs over revenue in 2016 was 5.0% (2015:
4.0%).

Administrative expenses
The Group’s administrative expenses for 2016 increased by 21.7% to
HK$125.2 million (2015: HK$102.9 million), representing 4.6% (2015:

3.2%) of the revenue.

_ . q
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HER D HRA
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2R EREHBRAN

Segment results of Core Business

CAVE S 3ok

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE-E—A"E+-A=t-ALEE HE-T-HF+-A=1—HLEE

Year ended 31 December 2015

Gross Gross
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue profit margin Revenue profit margin
10N e EFIE A E7 EA=
HK$'M HK$'M % HK$'M HK$'M %
BEERT HEAR % BEBT BEST %
Handsets, solutions and Fi - BAFRER
intelligent terminals S S 1,271.1 158.2 124 2,043.2 235.8 115
Wireless communication
modules AR R 815.0 118.4 14.5 638.9 94.7 14.8
Internet of things business IR 302.3 45.9 15.2 273.0 422 155
Intelligent manufacturing
business BReRUERTS 143.5 56.1 39.1 80.3 27.5 34.2
Total s 2,531.9 378.6 15.0 3,035.4 400.2 13.2

=
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Handsets, solutions and intelligent terminals

During the Year, since more customers have shifted towards using
differentiated consumer handsets, the Group no longer developed
consumer handsets that are homogeneous and single model with bulk
shipment, which generates narrow gross profit margins. As a result, the
revenue of this segment decreased significantly year-on-year by 37.8% to
HK$1,271.1 million (2015: HK$2,043.2 million) in 2016. Nevertheless,
as the application terminals have higher average selling price and
profit margin, the overall gross profit margin of this business segment
increased slightly to 12.4% (2015: 11.5%) for the Year. The revenue of
ODM business contributed to approximately 73% of the revenue of this
segment in 2016 (2015: 65%).

Wireless communication modules

During the Year, the Group has recorded growth in revenue and gross
profit of wireless communication modules. The growth was attributable
to the increasing demand for wireless communication modules in both
domestic and overseas markets, especially the sales volume of 3G and 4G
products had greater growth. The gross profit margin of this segment for
the Year maintained similar at 14.5% (2015: 14.8%).

.// //‘
Management’s Discussion and Analysis/
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Internet of things business

During the Year, the revenue of this segment increased 10.8% to
HK$302.3 million (2015: HK$273.0 million). That was mainly due to the
increase in number of customers brought in from the Group’s beverage
trading business. The gross profit margin for the Year maintained similar
at 15.2% (2015: 15.5%).

Intelligent manufacturing business

Since 2015, the Group has pushed ahead with developing its
intelligent manufacturing business, and, by 2016, enabled it to
quickly capture market share in the handset manufacturing market.
With the volume of procurement of materials bumped up, production
efficiency improved and equipment failure rate lowered, the Group’s
procurement, production, trial costs as well as maintenance costs for
customers’ equipment had decreased accordingly. As a result, the
revenue for the Year of this segment increased substantially by 78.6% to
HK$143.5 million (2015: HK$ 80.3 million), while gross profit increased
substantially by 104%. The gross profit margin also increased to 39.1%
(2015: 34.2%).

B 48 2E 7%
RAFEE o B8 AL IN08%sE
302,300,000 7. ( == — R 4 : 273,000,000
B TERANEEMNRAE FEBER
NEFPHEEN - RFEEEMNELEFELL2%
(ZF—FRF 1 155%) °

T—RFRMR ANERSERR
5 BT NFRELRRL Eﬂ%*”
THE™MS - BERBHEMEKR - EEREKR
BERBHRERBETR  FORORE
&$ EEARAKAMEL R EHEER RS
TEF TR - B - NEFEEZD BRAKIEE
HN78.6% % 143,500,000 ;T ( =T — A 4F :
80,300,000 7T) » MEMAIEIEIN104% 2 E
FIRABIEINZE39.1% (—ZFE—HF : 342%) °
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Liquidity

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bank balances and cash of
HK$249.1 million (31 December 2015: HK$298.4 million), among
which 72.7% was held in Renminbi, 27.1% was held in US dollars and
the remaining balance was held in Hong Kong dollars. The Group also
had pledged bank deposits of HK$76.6 million (31 December 2015:
HK$102.9 million) in Renminbi for the purpose of the Group’s Renminbi
borrowings. The Group intends to finance its working capital and capital
expenditure plans from such bank balances. The Group has pledged
certain of its assets (including investment properties, property, plant
and equipment, land use rights and notes receivables) to secure the
bank borrowings. The total bank borrowings of the Group amounted to
HK$300.0 million (31 December 2015: HK$333.5 million), all of which
was denominated in Renminbi. All of the bank borrowings were at floating

interest rates and repayable within one year.

Operating Efficiency
The turnover period of the inventory, trade and notes receivables, trade
and notes payables of the Group for the Core Business are presented

below:

Management’s Discussion and Analysis/
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R-ZZE—A"F+-A=1+—8" ZK%@E%EG
#EER IS A8249,100,0008 T ( =T — R 4F
+:H:+fa:wwmmm%n%ﬁ¢
727% ANREREE 27 1% AETHE - &
BRAVETTRE - AEETREARBEEIER
AR EHER IR 1T 3 A 76,600,000 7
L(ZZE—RF+=F=+—8 : 102,900,000
BIT) o REEBAZFRITERBNREER
MEBEES RERFATEMENES - 1%
ECERETEE (REREVE UK
BEREE . T REREREER)  (ERE
RRITEEZER - NEEBZRRITEER
300,000,000 T (—E—HFE+-HF=+—
H : 333,500,000#7T) * 2FAAREEHE -

ZEEZEOF B RGT B RN —FNEE
%Ei&
AEETEXRBZFE BURESERARE

= J?%HE%EEM NEEREEH25T

2016 2015

ZB-RF —E—1F

Days Days

X PN

Inventory turnover period FEAS 119 71

Trade and notes receivables turnover period JEUNE SRR N iR A H 40 33

Trade and notes payables turnover period JE B SRR iR EEH 88 64
In the fourth quarter of 2016, the purchase volume of the Group was large BRRE_E—t+EFE—=MEETTE RN -

as to fulfill the sales orders of first quarter of 2017. The inventory turnover

period thus increased significantly as compared to that of year 2015.

As the trade receivables for intelligent manufacturing business, which
have longer credit period than other Core Business, increased for the
Year as compared to year 2015, so the overall trade and notes receivables

turnover period increased for the Year as compared to that of year 2015.
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The trade and notes payables turnover period increased for the Year as
compared to that of year 2015 because the average balance of trade and

notes payables increased for the Year.

As at 31 December 2016, the current ratio, calculated as current assets

over current liabilities, was 1.9 times (31 December 2015: 1.8 times).

The Group reckons that inventory turnover period, trade and notes
receivables turnover period, and trade and notes payables turnover
period help the Group to understand its ability to convert inventory
into cash and sales and cash conversion cycle. Through reviewing the
turnover periods, the Group can improve its operational efficiency. The
current ratio can help the Group to understand its ability to pay short-term

and long-term obligations.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent approach in its treasury policy. The Group’s
surplus funds are held under fixed and savings deposits in reputable
banks to earn interest income. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
has entrusted a total amount of HK$112.7 million under certain asset
management agreements for investment periods from six months to two
years. During the Year, the Group did not have any other security or

capital investments or derivative investments.

Certain sales and purchases of inventories of the Group are denominated
in US dollars. Furthermore, certain trade receivables, trade payables,
bank balances and bank borrowings are denominated in US dollars,
therefore exposing the Group to the currency risk of US dollars. During
the Year, the Group entered into a foreign exchange forward contracts of
US$20 million to reduce the foreign exchange exposures in US dollars.
Save as disclosed, the Group did not use any financial instrument for

hedging purpose.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 December 2016, the Company had 2,557,896,300 ordinary

shares of HK$0.10 each in issue.

No shares of the Company has been issued or repurchased during the

Year.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS BERERFE

2016 2015

—B—ARE —T—hHF

HK$’ million HK$’ million

BHEBT BEAT

Net cash from operating activities REKEEE IR FE 211.0 161.6

Capital expenditure BEARY (59.0) (25.4)

Development costs B A (194.5) (172.0)

Net (decrease)/increase in bank borrowings IRITIEE O D) HEINFRE (18.1) 25.3

Net decrease in entrusted loan receivables ENE B R A FEE 3.5 45.4

Proceeds from disposal of equipment HERBATS A 5.3 2.9

Deposits received for disposal of an associate Bt & —KE L A RIWEZ 7] & 1.2 8.6

Bank interest paid XATERITHLE (10.1) (14.4)

Repayment to non-controlling shareholders

of subsidiaries EENBATIEERRR (9.4) =

Others HAth (5.4) (4.9)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash ReRFSFEIER
equivalents (including pledged bank CRi), /s hnFs8

deposits) (BB EIRRITER) (75.5) 27.1

GEARING RATIO BELER

As at 31 December 2016, the total assets of the Group was HK$3,479.8 N-E—RE+-_A=+—10 ~&EBZE
million (31 December 2015: HK$3,396.1 million) and the bank 4818 /53,479,800,000 T (—E—FHFE+—A

borrowings was HK$300.0 million (31 December 2015: HK$333.5 =+—H :3,39,100,000#%7) * IRITEER
million). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total bank 300,000,000t (ZFE—RAF+ZA=+—
borrowings over total assets, was 8.6% (31 December 2015: 9.8%). H : 333,500,000 7T) c AEBE Y B ELLE

(BRBITIEERERINEERENE) B586%
(ZZE—RFE+-A=+—"H:98%) °

The Group reviews its gearing ratio on a regular basis. According to FRTHEEEARNEBELLR  (KIBERAKELR
the capital plan for the future, the Group tries to maximise revenue ZERK NIRELORLEESEZE2 ZEEEE
for shareholders with capital risk awareness in mind. Capital structure - W B IR IR B L AR R AN A o
is being constantly adjusted according to changes in the operational

environment.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2016, the available-for-sale investment represented
the Group’s investment in 3.41% of the shares in Shanghai Guao
Electronic Technology Co.,Ltd (“Shanghai Guao”) (“Investment”) and
the Investment cost was approximately HK$16.9 million. During the
Year, Shanghai Guao became listed on the ChiNext of the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. The fair value, based on the quoted market price,
of the Investment at 31 December 2016 is approximately HK$187.4
million. No dividends was received from Shanghai Guao during the
Year. Shanghai Guao specializes in the research and development,
manufacturing, marketing and service of innovative financial equipment.
The Group noted the development strategy of Shanghai Guao as stated
in its prospectus which was signed on 22 August 2016, that Shanghai
Guao will always adhere to the concept of “quality is the core of survival,
innovation is the origin of development”, through recruiting high quality
talent, increasing R&D investment, insisting on independent R&D, paying
attention to product quality, improving the level of after-sales service to
provide financial institutions, including banks, with financial equipment
products of excellent quality, leading technology, with timely after-sale
service, and will strive to become a leading company in the financial

equipment industry of the PRC.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the Year, the Group did not have any material acquisition or

disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies.

EMPLOYEES
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately 2,390 (2015:

2,600) employees. The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme for all of its employees in Hong Kong, and
provides its PRC employees with welfare schemes as required by the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC. The Group also offers
discretionary bonuses and may grant share options under the share
option scheme of the Company to its employees by reference to individual
performance and the performance of the Group. Total staff costs incurred
by the Group amounted to HK$387.5 million (2015: HK$366.8 million)
during the Year.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
human resources department. The Group seeks to provide remuneration
packages on the basis of the merit, qualifications and competence of the

employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Board,
having regard to factors including the Group’s operating results,
responsibilities of the Directors and senior management and comparable

market statistics.

The Company adopted a pre-listing share option scheme to recognise and
reward the contribution of certain Directors and employees of the Group
to the growth and development of the Group. The Group also adopted
a post-listing share option scheme which has expired on 29 May 2015.
During the Year, the Company has adopted a new share option scheme,
the primary purpose of which is to motivate the eligible persons referred
to in the scheme, which include executive Directors and employees of the
Group, to optimise their future contributions to the Group and to reward
them for their efforts. Details of the share option schemes of the Company

are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
As stated in the circular of the Company dated 28 February 2017, the

Group intends to use part of the net proceeds from the Disposal (as

defined below) in the following manner:

- as to approximately HK$112.7 million for upgrading the
production facilities of the factory for manufacturing handsets and
redeveloping the production lines for the Group and establishing
an MES (manufacturing execution system) and intelligent logistics

AGV (automatic guided vehicle) system; and
- as to approximately HK$67.6 million for setting up a model
intelligent warehouse for intelligent robotic manufacturing

business.

Save as disclosed, the Group did not have any plans for material

investment or capital assets during the Year.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any material contingent

liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 20 January 2017, SIM Technology Group (BVI) Limited (a wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company) and u-blox AG, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of u-blox Holding AG (a company listed on the SIX Swiss
Exchange), entered into the technology assignment contract and the
asset purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell the
Group’s 2G, 3G, 4G wireless communication module and GNSS module
business related technology and assets at the aggregate consideration
of US$52.5 million (“Disposal”). The Disposal was approved by the
Shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company held on
23 March 2017. As at the date of this report, the Disposal has not yet

completed.
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LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

We will continue to strive to create long-term values for our customers,

shareholders and employees.

TARGETED AT MARKET LEADERS

Our target is to make the Company the leader in global wireless
communication terminal product solutions and services. All employees of

the Group are fully confident in, and are striving for, achieving the target.

CUSTOMER-ORIENTED WITH CONTINUOUS
INNOVATION

We are customer-oriented. We attend to, in a timely manner, and
continue to satisfy customer needs, through continuous innovation in

technology and management.

BUSINESS FIDELITY AND SUSTAINABLE
OPERATION

Fidelity is the Company’s operating principle and standard, thereby we
have won confidence from our investors, customers, suppliers, as well as

employees.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016

RASENER
HFMBBLEE THETHILRAEN - AR

fgEr, - KRR B TAlERENEE -

SRR L EE

B ERE « BUTHRK A BRI A
KO E mARA T BRI RARDE - £F
2B THRRBEEERENESNMTEENE
D REBRE—BIEMEN -

BEEF - TR

BfIeREEF,P SRR - RAISAEIER
RFER BB TE ORI MEIRAR - &
BEmEEPHHER -

IS - KEBEEE

BAVABIELR - UBEREELEER - I
HImGHMANKESE TP  HEBMNET
MEME -



4

MAKING THE WORLD BETTER BECAUSE OF US

With “making the world better because of us” as our corporate vision, the
Group aiMs to provide the world with a light of betterment through our
continuous efforts.

Support from the community is vital to corporate development, thus giving
back is undeniably our corporate responsibility. We are aware of our
limited ability, but as long as we do our best in every detail and take up
our responsibility, the world will be better because of us.

SUNRISE PEOPLE CHARITY FUND

An organisation established and funded by the employees of the Group
for charity purpose. Sunrise People (the employees of the Group) should
not only be satisfied with material wealth but should also enrich ourselves
spiritually. The Group wishes that more Sunrise People can share our
charitable culture and carry it out so as to create a better and more
harmonious future together.

FOCUSED ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group initiated campaigns such as the “Green in Action” and started
from every detail to contribute to environmental protection.
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Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong"), aged 72, is the chairman  BXEZ ([T AK]) » 725% * AR R EEFATT
of the Company and an executive Director and a director of BBENEHETTEERAGIZEE - TAKEE
Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited. Mrs Wong is responsible  ZNEE 7 2R 5 AMER - TAARHERETER
for developing direction and strategies of the Group. Mrs Wong ~ %e4 ([ E&k4 ) » $11T7EE - BARRIZEILE -
together with her spouse, Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”"), ZER  EARAREEEKLEZRAGF  {HEET
an executive Director, was the founder of the Company. FBAES  2ELEREFSEBETFRIFEERA
Over the years, Mrs Wong and Mr Wong had established a  &([ H/EREFBE])  ZARR—ANL=F+—
number of companies which engaged in the electronics and AL - BAREEEZEEERBARIZ— « TAK
telecommunications business including Shanghai Sunrise RETFREEERBO20FLEERERELR - T
Simcom Ltd. (“Shanghai Sunrise Simcom”), one of the ~ AKAR—Nt+tFEAEHEFEIASEFIRE
Group’s main operating subsidiary which was established in % - B 2T =4F# - KARBEALE Y BEHE -
November 1993. Mrs Wong has over 20 years of operational TARKR—AANFEEEREEMEMAKRE » £
and management experience in the electronics and EETIRHE-

telecommunications industry. Mrs Wong lectured at the Electrical

Department of the South China University of Technology in 1977.

Mrs Wong has been a guest professor at Tongji University since

2003. Mrs Wong graduated in 1968 from the Beijing University

of Aeronautics and Astronautics (currently known as Beihang

University), specialising in electrical engineering.

Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”), aged 72, is an executive =~ EHRBEE(FLLE]) 728 BITEERAE
Director and the president of the Group. Mr Wong is responsible o TRAEBELHNTAEERRAM -« K
for participating in formulation of the direction, strategies and — BSIf & EFEHIRRES - TAEARARE (L
be responsible for the development plan of the new business ) ARAF ([ HEEARK D IE - DSREF
of the Group. Mr Wong is the chairperson of Shanghai SIM WBEEEAREEASERARTEBERMBED
Technology Limited (“Shanghai SIM Technology”), a director ZEE o THhAJNA Info Dynasty Group Limited &
of Shanghai Sunrise Simcom and SIM Technology HK Limited Intellipower Investments Limited 2 &% © &5
(“SIM Technology (HK)”). Mr Wong is also the director of Info ~ ARATEEMRE - ThEERHRBEAKA - #1178
Dynasty Group Limited and Intellipower Investments Limited, = » AZRRQAZ A E o THRAER—NANN\FEE
both of which are the substantial shareholders of the Company. RAEEMEMAKRE  TEERTERE - TALE
Mr Wong together with his spouse, Mrs Wong, an executive ~ AE EFREFLEFLSLEEH o

Director, was the founder of the Company. Mr Wong graduated in

1968 from the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics

(currently known as Beihang University), specialising in electrical

engineering. Mr Wong has decades of experience in the
electrical, electronics and telecommunications industry.
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Ms Tang Rongrong (“Ms Tang”), aged 63, is an executive
Director, vice president of the business operation headquarter
(located in Shanghai, PRC) of the Group and a director of
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom and Shanghai SIM Technology. Ms
Tang has nearly 20 years of experience in human resources
management, administration and corporate operation. Prior to
joining the Group in 1995, Ms Tang was a physician of )L 754 &8
N5 — AREBR (Jiangxi Ganzhou First People’s Hospital) and
the head of technology and deputy chief physician of B &m&t
&4 A 35EFT (Nanchang Birth Planning Institute). Since then,
Ms Tang has served as the manager and deputy general manager
of the personnel and administration department of Shanghai
Sunrise Simcom. Ms Tang graduated from %55 22 £ 5 Rl &24%
(Gannan Medical College) in 1978.

Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard (“Mr Chan”), aged 60, is an
executive Director and the chief finance officer of the Group.
Mr Chan was qualified as a certified general accountant (CGA)
in Canada in 1988. He is a member of the Certified General
Accountants Association of Canada. Mr Chan has more than
25 years of financial management experience and has worked
as, amongst other positions, the chief finance officer of E-Mice
Solutions (HK) Limited and Chinatron Group Holdings Limited,
the financial controller of SmarTone Telecommunications
Holdings Limited and the finance director of EMI (Hong Kong)
Ltd and had also held a financial management position in
Merrell Dow Pharmaceuticals (Canada) Inc. Mr Chan obtained
a bachelor’s degree in arts from York University, Canada in
1979 and a bachelor’'s degree in administrative studies with
honours from the same university in 1982. Mr Chan joined SIM
Technology (HK) in July 2004.
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Mr Liu Hong (“Mr Liu"), aged 52, is an executive Director and
the chief operating officer of the Group’s business operation
headquarter. He is responsible for overseeing the product quality
and product delivery processes of the Group. Mr Liu obtained
a Bachelor degree of Engineering specialised in electronic
engineering at Shanghai Jiao Tong University ( -/&35@AER)
in July 1986. He also obtained a Master degree of Engineering
specialised in communications and electronic systeMs at
ShanghaiTech University ( /&R AZ) in December 1988
and a PhD degree of Engineering specialised in electric field and
microwave technology at Shanghai University (_E/8AE2) in July
1999. Mr Liu had worked as a vice general manager in /8
L& 2 A R A7) (unofficial English translation being Shanghai
DBTEL Industry Company Limited) from 2000 to 2006 and a
vice general manager in /8 R {Z BT R 2 7 (unofficial
English translation being Shanghai Hui Zhong Information
Technology Company Limited) from 2006 to 2007. Mr Liu joined
the Group in 2007, and was appointed as an executive Director
on 1 March 2013.

Mr Liu Jun, aged 44, is an executive Director (appointed on 4
June 2015) and the chief executive officer of the Group. Mr Liu
Jun is fully responsible for the overall management of the Group.
Mr Liu Jun graduated with a bachelor’s degree in electronic
engineering from X)#E K2 (Tianjin University) in 1994 and was
awarded a master’s degree in information technology from g 5
% B2t (unofficial English translation being Nanjing Institute
of Post and Telecommunications) (currently known as & &S
%E A2 (Nanjing University of Post and Telecommunications))
in 1997. Mr Liu Jun has extensive experience in the field of
telecommunication technology and software programmes
development. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Liu Jun has
worked for the mobile research and development centre of
Motorola in Beijing and was responsible for the development of
telecommunication software programmes. Mr Liu Jun has also
worked for China Techfaith Wireless Communication Technology
Limited, a company listed on the NASDAQ of the United States
of America (“US"), from August 2002 to March 2007, in various
positions including as a director, chief operating officer and
executive senior vice president.
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Mr Liu Hing Hung (“Mr HH Liu"), aged 54, is an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee
of the Board and the chairman of the remuneration committee
of the Board. Mr HH Liu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong and also a member of the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors. Mr HH Liu now runs a professional
accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over ten years of
experience in accounting, taxation, auditing and corporate
finance. Mr HH Liu was an independent non-executive director
of Emperor International Holdings Limited (stock code: 163),
a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited from September 2004 to August 2015. Mr
HH Liu was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in September 2008.

Mr Xie Linzhen (“Mr Xie"), aged 75, is an independent non-
executive Director. He graduated in 1963 from the Peking
University of Physics and is a Professor of Electronics Department
of Peking University. Mr Xie has acted as the deputy director of
the Telecommunication System and Equipment Department in
the Ministry of Electronics Industry, PRC, the deputy director of
the IT Product Department in the Ministry of Information Industry,
PRC and the standing member of Communication Science and
Technology Committee of the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology, PRC (“MIIT”). Mr Xie is currently the vice president
of China Mobile Communication Association, the chairman
of China Domestic Handset Summit, a member of Electronic
Science and Technology Committee of MIIT. From March 2006
to June 2015 he served as the executive director and chief
scientist of CECT-Chinacomm Communications Co, Ltd. From
October 2010 to March 2015, Mr Xie is also an independent
director and audit committee member of UTStarcom, Inc.,
the securities of which are listed on NASDAQ of the US. Mr
Xie was an independent director of Funtalk China Holdings
Limited, the securities of which was listed on the NASDAQ of
the US (privatized in August 2011). Mr Xie was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in January 2009.
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Mr Dong Yunting (“Mr Dong”), aged 70, is an independent
non-executive Director. He graduated from the Department of
Mathematics of Hangzhou University (411 A2) (now part of
Zhejiang University) in 1967 and received a master of science
degree in computer science at Sun Yat-sen University in 1982.
Since 1981, Mr Dong had been teaching in Hangzhou Dianzi
University (/& FEHEAZ) and served as the Head of
System Engineering Teaching and Research Section (& #t
TIEHIFZEE) in 1986, the Head of the Department of
Management Engineering (B T2 RE(F) in 1988, the
Dean of School of Business Administration ( T & 2 £
£ ) and vice-president of Hangzhou Dianzi University (i)
FRHEAE) in 1992. From 1989 to 1990, Mr Dong had been
engaged in research work at the University of Toronto. Mr Dong
was appointed a professor by the Ministry of Mechanical and
Electronic Industry (##%%E FL2%E) of the PRC in 1993. In
February 1997, Mr Dong was appointed as the president of
China Electronic Industry Development and Planning Institute
(FEEFIHEZERBFZFIERIHLK). In October 1997, he
was appointed the head (leading role) of the Policy and Law
Research Office of the Ministry of Electronic Industry (&F 1T
FEMEEERAREEE (IEFIAR)) of the PRC. From 1998 to
2000, he served as the president of China Electronic Planning
Institute (£F R BIPTFTK). Mr Dong was appraised as a doctoral
post graduate students tutor (W EEEZAED) by the
University of Electronic Science and Technology of China (&
FRHECAE) in 2004. Mr Dong is currently the chairman of
China Electronics Enterprises Association (EEFEHE)
and also a managing vice chairman (E#%22%EK) and legal
representative of China Association of Electronics Equipment
For Technology Development (FREIE FEEHRITFAERE).
Mr Dong had been an independent director of Nantong Fujitsu
Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (FAiRE TBHMEFRHOERAF),
a company listed on the Small and Medium Enterprise Board of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code of 002156, from
December 2003 to December 2009. He was the independent
director of Yunnan Nantian Electronics Information Corp, Ltd. (&£
mEAETEEEERN AR AT from 28 December 2007 to
28 December 2013, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code of 000948. He was
an independent director of SuperMap Software Co., Ltd. (1t i
Bl #E A BER2AR]), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code of 300036, from
28 April 2008 to 27 April 2014. He is currently an independent
director of Tianshui Huatian Technology Co., Ltd. (R/KEXE
D BERAR]), a company listed on the Small and Medium
Enterprise Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock
code of 002185 and an independent director of Xiamen Hongfa
Technology Co., Ltd. (EPIRERHRMH AR AE]), a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code of
600885. Save as disclosed above, Mr Dong had not held any
other directorship in other listed companies in the past three
years. Mr Dong was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in June 2011.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Wong Tik (“Ms Wong”), CPA, aged 45, is the company
secretary and finance manager of SIM Technology (HK). Ms
Wong joined SIM Technology (HK) on 1 April 2005 and is
responsible for the financial reporting of the Group. Ms Wong
was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
(“Company Secretary”) on 29 February 2008. Ms Wong is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has over 20 years of experience in the field
of accounting. Ms Wong obtained the Honours Diploma in
Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan College in 1995.
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The Directors are pleased to present the Group’s annual report and the

audited consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss on page 76.

Subject to Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, the Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK1 cent per share to the Shareholders on the register of members
on 16 June 2017, amounting to a total of approximately HK$25,579,000
(based on 2,557,896,300 shares of the Company), and the retention of
the remaining profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year of
HK$51,699,000.

There was no arrangement with any shareholder of the Company under

which he/she/it has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial years
ended 31 December 2016 and assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 are set out on page 211 of

the annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE RIGHTS

Details of the movements in the investment properties, property, plant
and equipment and land use rights of the Group during the Year are
set out in notes 15, 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016

EERARSAFE L REEZ FRLEER
EABTHRE -
TEEK
AARD—RRERRAT - SHBAR 2%

BERNERE MBS MAM 42 o

i AR
ARBHEAFE Z REBNFTI6AZIREHE
mK °

EEeCESR —+FXA+H
Mamx%%ﬂﬂmﬂx%ﬁ%’éiﬁﬁﬂ S8R

1L - & #£4925,579,0005% 7T (12 A R 7]
2,557,896,300 5T &) + WAREE R [E FIERR
AEIPRRFE(G AT 451,699,000 T + HAEK
MR FEJE AR B Kg L #E -

AN F ST R AT 7 R SR B E

F B 22k -

BBEE
AEEREEZZ—A"F+ZA=+—HIB
{Eﬁﬁﬁ?fﬂlEFgZ%%*ﬁ%x&Zﬁ%@E@:é
——F -ZF—= -ZZT—mF . - —T—HF
MZE—R F+-A=t—BrEELBEH

REHRFE 211 E -

REWZE %
+ 3 f5E A AE
REEREME - W% - BEREERLIHE
AERARFRE 2 EBFED BN EE MR
RHIEE15 16 %17 ©

BERRER



SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year

are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to

the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as at
31 December 2016 were approximately HK$100,123,000, being the
contributed surplus of approximately HK$193,848,000 and accumulated
losses of approximately HK$93,725,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and as at the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying (Chairman)

Mr Wong Cho Tung (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms Tang Rongrong

Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard

Mr Liu Hong

Mr Liu Jun

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Xie Linzhen

Mr Dong Yunting

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors and

Senior Management Profile” section of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap
571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFQ")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange (“Listing Rules”), were as follows:
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Long position in the shares of the Company

Approximate

Total number of percentage of
ordinary shares Underlying interest in
of the Company shares of the Company
Name of director Nature of interest YN the Company Total  {EAAFER
Esps BRtE BEREY HERH® By BABE
(note 3)
(B15t3)
Mr Wong Cho Tung Corporate interest (note 1) 1,209,084,000 1,209,084,000 47.27%
THER%E NEfER (Mt 1)
Personal interest 3,098,000 3,098,000 0.12%
EAER
Total 1,212,182,000 47.39%
BE
Ms Yeung Man Ying Corporate interest (note 2) 734,857,000 734,857,000 28.73%
BB+ NElER (M2
Personal interest 3,418,000 3,418,000 0.13%
(AN
Total
By 738,275,000 28.86%
Ms Tang Rongrong Personal interest - 4,446,000 4,446,000 0.17%
ERRZT EAER
Mr Chan Tat Wing Richard Personal interest - 5,382,000 5,382,000 0.21%
BEREE BNz
Mr Liu Hong Personal interest - 1,446,120 1,446,120 0.06%
BNyt EAER
Mr Liu Jun Personal interest 1,000,000 936,000 1,936,000 0.08%
AERAE EAER
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Notes:

1. Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”) controls more than one-third of the voting
power of Info Dynasty Group Limited (“Info Dynasty”). Mr Wong is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty in the
Company by virtue of Part XV of the SFO. Both Intellipower Investments Limited
(“Intellipower”) and Simcom Limited (“Simcom (BVI)") are wholly-owned by Mr
Wong and he is therefore deemed to be interested in all the 454,227,000 shares
and 20,000,000 shares held by Intellipower and Simcom (BVI) respectively in the
Company by virtue of Part XV of the SFO respectively.

2. Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong"), the spouse of Mr Wong, controls more than
one-third of the voting power of Info Dynasty. Mrs Wong is therefore deemed to
be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty by virtue of Part
XV of the SFO.

3. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued share
capital of 2,557,896,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, save as disclosed above, none of the Directors,
chief executives of the Company or their associates had any interests
or short positions, whether beneficial or non-beneficial, in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of
Hong Kong)).

Share option schemes
Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes and details of
movements in the share options are set out in note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the Year nor at the
end of the Year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,

or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined in
the Listing Rules), to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company and the Group was

entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling
shareholder during the Year; and there is no contract of significance in
relation to provision of services by the controlling shareholder or any of its

subsidiaries to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS'’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

No Directors or the controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business apart from the Company’s business,
which competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the

business of the Group during the Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’
Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong) was and is

being in force for the benefit of the Directors.

The Company has also arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of substantial
shareholders and other persons (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Nature of interest

M E

Name of shareholder

MR A

Info Dynasty (note 2) Personal interest

(KrzE2) B A

Intellipower (note 3) Personal interest

(B15£3) B AR

Notes:

1. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued share

capital of 2,557,896,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December 2016.

2. The relationship between Info Dynasty and Mr Wong and the relationship between
Info Dynasty and Mrs Wong is disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in Shares” above.

3. The relationship between Intellipower and Mr Wong is disclosed under the section
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in Shares”

above.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016

Total number of

BERFRREIRI
ERTEARBEAFRAM - BSOS
B (R R BEEH 622D S(AR (EF
{E)RPDHHEOH) BEREEBRAARE
Eo

ARRERHEE 2EERE  UREZERS
BITHRABEASECEEEEL 2 EERHER
ERE - ZRERBEBEETR -

FERRJEMALTRELFZ
& o

RoT—AF+=AZ+—R  EREESR
15015 336 AR R RB T2 £ AR
B ETBRERHBAL (BEIARAEE
TBABIRSN RAR TR « RIS R (8
Heh 2 M RAR T ¢

Approximate
percentage of

ordinary shares interest in the

of the Company Company

RAEQFZ EAR DB R

ZERROHE ZBHED

(Note 1)

(Mt 1)

734,857,000 28.73%

454,227,000 17.76%
Bt

1. BERARRR-ZE—RF+-A=t—RzZE#
1TR& 75 2,557,896,300 A& AR 1 5T B 4G AR A Al #E a1
Ekz

2. Info Dynasty BiF %o 4 2 B8R & Info Dynasty #2F
ARZBERUAETEZERFEITHABRRG
ZRmRAR ] —HPEE -

3. Intellipower EEE L £ 7 BIEA U L [EEREE
TRABRBRMD 2 EZRAR] —BPEE -



Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, there is no other
substantial shareholders or persons who had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded

in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set out in

note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on
information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has

maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the five largest customers and suppliers accounted for less

than 30% of the Group’s total sales and purchases respectively.

At no time during the Year did any Director, any close associate of a
Director or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in any of

the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who are due to retire and, being eligible, shall

offer themselves for re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the

preceding three financial years.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The fair review, financial key performance indicators and indication
of future development of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
and “Management’s Discussion & Analysis” in this annual report. That

discussion forMs part of this report of the Directors.

Principal risks and uncertainties
A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of the

Group. Major risks are summarized below.

1. Risks related to the economic slowdown in the PRC:

The PRC’s economy has been growing rapidly in terMs of
Gross Domestic Product (GDP) for more than three decades
since economic reform. However, indicators for recent years
demonstrate that economic growth are experiencing slowing down,
including less than 6.5% of GDP growth and even down to around
6% as reported by some agencies. Economic slowdown weakens
the stability of both global finance system and foreign exchange
market, and also affects consumers’ confidence index and growth
of disposable income. Consumer Price Index (CPI) and Producer
Price Index (PPI) keep fluctuating below target value. In addition,
the PRC’s serious debt probleMs may have implications for the
wider economy. The additional tariffs on China’s exports which
were proposed by Trump administration also add uncertainties
to the prospect of the export business. A weakened consumption
sentiment reduces demands for our products directly, and hence
affects the Group’s handset ODM business.
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We adapt to the national plan “Made in China 2025”and based
on our experience in traditional telecommunications and terminal
manufacturing businesses to extend automated manufacturing
services. Manufacturing pipeline transformation services of
competitors are developed as our new business to alleviate risks

raising from slow-down in economy in the PRC.

Risks related to overcapacity suffered in handset ODM business:
In recent years, growth of handset industry in the PRC has
been declining with the economic slowdown and diminishing
demographic dividend. Therefore, handset market turns from
the increment market to the existing market in a short while, and
results in merger, winding up, bankruptcy and transfer occurring
from time to time among companies in the upstream and
downstream in the industry chain. One of the most direct reasons
attributable to such phenomena is overcapacity, which means
too much supply in relative to demand. Meanwhile, production
capacity adjustment will inevitably lead to certain risks such as

diluted profits, and increasing marketing and channels’ cost.

The Group has accelerated the transformation with more
involvement of developing industrial application terminals.
Currently, products applied in industry contribute more than a
half of the whole telecommunications and terminal segment and

reduce risks from handset business significantly.
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Risks related to management of joint ventures in automated
intelligent manufacturing business:

We have a large number of joint ventures in the automated
intelligent manufacturing business that operate in various
traditional sectors. Due to their geographical distance from
the Group’s headquarter, we face certain challenges in their
management. Moreover, we are not familiar with the industries
in which they operate as they are significantly different from our
traditional telecommunications and terminal business, hence the
joint-venture partners are responsible for their management. While
the approach may motivate the joint-venture partners, there are

risks of adverse effects or even loss due to their poor management.

In respect of managing joint ventures, we have enhanced the audit
and management by setting up the department of JV management,
which oversees operation of each joint venture with regular
meetings to review aimed at controlling risk signals to the largest

extent.

Risks related to management of receivables from the Internet of
Things operation service

In terMs of the Internet of Things operation service, we are engaged
in the wholesale and logistics services of beverages and food.
Currently we offer credit for payments for goods to small and
medium automated vending machine operators in general, and
there are risks that we are unable to collect payments for goods
from such small operators. Fast payments are expected when sales
are robust in peak seasons, however, payments can be slow or
are even delayed when sales are sluggish in off seasons. We have
a relatively large number of small and medium operators as our

customers, which causes risks related to receivables.

In respect of controlling receivables of 10T, we adopt quota
management system and warning management system, and
require responsible divisions to maintain responding invoices

properly to control risks to the reasonable limit.
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Key Relationships
The Group’s success also depends on the support from key relationships

with employees, suppliers and customers.

1.  Employees
The Company is committed to value every talent and emphasizes
that excellent employees are valuable assets for the Company. We
pay attention to self-improvement of staff and give them a working
environment full of fairness, openness, sincerity, warmth and
opportunities. Our competitive remuneration system brings long-
term and stable return for staff and also takes into account the
long-term and stable development of the Company. We determine
staffs’ remuneration and promotion based on their capacity and
contribution to the Group. The Company recognizes staff with
outstanding performance and the same values with the Company
as valuable assets. We keep trying our best to provide promising
career prospect and a platform for them to display their talents
fully. Therefore, the Company not only helps our employees to
improve their knowledge, skills and experience through performing
their own duties, but also creates good conditions in facilities and
environment suitable for their development. To facilitate the proper
allocation and development of high caliber talents, the Company
has set up an employee career development system which focuses
on both management and technical skills. Through this system,
each outperforming key member can seize the opportunity to
improve overall abilities by various ways. The Company aiMs to
create conducive conditions for talents to demonstrate themselves

and grow through career, and also build solid team with talents.

2. Suppliers
The Company selects and enters into strategic cooperation with
suppliers with good reputation in accordance with the principle
of mutually beneficial cooperation and international standards
such as ISO9001, 1ISO014001 and OHSAS18001. We use a strict
social responsibility management system to manage our suppliers,
ensure that the quality of materials provided by the supplies meets
our requirements and their production management systeMs and
also comply with requirements on environment, occupational
health and safety management system as stated in relevant laws
and regulations. We also make cost and delivery plans in advance

to meet delivery demand.
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3. Customers

We establish complete management systeMs in compliance
with national standards and abroad, as well as well-known
clients’ requirements, which cover product quality, environment,
occupational health and safety, information security and product
safety management. Through survey on clients’ satisfaction we
conduct every year, our clients express their positive feedback on
quality, delivery, cost and service. Among our clients all over the
world, both new and old well-known clients supervise and inspect
each management system of the Company every year. Apart from
this, our Company also implements Key Performance Indicator
(KP1), internal control scheme, management appraisal program
in every aspect. In order to continuously enhance management
systeMs of the Company, we set up a specific department to
supervise operation and pass the results to the management on a
regular basis for review.

The major customers of the Group include handset manufacturers
for famous domestic and overseas brands, high-end domestic
brands in security, protection and monitoring, and walkie-talkie
industry, domestic bike-sharing branded companies, etc. The
length of relationship with the major customers of the Group are
from 2 years to over 10 years. The credit terMs granted by the
Group to major customers are in line with those granted to other
customers and the normal credit period taken on sales of goods is
0 - 90 days. Almost all trade receivables with major customers at
31 December 2016 were settled up to date of this report and no
specific provisions are necessary for the major customers.

Environmental policies

Environmental protection is not only the responsibility of our business,
but the responsibility of each of us. We initiate and strive to minimize our
environmental impact by using water saving facilities, saving electricity
and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. We also
operate in strict compliance with the relevant environmental regulations
and rules and possess all necessary permission and approval from the
PRC regulators.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Our operations are regulated by Hong Kong and PRC laws.
During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
report, we have complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact to the Group in the PRC and Hong Kong.

In particular, as the Group’s business involves manufacturing, the
Group’s operation is regulated by environmental protection laws and
regulations in the PRC. During the year under review, the Group did not
have any material non-compliance with such laws and regulations.

Events after the reporting period

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Events after the
Reporting Period” in the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis”
section, the discussion of which forMs part of this Report of the Directors,
there were no significant events after the reporting period of the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Yeung Man Ying
Chairman

Hong Kong

30 March 2017
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The Company’s goal is to continue to increase its transparency to the
Shareholders and the public and to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance. The principles of corporate governance adopted by the
Group emphasise a Board with high quality, sound internal control,
transparency, accountability and independence.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Save as mentioned below, the Company has complied with the code
provisions laid down in the Corporate Governance Code (“Corporate
Governance Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during
the Year.

In respect of code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Company does not have a nomination committee. At present,
the Company does not consider it necessary to have a nomination
committee as the full Board is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the appointment of new Directors
from time to time to ensure that it has a balanced composition of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the
Company, and the Board as a whole is also responsible for assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and reviewing
the succession plan for the Directors, in particular the chairman of the
Board.

According to the code provision E.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the chairman of the Board shall attend the annual general meeting of
the Company and arrange for the chairmen of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees (as appropriate) or in the absence of the
chairman of such committees, another member of the committee
or failing this, his duly appointed delegate, to be available to answer
questions at the annual general meeting.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 1 June 2016
(2016 AGM"), Ms Yeung Man Ying, the chairman of the Board, was
unable to attend due to an unexpected business engagement. Mr Chan
Tat Wing, Richard, an executive Director and the chief finance officer of
the Group, chaired the 2016 AGM on behalf of the chairman of the Board
pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company and was available to answer
questions. Mr Liu Hing Hung, an independent non-executive Director and
the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Board and the audit
committee of the Board (“Audit Committee”), was also available at the
2016 AGM to answer questions from Shareholders.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Code Provision of A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code requires the
chairman of the Board to hold meetings at least annually with the non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)

without the executive Directors present.

As Ms Yeung Man Ying, the chairman of the Board, is also an executive
Director, the Company has deviated from this code provision as it is not
applicable. Currently, the chairman of the Board may communicate with
the non-executive Directors on a one-to-one or group basis periodically to
understand their concerns, to discuss pertinent issues and to ensure that

there is access to adequate and complete information.

THE BOARD

Board functions

The Board is responsible for the promotion of the success of the Company
by directing and guiding its affairs in an accountable and effective
manner. Board members acknowledge their duty to act in good faith, with
due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company and its

Shareholders.

The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board include:

1. setting the Company’s mission and values;

2. formulating strategic directions of the Company;

3. reviewing and guiding corporate strategy; setting performance
objectives and monitoring implementation and corporate

performance;

4. monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of

management, Board members; and

b. ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and that
appropriate systeMs of control are in place, in particular, systeMs

for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law.
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Board composition and practices
As at 31 December 2016 and the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised six executive Directors and three independent non-executive

Directors:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying (Chairman)

Mr Wong Cho Tung (President)

Ms Tang Rongrong

Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard (Chief Finance Officer)
Mr Liu Hong

Mr Liu Jun (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Xie Linzhen

Mr Dong Yunting

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among them
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile” section on

pages 32 to 37 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors has any
connection (including financial, business or family relationship) with each
other as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing

Rules.

During the Year, the roles of the chairman, president and the chief
executive officer were separated in order to reinforce their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility in compliance with the
requirement under Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code. During the Year, the role of the chairman was performed by Ms
Yeung Man Ying who was responsible for developing direction and
strategies of the Group. During the Year, the role of the president was
performed by Mr Wong Cho Tung who was responsible for formulating
the direction, strategies and the development plan of the new business
of the Group. During the Year, the chief executive officer of the Group
was performed by Mr Liu Jun, he took up the responsibility of the overall
management of the Group’s product and business planning, including
management of product definition, sales, procurement, production and

delivery.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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The independent non-executive Directors contribute to the Company
with diversified industry expertise, advise the management on strategy
development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards of
financial and other mandatory reporting as well as provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and

the Company as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given a written
confirmation to the Company confirming that he has met the criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules regarding the guidelines for the

assessment of independence of non-executive Directors.

The Board delegates specific tasks to the Group’s management including
the implementation of strategies and decisions approved by the Board
and the preparation of accounts for approval by the Board before public
reporting.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. Directors may attend meetings in person or
through other means of electronic communication in accordance with
the Bye-laws. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules
and regulations. Directors shall have full access to information on the
Group and are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. No request was made by any Director
for such independent professional advice during the year. The Company
Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep records of matters discussed
and decisions resolved at all Board meetings, which will be available for

inspection by Directors upon request.
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The Board held four meetings and the Company held one general
meeting in 2016. The following is the attendance record of each Director
at the Board meetings and the general meeting of the Company for the
Year:

Number of general Number of Board
meeting attended/  meetings attended/

Number of general Number of Board

Name of Director meeting held meetings held
Ms Yeung Man Ying 0/1 4/4
Mr Wong Cho Tung 01 4/4
Ms Tang Rongrong 0/1 4/4
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard 1/1 4/4
Mr Liu Hong 01 4/4
Mr Liu Jun 01 4/4
Mr Liu Hing Hung 171 4/4
Mr Xie Linzhen 01 4/4
Mr Dong Yunting 01 4/4

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The Board is
responsible for nominating appropriate person, either to fill in casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors for election by

Shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.

As and when circumstances required, the Board will meet to discuss
nomination of new Directors. In considering the suitability of a candidate
for directorship, the Board will base on objective criteria, with due regard
to the benefits of diversity, as set out in the board diversity policy of the
Company (“Board Diversity Policy”) as well as the requirements under the

Listing Rules.

The re-election procedure set out in the Bye-laws provides that one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years at each annual general meeting
of the Company. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and

shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he
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retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those who have been
longest in office since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who become or were last re-elected Directors on the same day
those retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be

determined by lot.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board. During
the Year, the Board had in place the Board Diversity Policy in accordance

with the Corporate Governance Code.

According to the diversity policy of the Board adopted by the Company,
the Board takes into account various elements of diversity including
but not limited to age, gender, cultural and educational background,
skills, professional knowledge, and industry experience in determining
the appointment and reappointment of the Directors and proposed
candidates. All Directors appointments are based on meritocracy and due
regard is given to the Board’s diversity to ensure the Company can obtain

the benefits of such diversity.

During the Year, the Board was satisfied with the diversity of the existing
Board composition and did not, for the time being, set up any measurable

objective regarding board diversity.

The composition, experience and balance of skills on the Board are
regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members
with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new Director(s)
appointed from time to time who bring fresh perspectives and diverse
experiences to the Board. Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis. The Board will review the Board Diversity Policy on a

regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions in accordance with code provision D.3.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. During the Year, the Board has reviewed the
policies and practices and compliance by the Company and has reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional development of

the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimation that are prudent, fair and reasonable,
ensured all applicable accounting standards are followed and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are also
responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and which enable the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards and regulatory

requirements.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Company has provided regular updates to the
Directors on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable
to the Directors and the Company on a timely basis and on the latest
business development of the Company. The Directors confirmed that they
have complied with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code on directors’ training. During the Year, all Directors namely, Ms
Yeung Man Ying, Mr Wong Cho Tung, Ms Tang Rongrong, Mr Chan
Tat Wing, Richard, Mr Liu Hong, Mr Liu Jun, Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr
Xie Linzhen and Mr Dong Yunting, have participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/in-house briefing/
reading materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
in areas related to their roles, functions and duties of Directors such
as corporate governance, regulatory updates and topics related to

telecommunications industry.
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During the Year, the company secretary of the Company has fully
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15

hours of professional training.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the Year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written
terMs of reference of the Remuneration Committee in compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code. The Remuneration Committee
is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its goals of providing
packages which can attract, retain and motivate Directors with required

qualities for running the Company successfully.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include: (i) making
recommendations to the Directors on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (ii) determining the terMs
of the specific remuneration package of each executive Director and
senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Directors from time to time; and (iv) considering and approving the
grant of share options to eligible participants pursuant to the share option
schemes adopted or to be adopted by the Company. TerMs of reference
of the Remuneration Committee which have been adopted by the Board

are available on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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The Remuneration Committee had one meeting in 2016 and
had reviewed the remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management of the Group. The members and attendance of the meeting

are as follows:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 1/1
Mr Xie Linzhen 1/1
Mr Dong Yunting 1/1
Mr Wong Cho Tung 1/1

No Directors took part in any discussion about his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, three of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, being Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr
Xie Linzhen and Mr Dong Yunting, and one executive Director being Mr
Wong Cho Tung. They have substantial experience in human resources
management. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing

Hung.

Executive Directors, assisted by the Group’s human resources
department, are responsible for reviewing all relevant remuneration
information and obtaining market conditions in addition to considering
the performance of individuals and the profitability of the Group, and
proposing to the Remuneration Committee for consideration and
approval, remuneration packages for Directors and senior management.
Executive Directors, however, do not participate in the determination of

their own remuneration.

The primary objective of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executives in promoting the success of the Group. The remuneration
package comprises basic salary, and may include discretionary bonus

and/or share options.
Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is

subject to review by the Remuneration Committee after such executive

Directors has completed 12 months of services.
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Subject to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Company may, at its sole discretion, grant share options to executive
Directors in accordance with the share option schemes adopted by the

Company.

Each of the executive Directors (except Ms Yeung Man Ying and Mr
Wong Cho Tung) is entitled to a discretionary bonus as determined by the
Remuneration Committee by reference to the performance of the Group

and the Director.

Each of Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Xie Linzhen and Mr Dong Yunting entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company to serve as an independent
non-executive Director for one year commencing on the date of
appointment and subject to the right of the independent non-executive
Director or the Company to terminate the appointment of the independent
non-executive Director at any time by giving at least one month’s notice

in writing.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has established the Audit Committee with the written terMs

of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and code
provision of the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to assist the Board to provide an independent review
of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control and
risk management system of the Group and oversee the audit process and

other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee members met twice in 2016 to review with senior
management and the Company’s external auditors the internal and
external audit findings, the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and discussed
auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial reporting
matters (including the 2015 annual financial statements and 2016
interim financial statements before recommending them to the Board for

approval).
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The following is the attendance record of each member at the Audit

Committee meetings during the Year:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 2/2
Mr Xie Linzhen 2/2
Mr Dong Yunting 2/2

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Xie Linzhen and Mr Dong
Yunting. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing Hung who has

professional qualifications in accountancy.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu regarding their independence and objectivity and had a
meeting with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the

Company, to discuss the scope of their audit and approve the scope.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the external auditors. For the Year, the
Company paid Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the
Company, HK$1.7 million as audit fees and HK$0.3 million as non-audit
fees for reviewing the interim financial report of 2016.

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 69 to 75 of this

annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Directors acknowledges that it is their responsibility to maintain
effective risk management and internal control system and to review them

at regular intervals.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is designed
to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent and detect fraud
and protect shareholders’ investment as well as to ensure that proper
accounting records are maintained and applicable legislation and
regulations are complied with. During the year under review, through
discussions with the management, the internal audit team and external
auditors and with reference to a report submitted by the internal
audit team, the Board has conducted assessments and reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control system
in various perspectives, including, among others, financial control,
operational and compliance controls and risk management. The risk
management and internal control systeMs are reviewed by the Board

annually and each review covers a whole financial year.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic risk
management process. The bottom-up approach is supported by key
business units to identify and prioritise risks while the topdown approach
reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively identified, prioritised,
and properly addressed by key business units to accomplish the Group’s

objectives.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to the
Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based on the
strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk assessment
and performance evaluation and the self-inspection mechanism
with comprehensive risk management functions under the authority
of the Board and the guidance of the Audit Committee. It regularly
reports to the Audit Committee and the Board for its audit findings and

recommendations on internal control.
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During the year under review, the internal audit unit of the Company
continuously optimised job responsibilities and functions of different
departments according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board.
Such audit work covered financial, operation, statutory compliance and
risk management of the Group at all levels and functions, taking into
account of the manpower cost-effectiveness. During the year under
review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and material internal controls system and is of the opinion
that the resources for and qualifications of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function are adequate and sufficient.
Based on information furnished to it and on its own observations, the
Board is satisfied with the present risk management and internal control
systeMs of the Group and considers them effective and adequate. During
the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, nothing has

been found which requires substantial improvement.

The Company has formulated policies on information disclosure and
regularly reminded Directors and employees to properly comply with
relevant policies on inside information while notifying the Directors
(who are also the senior management of the Group) and employees the
latest guidance announced by the regulatory body on such information
disclosure from time to time to keep all of them abreast of the latest

information.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit department of the Group was responsible for
conducting internal audits of the Group. Internal audits are designed to
provide the Board with reasonable assurance that the internal control
systeMs of the Group are effective and the risks associated with the
achievement of business objectives are being managed properly. The
department also conducts other projects and investigation work as
required. The Directors were satisfied that an effective control system
had been in operation having reviewed the material controls and all other
major components of the internal control system of the Group for the

Year.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
COMMUNICATIONS

The Group promotes investor relations and communications by setting
up meetings with the investment community. The Group also responds to
requests for information and queries from the investment community by

the investor relations personnel.

The Board is committed to provide clear and full information of the Group
to Shareholders through sending the Shareholders the Company’s interim
and annual reports, circulars, notices, financial reports as and when
appropriate and providing additional information to Shareholders in the

“Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website.

Annual general meeting of the Company (“Annual General Meeting”)
provides a good opportunity for communications between the Board
and Shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual
General Meeting. Notice of the Annual General Meeting and related
papers are sent to the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting and the said notice is also published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and of the Company. The Chairman and Directors will
answer questions on the Group’s business at the Annual General Meeting.

External auditors will also attend the Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. Therefore, all the resolutions

put to the vote at the Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of poll.

The poll is conducted by the Company’s registrars and the results of
the poll will be published on websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. Financial and other information is made available on the
Company’s website and updated regularly. Specific enquiries and
suggestions by Shareholders can be sent in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Unit 2908, 29th Floor, 248 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE A GENERAL MEETING/PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS

A
1.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition sent to the Company’s
head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Unit 2908, 29th Floor, 248 Queen‘s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, for the attention to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of

such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
those Shareholder(s).

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements and the Listing Rules
to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
has been verified as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a special general

meeting will not be convened as requested.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016

BRRABBKRRAE RERZEZ
BF

BREHBRRACZESF

R ERE ARAARABEBRA (R
BRENAITEARRRRAGRRE) TR
TH—2ZBR  BRERAEAENE
EFEAMBRREIARE  AEEERA
ERZEE  AAERAFEARARAR
BRZERERRE2EE00 Gt R
& B ET 2R KB R 24855 291 2908
E) dRREZTEHRAAMBWR M
BRERGANRRERIEM (2) B AN E
1T°

EEBRPVAFARENEN - Bi
AEBRARRES  MABMEEERT
mENBARNTHER LR —BHZ
FERBIREE 2 XX

ARRBEDBPECYREZERHE
Ko RERER/Z/REWRLE
RAMEBEREZGRBEATRE R
FHRAmEEECLRRELTHE
o EAAFBRERERIAE - AR -
FREREZER/TRE  BRARRS
TWENEEER  XEAMTSREKR
BRBRREFHIRE -



The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders
for consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholder(s)
concerned at a special general meeting varies according to the

nature of the proposal as follows:

- at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than
ten (10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company,
which cannot be amended other than to a mere clerical

amendment to correct a patent error; and

- at lease fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten
(10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal

constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to make proposals at general meeting other
than a proposal of a person for election as Director

The Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of those shareholders having the right to vote at
such meeting or not less than one hundred Shareholders, at the
expenses of the Shareholder(s) concerned, can submit a written

requisition to move a resolution at a general meeting.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the
Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all the

Shareholder(s) concerned).

The written requisition must be deposited at Unit 2908, 29th Floor,
248 Queen‘s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, the head office
and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong,
for the attention of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks
before the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one week in the case of any other

requisition.
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4. The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to (i) include the resolution in the agenda for the Annual General
Meeting; or (ii) convene a special general meeting by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements and
the Listing Rules to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary,
if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the Shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, (i)
the proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the
Annual General Meeting; or (ii) a special general meeting will not

be convened as requested.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company had not amended its constitutional

documents.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions during the Year
as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements did not
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” nor “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has, where
applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF SIM TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
EAMERERRAH

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SIM Technology
Group Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group") set out on pages 76 to 210, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing ("ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants ("the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,

were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
Valuation of inventories

We identified the valuation of inventories as
a key audit matter because of the significant
judgement exercised by management
in determining the appropriate levels of
allowance.

The carrying amount of inventories is
approximately HK$737,417,000 as at 31
December 2016. The management of
the Group reviews an ageing analysis of
inventories at the end of the reporting period
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory iteMs identified that are
no longer suitable for use in production or
sale. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such finished goods and
raw materials based primarily on the latest
selling and purchase prices and current
market conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of the reporting period and
makes allowance for obsolete iteMs

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures to assess the
valuation of inventories included the
following:

o Obtaining an understanding of
how allowance for inventories is
estimated by the management;

o Testing the ageing analysis of
inventory, on a sample basis, to
goods receipt notes;

o Discussing with the management
and evaluating the basis of obsolete
inventories identified by the
management, based on the current
market conditions, product life cycle
and marketing and promation plans;

o Assessing the reasonableness
of allowance for inventories with
reference to historical sales records,
current market conditions, product
life cycle, ageing analysis and
subsequent selling and purchase
prices of the inventories; and

o Tracing a selection of inventories
with subsequent selling prices to
sales invoices.
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Key audit matter
Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter because
of the significant judgements are required
to determine the fair value of investment
properties.

As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group's
investment properties amounted to
HK$350,779,000 as at 31 December 2016.
Gain on changes in fair value of investment
properties of HK$12,348,000 was
recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended.

The fair value of the Group's investment
properties was determined by adopting
the valuation techniques with significant
unobservable inputs, assumptions of
market conditions and judgements based
on the valuation performed by independent
qualified professional valuers. Details of the
valuation techniques and key inputs used
in the valuations are disclosed in Note 15 in
the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures to assess the
valuation of investment properties included
the following:

o Obtaining the valuation report from
independent qualified professional
valuers and discussing with
management and independent
qualified valuers to understand
the valuation basis, methodology
used and underlying assumptions
applied;

o Evaluating management's process
in respect of reviewing the valuation
performed by independent
qualified professional valuers;

o Evaluating of the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of
independent qualified professional
valuers;

o Challenging the valuation
techniques and reasonableness
of the significant inputs adopted
by the management of the Group
and the independent qualified
professional valuers based on our
knowledge of the property industry;
and

o Performing market research and
analysis to assess whether the
changes in fair value of investment
properties resulted from the
valuation was reasonable and
consistent with market trends to our
knowledge.
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B ZHARE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis

of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of

the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent

auditor's report is Wan Chi Lap.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

= A4S 22
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XRF+-A=1+—HILFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Research and development expenses
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Share of results of associates
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year
Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (HK cents)
Basic

Diluted
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Hiat

22

11

12

14

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
2,724,390 3,197,289
(2,322,609) (2,771,526)
401,781 425,763
71,002 94,858
(1,306) (35,271)
(102,196) (148,866)
(135,938) (128,313)
(125,170) (102,879)
(1,533) (1,261)
(10,140) (14,381)
96,500 89,650
(22,067) (19,775)
74,433 69,875
77,278 64,645
(2,845) 5,230
74,433 69,875
3.02 2.53
3.02 2.51




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income (expense)

Item that may be subsequently reclassified

to profit or loss during the year:

Fair value change on available-for-sale
investment

Deferred tax arising from fair value
change on available-for-sale
investment

Item that may not be subsequently

reclassified to profit or loss

during the year:

Exchange difference arising on
translation to presentation currency

Other comprehensive income (expense)

Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year

Total comprehensive income (expense)
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

4= A

v Ny |

RERZEN

HivzmEaE (Fx)
HREFHEE
AEFBRESZIAR :
AHEEZRE RN T EZE

A RA AT ERE
AR A
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REEBm AR -

BEE2I|ERESL
ZERERE

0H

HAh 2 et (F)

AEE 2R (F) 858

TFBIRFEL 2 E K
(FA) 48
ZA/NGIE 2N
FEIER R R

B M H At 2 H W

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-Z—XRF+-A=+—HLFE

2016 2015
—E-REF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
74,433 69,875
170,573 =
(42,643) -
(80,699) (91,113)
47,231 (91,113)
121,664 (21,238)
128,063 (19,277)
(6,399) (1,961)
121,664 (21,238)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A MO R

At 31 December 2016
R=T—R"F+=-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FAT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investment properties A 15 350,779 355,981
Property, plant and equipment L ERN S E 16 376,914 405,976
Land use rights T AR 17 84,185 91,605
Intangible assets M\ EE 19 148,405 117,017
Deferred tax assets RETRIBE E 20 43,719 45,487
Finance lease receivables ERmERE 18 637 3,184
Entrusted loan receivables EUREZTTER 21 - 47 360
Interests in associates RIS N[ 2 22 3,800 5,333
Available-for-sale investments AHEEERE 23 187,448 16,875
Consideration receivable R AE 38 1,621 1,806
1,197,508 1,090,624
Current assets RBEE

Inventories FE 24 737,417 668,271
Finance lease receivables FEWmERE 18 6,085 9,954
Properties under development for sale FRANIESEME 25 359,130 227,010
Properties held for sale FHEHE Y 26 167,355 340,681
Trade and notes receivables EWE 5 RN & 27 258,321 292,356

Other receivables, deposits and EmpEWERR - 2e
prepayments RIFaftRIE 27 275,090 254,709
Consideration receivable JEURRAE 38 676 754
Amount due from an associate JE U — R B &2 A R FRIB 27 2,000 =

Amounts due from non-controlling i =N

shareholders of subsidiaries FEZERR AR B R IE 27 11,633 8,504
Entrusted loan receivables EWEZTER 21 112,700 74,592
Pledged bank deposits BERITER 28 76,636 102,864
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR RIS 28 249,132 298,386
2,256,175 2,278,081
Asset classified as held for sale DERFIELHEZBE 22 26,117 27,384
2,282,292 2,305,465
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Current liabilities

Trade and notes payables

Other payables, deposits received
and accruals

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Amount due to an associate

Bank borrowings

Tax payable

Liability associated with asset
classified as held for sale

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Capital and reserves

Share capital

Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MR &

At 31 December 2016
RZE—ARF+=-A=+—H

wRBEE

ENEZRARFE

HADRE AR -
Bz S BT R

eI R)
FEEARBRRFRIR

e — R & R BIRIR

RITEE

e TR

NRAHEHEZ BB

RBEEFE
HEERRBAE
BAXRfEE

(&N

G

EA/NCIE DN
FEER s

BHAHE

2016 2015

= —F-0F

Notes HK$000 HK$'000
A FRx THAT
29 374,218 628,401
29 423,995 236,260
29 35,613 46,911
29 - 3,501
30 299,991 333,520
23,138 8,229

1,156,955 1,256,822

22 24,794 24,805
1,181,749 1,281,627

1,100,543 1,023,838

2,298,051 2,114,462

31 255,790 255,790
32 1,770,956 1,639,989
2,026,746 1,895,779

105,801 102,605

2,132,547 1,998,384
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ke BIROR &

At 31 December 2016
RZT—RE+=—A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kiat FET FAET

Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBBE 20 111,638 63,528
Deferred income EIEUA 29 53,866 52,550
165,504 116,078
2,298,051 2,114,462

The consolidated financial statements on pages 76 to 210 were ~ ZHRE76BEE210B ZHREMBHREREN T —+F
approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2017 and are = A=+HEZEHE  WAHUTESARESE :
signed on its behalf by:

WONG CHO TUNG CHAN TAT WING, RICHARD
ETHE PRz

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EE EE
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At 1 January 2005

Proft for the year
Other comprehensive
expense for he year

Total comprehensive (expense)
income fr he year

Issue ofnew shares upon
xercising of share options

Transfer upon exercie of
hare options

Share options apsed

Acquistions of busingss
(note 39)

Incorgoration of non-uholly
onned Subsidiaries

Transfer o satutory surplus
fesene

Recogiton of equiy setted
Share-based payments

At31 December 2015

Proftforthe year
Other comprehensive expense
forthe year

Total comprefensive (expense)
income for the year

Share options apsed

Capttal reduction of non-wholly
Owned subsidiary

Incorporation o non-sholly
owneg subsidiares

Transfer o statutory srplus
Tesene

Recognition o equly setfed
Share-based payments

At 31 Decemoer 2016

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Z,Aﬂ == \ 7/ f\_‘_

7 R l:l / AT =TT Eb i%
For the year ended 31 December 2016

HEZZ-—RF+ZA=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AEREARE
Statutory Share  Properties Bsses Capital Non-
Share Share surplus Other optin ~ revaluation revaluation redemption  Translation  Accumulated controling
capital ~~ premium Tesene Tesene Tesene Tesene fesere fesere tesere profits Tofal  interests Total
i Kl i { & b3
BE ROEE  BRER  HbER if EGBE  EMBE  RERE AERR  EMEA &it i &if
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TRn  fEr TR TR TA A TEm  Thr TR TR TE T THm
(Notea) ~ (Noteb)
(Hka) (ko)
ROE-RE-A-B 250 B8 2159 97091 R34 08T - 28 L% AL 1912010 B3 19984
TER A = = = = = - - - - 64,645 64,65 50 69875
TERERRENA
S = = = = s = - (B - B 7o) oL
TEEAE(RR)

e = = = = = - = - % s (190 (1%) Q1239
ARG

i) L] 101 - - - - - - - - 14 - 14
HribERERER

- I} - = (1) - - - = = = = =
BRERY - - - - - - - K - - -
iz

(A30) - - - - - - - - - - - 607 6075
e

HEL = = = - - - - - - - - 12048 12048
L g

i - - 1304 - - - - = - (130 = = =
- - - - 2904 - - - - - 290 - 2904
AE-BE

B e Y N K 40623 97091 N 108y - 28 5B W 1BT 102600 19983
TR - - - - - - - - - T8 T (2845) 74433
TERAf

T - - - - - - 1190 - (14 - 5078 (3554 4131
TER2(RR)

Y - - - - - - 1190 - M) T 128083 (6399 121,664
T - - - - (4,280 - - - - 4280 - - -
FEhEAT

el - - - - - - - - - - - 2318 (@31
37

- - - - - - - - - - - 1190 11910
EfniRnGe

- - 7416 - - - - - - (1416) - - -
EAERRSL

bitES - - - -0 - - - - -0 -0
RE-nE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FeEmEEx

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—R"F+-_A=1T—HILFE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), before distribution of the net profit each
year, the subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of
their net profit after taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund
(except where the reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’
registered capital). The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval
by the board of directors of the relevant subsidiaries and by the

relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.
Other reserve is arisen from the reorganisation in preparation for

the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Share-based payments expense
(Reversal of allowance) allowance
for bad and doubtful debts
Share of results of associates
Reversal of allowance of inventories
(Reversal of impairment loss) impairment
loss recognised in respect of property,
plant and equipment
Changes in fair values of investment properties
Interest income

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Increase in inventories
Decrease (increase) in properties under
development for sales and properties
held for sales
Decrease (increase) in trade and notes receivables
Increase in other receivables, deposits
and prepayments
Decrease (increase) in finance lease receivables
(Decrease) increase in trade and notes payables
Increase in other payables, deposits received
and accruals and deferred income

Cash generated from operations
Interest received

PRC tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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2016 2015
—E-RxE —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET
96,500 89,650
10,140 14,381
227,691 192,354
885 2,402

- (2,186)

2,904 2,904
(3,324) 603
1,533 1,261
(2,898) -
(6,304) 4,305
(12,348) (13,210)
(11,513) (19,651)
303,266 272,813
(98,420) (329,380)
13,876 (43,063)
23,284 (34,453)
(32,643) (18,108)
6,416 5,669
(223,931) 241,546
220,424 60,430
212,272 155,454
11,513 19,651
(12,758) (13,515)
211,027 161,590
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Development costs paid
Placement of pledged bank deposits
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits
Investments in associates
Investment in entrusted loan receivables
Receipt of entrusted loan receivables
Withdrawal of structured deposit
Net cash inflow on acquisition of business
Injection from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries
Deposits received for disposal of an associate
Net cash outflow on disposal of a subsidiary
Advance to an associate

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

Interest paid

Repayment to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

Net proceeds from issue of shares upon
exercise of shares options

Repayment to an associate

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash
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2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
(58,997) (25,383)
5,275 2,830
(194,485) (172,029)
(136,224) (138,148)
158,236 74515
- (4,900)
(69,960) (80,537)
73,458 125,900

- 41,441

- 5,629

6,466 9,619
1,224 8,553

- (465)

(2,000) =
(217,007) (152,925)
557,146 299,712
(575,223) (274,404)
(10,140) (14,381)
(9,352) =

- 141

(3,501) =
(41,070) 11,068
(47,050) 19,733
298,386 291,762
(2,204) (13,109)
249,132 298,386




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) with limited liability. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section of
the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB"). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), as the Directors
consider that it is a more appropriate presentation for a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) and for the convenience of the
shareholders.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacturing,
design and development and sale of handsets, solutions
and intelligent terminals, wireless communication modules,
carrying out internet of things business and intelligent
manufacturing businesses and property development in the
PRC.

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs for
the first time in the current year:

e ME RN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-Z—XRF+-A=+—HLFE

KRB IRBARE-NN—FRADE(EE
FRBREZIMRLAERRERIE - K
RAZEMPERL T BEXMHEEFRZIA
AER—EARE -

ARBZNEERERARE (AR - AR
BMBHRAETES DREERRIER—
MEBMARXZABERAE (BB LT
RAMITERRRBIR » MEHRRAETZS
FRIRE -

ARBR/—RKREZERAT - HBARZE
REBR/ETTHE BRI RRERRN &
BB BE - RET RBREE  E7T
MERES LD BERTS - UREPEAR
HANE ([P EL ) R ER

TR £ 56 1) 4 S 2 [ R B B S 5 2 R 2 8T

AEEERAREE S REAA TER S ES
B 3T -

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28
BRI 32 AIZE 1098 - B 1255 %

BUFR & 5T RIS 28 55 2 (85T
Amendments to IFRS 11
BB B 75 5 HE RIS 11 5% 2 18 5T
Amendments to IAS 1
BIBR S54RI 155 2 18R]
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38

BIFR & 5T 4RI 1657 X 385 2 187
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41
BIRR & a2 165 X 41 SR 2 187
Amendments to IFRSs

BB B 75 S MBI 2 1B 5T

2 FEBUE

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation exception

REER  BRAHHR

Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations

WA EEBER 2 @R E

Disclosure initiative

wEEtE

Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation
and amortisation

HAEIINE KRBT ENES

Agriculture: Bearer plants

BE : AEHEYD

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

B R — T — —F = T —MFAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (CONTINUED)

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure initiative

The Group has applied the amendments to IAS 1
Disclosure Initiative for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to IAS 1 clarify that an entity need not provide
a specific disclosure required by an IFRS if the information
resulting from that disclosure is not material, and give
guidance on the bases of aggregating and disaggregating
information. However, the amendments reiterate that an
entity should consider providing additional disclosures
when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS
is insufficient to enable users of financial statements to
understand the impact of particular transactions, events and
conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial
performance.

As regards the structure of the financial statements, the
amendments provide examples of systematic ordering
or grouping of the notes. The Group has applied these
amendments retrospectively. Specifically, information to
financial instruments was reordered to note 41. Other than the
above disclosure change, the application of the amendments
to IAS 1 has not resulted in any impact on the financial
performance or financial position of the Group in these
consolidated financial statements.
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New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS9

B PR B s 5 22 I 26 9 51
IFRS 15

BB B 7 i A2 RIS 15 5%
IFRS 16

B PR B 7 e 5 22 I 38 16577
Amendments to IFRS 2

BB B 7 5 MR RN SR 2 5% 2 (85T
Amendments to IFRS 4
BRSBTS S AR RIS 4 5% 2 (85T

Amendments to IFRS 15
BUFR  f d S 2E A% 1598 2 185

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

BB B 745 5 22 RI SR 10 9% %
BIRR &5 4ERIZE 28 5% 2 A& AT

Amendments to IAS 7

BIFR G HERIE 7 5% 2 85T
Amendments to IAS 12

BIFR & ET2ERIZE 1257 2 85T
Amendments to IFRSs

B PR B 7 e S 2 Al 2 & RT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FITA=1+—HLFE

© AR5 18 ol AR A B2 3T AT R ARME AT Bl R B 3 3R
HERA
AEBRARFER T EEMERRERZ
#a] MARIE AT BIR B 75 S o5 22 R

Financial instruments!

cRmIA!?

Revenue from contracts with customers and the related amendments!

B & e RABREEET !

Leases?

HE?

Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions!

IR RER 2 X NRZ SN DK E!

Applying IFRS 9 Financial instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance contracts!

FEFRBIRR B I s 2RI O 5% [ R T A | REIFR B s a2 Al
FA5 [REEH ]!

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers!

BRI i A 15 P& A 2 BE!

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture?

REEREBENFRAELERZEELETOEAS

Disclosure initiative*

BERE R

Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses*
BRI EIRERRCHIAEE

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle®

B mE A —E—NFE T FRAC FEGE®

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 L RZE—N\F—A—Bskz&MrzEFEHRE
e

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 2 RZE-—NF—A—Bskz&MRzEFEHRE
e

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be g RGBT BBz B Rn 2 FEBEER

determined

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 8 RZT—tF—A—BskzMrzEFEHRE
e

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 S RZE—+tF—A—Bxk=F—NF—HA—H

or 1 January 2018, as appropriate

(RfEEER) k2 &R 2 F RN
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 relevant to the Group are
described below:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of IAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement” are subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terMs of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (coNTINUED)

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Application of IFRS 9 in the future may have material impact
on the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets. In addition, the expected credit loss model
may result in early provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured
at amortised cost. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect of IFRS 9 until the Group
perforMs a detailed review.

IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18
“Revenue”, IAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(CONTINUED)

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with
specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by IFRS 15.
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IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(CONTINUED)

The Directors anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 in
the future may have an impact on the amounts reported
(e.g. recognition of bulk discount/rebates, sales return)
as the timing of revenue recognition may be affected/and
the amounts of revenue recognised are subject to variable
consideration constraints. The Directors also consider
that the performance obligations are similar to the current
identification of separate revenue components under IAS 18,
however, the allocation of total consideration to the respective
performance obligations will be based on relative fair values
which will potentially affect the timing and amounts of
revenue recognition. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 15 until the Group
perforMs a detailed review. In addition, the application of
IFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will
supersede IAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified assets is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lease accounting, and is replaced a single model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

IFRS 16 “Leases” (CONTINUED)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Under
the IFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows.

Under IAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and
a related finance lease lability for finance lease arrangement
and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the
group is a lessee. The application of IFRS 16 may result in
potential changes in classification of these assets depending
on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.
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IFRS 16 “Leases” (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitment of HK$10,798,000 as disclosed
in note 33. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under IFRS
16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon
the application of IFRS 16. In addition, the application of
new requirements may result in changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
financial effect until the directors of the Company perforMs a
detailed review.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture”

The amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial
statements” and IAS 28 “Investments in associates and
joint ventures” deal with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains
or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary
that does not contain a business in a transaction with an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting
from the remeasurement of investments retained in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair
value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new
associate or joint venture.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 may have an impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in future
periods should such transactions arise.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hre BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FITA=1+—HLFE

B M HREERE 165 [HE ()
RZE—ARF+ZA=+—H  KEETAH
THEVAS ST EANE S 10,798,000 8 7T © #147ET
HRA - ZELHTEERPHERELELE 16
ST HEESR Bt AEEMRAEZE
HMERACHAREERAEARE  BRIFERER
BB 3R SR F 16 R R AT A EEESE
HIHE - N BAFRELEEHGE
2 RBERE - R - RARBEZTKF
AR < BB AR SR B 2 AR fh5T -

RS BEHREERE IO RER ST ERSE
28HR BT [ REERABEARAHSERE
BzEEHEREA]

BRI EERE 105 [FRaMEHRE ] &
RERTERERRE [ RBERERAER
ANERE | BEREERAEBENRRAZER
EETEEHESEENIER - FHE - &7
FRAERNEREARZBERRRAEDRE
ZREEITRHERREEWEER 2 MB Q7]
IR ERERARERTRZERS
PREE A 2 WS B 1B PR 2 © BB IA MR R R
BENZBERARALEEZEERR - [
i B ERCKABERRRNEEDRE
(AR ZEFARINERRAMRE 2 &
B2 RHEMEEZWERER  @EF QR
BT AAER - SRMHRRREENZBE
RAIHBEERZEERIR -

ARAEFRE AR S AR LA
105 R B & 5P ERIE 2858 2 (5 ETHORFRERS
FEREXSHTLHARE L BANBER
BERTE -

RABBEBRRAE —F—AFFH

93



94

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

Amendments to IAS 7 “Disclosure initiative”

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
Specially, the amendments require the following changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities to be disclosed: (i)
changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from
obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses;
(iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv)
changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier application
permitted. The application of the amendments will result in
additional disclosures on the Group’s financing activities,
specifically reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances in the consolidated statement of financial position
for liabilities arising from financing activities will be provided
on application.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other new
and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting periods as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.
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Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS
2 “Inventories” or value in use in IAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect
its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Basis of consolidation (conTINUED)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of
equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted after re-attribution
of the relevant equity component, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Basis of consolidation (conTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (cONTINUED)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of
the Company and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with IAS
12 “Income taxes” and IAS 19 “Employee benefits”
respectively;

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016

BHEE (F)
FEEREEHBL AIREE 28 (F)

AR LB A REGIE - AlaEER
RBEEFERI IR (i) T B2 A FEREMRF
BREZE A TENEERDAREER AR
H%MBAREE (BIEEE) RABARE
IEERE s 2 AR EER S Z R Z58at
B o SR EMEE WS E A R R
FIERE  SRBNASECERHEZNE
RAZEBEEREBEARR (BRE R B
BHMEEAAETA, AFMER D BEEEEL
BRES—ESER)

S

WX RAUWBEANR - EBatiRERZ
RERQFENE  MtETESANEEE
REE  AEBERRWELDREEAREZR
BERASE SRR BT IR M E T2
ARWEEE B 2 A HERRE - BRKBKRAR
FRBEERERSEPER -

RUEERH - PrURE 2 Rl B BE R PR R 2
BEREAHERER - HEATIERERIN

e REMBEEXREREERMNZHZ
BEXBEDIIRBER ST EAE 125
[FrSH] MBS ERIE 195 B
@A ] RN E



Business combinations (conTINUED)

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2
“Share-based payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value.
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Business combinations (CONTINUED)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.
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Interests in associates (CONTINUED)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting except when the investment
is classified as held for sale, in which case it is account for
in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date of which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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Interests in associates (CONTINUED)

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS
36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forMs part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment is classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terMs that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal
of an investment in an associate, the investment that will be
disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, and the Group discontinues the use
of the equity method in relation to the portion that is classified
as held for sale. The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method at the time of disposal when the disposal results in the
Group losing significant influence over the associate.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

Revenue from the sale of goods and properties is recognised
when all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and
properties;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the properties sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course
of business is recognised when the respective properties
have been completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits
and instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting
to meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
under current liabilities.

Repair and maintenance income is recognised when the
services are provided.
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Revenue recognition (CONTINUED)
Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
iteMs denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary iteMs carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary iteMs that are
measured in terMs of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit of loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the profit
or loss because it excludes iteMs of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
iteMs that are never taxable and deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Taxation (coNTINUED)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to iteMs that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terMs
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.
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Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
where primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
and rational basis in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.
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Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, except for those transferred
from property, plant and equipment and land use rights which
are measured at fair value at date of transferred. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair value using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of iteMs
of property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Property, plant and equipment (conTINUED)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Land use rights

Land use rights represent the prepaid lease payments
of leasehold interests in land under operating lease
arrangements and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms, except for those held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation purpose and classified as investment
properties are carried at fair values.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Intangible assets

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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Intangible assets (coNTINUED)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(CONTINUED)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.
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Provisions (CONTINUED)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are stated at lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both the
land use rights and development cost of the property. Net
realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion.

Development cost of property comprises the related land cost,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to
the Group’s accounting policy and directly attributable costs
incurred during the development period. On completion, the
properties are transferred to properties held for sales.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes the costs of land, development
expenditure incurred and, where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value is determined based on
price ultimately expected to be realised less applicable selling
expenses.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified to available-for-
sale investments, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”) and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiuMs or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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116

Financial instruments (conTINUED)

Financial assets (conNTINUED)

Financial assets at FVTPL

A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forMs part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

° it forMs part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and |IAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the “other gains and losses” line
item.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or are not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investment.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Available-for-sale financial assets (coNTINUED)

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary
financial assets relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method. Other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of asset revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the asset revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate,
trade and notes receivables, entrusted loan receivables, other
receivables, consideration receivable, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).
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Financial instruments (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments and an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 90 days.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.
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Financial instruments (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (conTINUED)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a debtor is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of assets revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (conNTINUED)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiuMs or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and notes payables,
other payables and accruals, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate and bank
borrowings) are initially measured at fair values and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Derecognition (coNTINUED)

The Group derecognised financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees and other providing
similar services as employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis
at the end of the reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory iteMs identified that
are no longer suitable for use in production or sale. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such
finished goods and raw materials based primarily on the latest
selling and purchase prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-
product basis at the end of the reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete iteMs If the market condition was to
deteriorate, resulting in a lower net realisable value for such
finished goods and raw materials, additional allowances may
be required. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount
of inventories is approximately HK$737,417,000 (2015:
HK$668,271,000). During the year ended 31 December
2016, reversal of allowance of inventories of HK$2,898,000
was credited to profit or loss.
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Collectability of entrusted loan receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss on
entrusted loan receivables, the Group estimates the future
cash flows of entrusted loan receivables for impairment
testing purpose. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the entrusted loan
receivable’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise in future financial periods. The aggregate carrying
value of entrusted loan receivables at 31 December 2016 was
HK$112,700,000 (2015: HK$121,952,000).

Impairment of trade receivables

In estimating whether allowance for bad and doubtful
debts is required, the Group takes into consideration the
ageing status and the likelihood of collection. When there
is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2016, the
net carrying amounts of trade receivables are approximately
HK$234,477,000 (2015: HK$274,765,000). During the year
ended 31 December 2016, net reversal of allowance for bad
and doubtful debts of HK$3,324,000 (2015: net allowance
for bad and doubtful debts of HK$603,000) is credited (2015:
charged) to profit or loss. Details of trade receivables are
disclosed in note 27.
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Estimated impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether development costs included in
intangible assets are individually impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use calculation by reference to
the cash flow projections prepared in accordance with the
signed sales contracts of respective projects. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, an impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount
of development costs is approximately HK$147,486,000
(2015: HK$115,150,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation of development costs are disclosed in note 19.

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of the tax varies amongst
different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC and
certain projects of the Group have not yet finalised their land
appreciation tax calculations and payments with any local
tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgment
is required in determining the amount of land appreciation
and its related income tax provisions. The Group recognised
the LAT based on management’s best estimates. The final
tax outcome could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and the related income tax provisions
in the periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax
authorities.

Estimated of fair value of investment properties
Investment properties were revalued at the end of the
reporting period using income approach by independent
qualified professional valuer. Such valuation was based
on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from the actual results. In
making the valuation, the Group’s management has made
estimates concerning rental yield for rental income to be
generated by the investment properties. The assumptions
used are intended to reflect conditions existing at the end
of the reporting period. Where there are any changes in
the assumptions due to the market conditions in the PRC,
the estimate of fair value of investment properties may be
significantly affected. As at 31 December 2016, investment
properties of approximately HK$350,779,000 (2015:
HK$355,981,000) were revalued.
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Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the Directors have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation
to the Group’s investment properties has been measured in
accordance with the general principles set out in IAS 12.

Valuation process

The chief financial officer of the Company is responsible to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engaged
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The chief
financial officer works closely with qualified external valuers
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model. The chief financial officer reports to executive
Directors semi-annually to explain the cause of fluctuations in
the fair value of the assets.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs
that are not based on observable market date to estimate
the fair value of investment properties. Note 15 provides
detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs
and assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of
investment properties.
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Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold net of discounts and sales related taxes, interest
income generated from equipment financial leasing to
outsiders and service income generated from service provided
to outsiders.

Information reported to the executive Directors, being the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods delivered.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group was
organised into six reportable and operating segments, being
sale of handsets, solutions and intelligent terminals, sale of
display modules, sale of wireless communication modules,
internet of things business, intelligent manufacturing business
and property development. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the Group has ceased the sale of display
modules in order to reallocate resources to other profitable
business.

These reportable and operating segments are the basis
of the internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the executive Directors in
order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance.
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Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FITA=1+—HLFE

e L ONSE S
TRAAREZAZHBNEED R ZWARE

B

BE-_FT-—ANF+-A=F+—HILFE

Sale of
handsets,
solutions and Sale of
intelligent wireless Internet Intelligent
terminals communication of things manufacturing
HEFH- modules business business Property
BRARR HERR L) B8 development  Consolidated
Bk BAER REH BEEK NERRE &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
(Note)
(i)
Revenue N
External sales HINEE 1,271,117 815,016 302,354 143,454 192,449 2,724,390
Segment profit NERH 22,831 63,974 13 6,283 3,678 96,779
Other income and other E A RE tolas
gains and losses RER 39,815
Share of results of associates PNl AYNGES (1,533)
Corporate expenses ARAY (28,421)
Finance costs BERKA (10,140)
Profit before taxation BBAnR 96,500

RABBEBRRAE —F—AFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

Segment revenue and results (coNTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Revenue
External sales

Segment profit (loss)

Other income and other
gains and losses

Share of results of associates

Corporate expenses
Finance costs

Profit before taxation

A
g

AR (BE)

EfRAREBRE

kE#
PEBEARRE
RFAX

BHRATER

e L ONES ¢ )
BE_FT—AF+A=+—HIFZ

Sale of
handsets,
solutions and Sale of
intelligent wireless Internet Intelligent Sale of
terminals - communication of things  manufacturing display
HEFH modules busingss business modules Property
BAARR HER b B {5 development  Consolidated
Bt B % HEZH TSR NEER )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn T Thn Thn ThL Th Thn
(Note)
i)
2,043,240 638,847 272990 80,301 - 161911 3,197,289
17,762 b8 567 157 10,353 (5,031) 8,678 90,486
36,820
(1,261)
(22,014)
(14,381)
89,650

Note: The internet of things business is still in a developing stage. The

revenue of this segment represents the income generated from

equipment finance lease service, sale of goods to vending machine

customers and franchisees and provision of procurement agency

service.
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Segment revenue and results (cONTINUED)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment result represents the
profit earned or loss incurred by each segment without
allocation of gain from changes in fair values of investment
properties, rental income, interest income, gain on disposal
of a subsidiary, unallocated exchange loss, gain or loss
on disposal of property, plant and equipment, corporate
expenses, share of results of associates, finance costs and
taxation. This is the measure reported to the executive
Directors for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales were charged at mutually agreed terms.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hre BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FITA=1+—HLFE

e L ONES ¢ )
A2/MEEN B SRR EN T3P
ZAEEGBERAR - 2 EEERRE—D
BERDEKREMELFEES YW  Helk
A FRBA - HE—BMBAR 2 - R
DEERER  CEWMERLS  BERREE
1B ARIFAX  DMEBEARES  BERA
RBRZ BN TAES 2 WS B8 Tt
BRAEMERRMARTESELREZ
JE o

DR EE LB E 2 FRKRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segment:

At 31 December 2016

PHEEREE
TREFIAEBRAT2HRNLEES
EREBEN

R-FE—ANF+=-A=+—H

(Bt

|DEVE

Sale of
handsets,
solutions and Sale of
intelligent wireless
terminals communication
HEFH modules
BAARR HERS
Batin EAER
HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn FRx
Segment assets PEEE 859,359 494,816
Investment properties REME
Properly, plantand equipment ¥ + BE k&G
Land use rights TibfERE
Deferred tax assets BREEE
Entrusted loan receivables ERZTER
Interests in associates N AN 5
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE
Consideration receivable ERKE
Amounts due from non-controlling FEYZBE 2 FI3ERAR
shareholders of subsidiaries RRFE
Amount due from an associate  JEM—FIEFE A 5308
Other receivables, depositsand ~ E MR - BE R
prepayments BB
Pledged bank deposits BEAROER
Bank balances and cash RITEBERS
Asset classified as held for sale D EABIELEZBE
Consolidated assets GREE
Segment liabilites PEEE 384,528 111,910
Other payables, deposits RN Bl
received and accruals B RIEHE
Bank borrowings RITEHE
Tax payable FERR
Deferred tax liabilities ERHEAE
Liability associated with asset BB ARB{ENLE
classified as held for sale LEAERB R
Consolidated liabilities FahfE

130
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Intelligent
manufacturing
business
BheslE
%
HK$'000
TER

Internet
of things
business

nEa
Ed
HK$'000
TERL

Property
development
NERR
HK$'000
TER

Consolidated
)
HK$'000
TERL
185,400 232,582 597,743 2,369,900
350,779
25,563
15,560
43,719
112,700
3,800
187,448
2,297

11,633
2,000

2,516
76,636
249,132
26,117

3,479,800

11,011 67,822 299,548 874,819
12,873
299,991
23,138

111,638
24,79

1,347,253



Segment assets and liabilities (coNTINUED)

At 31 December 2015

Segment assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Land use rights

Deferred fax assets

Entrusted loan receivables

Interests in associates

Available-for-sale investments

Consideration receivable

Amounts due from non-controling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Asset classified as held for sale

Consolidated assets

Segment liabilities

Qther payables, deposits
received and accruals

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
and an associate

Bank borrowings

Tax payable

Deferred tax liabilities

Liability associated with asset
classified as held for sale

Consolidated liabilities

DERE
REnz
0% BERE
HibEmE
ELHEAE
ERZEEH
RBERFZER
AhERE
ERRE
RUHBRAESR
RRAE
RARMER - RER
BHE
BEREGRR
KThR AR
NRRFEHECAE

FREE

AR

EENES  ER
BREREHTA
EAHBATR-RHE
RAFERBRE

Bk

FERHE

ELHRRRE

ENBAREIEL
AERRZAR

= =
RARE

Sale of
handsets,
solutions and
intelligent
terminals

HEFH:

BRTER
B

HK$'000
ThL

1057811

670825

Sale of

Wireless
communication
modules
HEERR
R
HK$'000
T

348219

65,679

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MIEHMANE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FITA=1+—HLFE

PREEREE(H)

Internet Intelligent
of things  manufacturing
business business
b B
) HERH
HK$'000 HK$'000
T Fin

211472 135349

12,673 49914

modules

BT
HK$ 000

R-F—nF+—A=1—H

Sale of

display

Property

€ development  Consolidated
NEYR )
HK$000 HK$000

TAL TR T

602675 2,355,526
355,981
28615
16,768
4487
121,952
5333
16875
2,560

8,504

9,854
102,864
298,386

27,384

3,396,039

= 132627 931,718

17,808
18,097
333520
8229

63,528

24,805

1,397,705

RANKEBRERAR —F AFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

Segment assets and liabilities (coNTINUED)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than investment properties, certain
property, plant and equipment, certain land use rights,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
entrusted loan receivables, interests in associates,
available-for-sale investment, consideration receivable,
deferred tax assets, certain other receivables, deposits
and prepayments, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate and
asset classified as held for sale. Assets used jointly by
operating segments are allocated on the basis of the
revenues earned by individual operating segments; and

° other than liabilities specifically identified for reportable
and operating segments on sale of display modules,
internet of things business, intelligent manufacturing
business and property development, the remaining
liabilities are allocated between payables jointly
consumed by reportable and operating segments on
sale of handsets, solutions and intelligent terminals
and sale of wireless communication modules and
corporate liabilities. Corporate liabilities include certain
other payables, deposits received and accruals, tax
payable, unallocated amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and amount due to an
associate, bank borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and
liability associated with asset classified as held for sale.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Other segment information
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit
orloss or segment assefs:

Additions of property, plant
and equipment
Additions of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of land use rights
Reversal of allowance for bad
and doubtful debts
Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment
Reversal of allowance of inventories
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

E2nRRRINE

BESRNLE:

REMR - FER
Rl

REEVEE

W% BEkiRbz
&

EVRERY

bR ER

SRERREE

QY
Bl HERR
£

FEERRD

HENR - BERRE
LER

Sale of
handsets,
solutions and
intelligent
terminals
HEFH-
BARER
Baiis
HK$'000
Tén

11,440
118,053

44,511
95,864

1,738
(3,324)
(6,304)

(2,898)

885

Sale of
wireless
communication
modules
HERS
B
HK$'000
TEn

10,003
39411

8,890
35,007
454

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hre BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XRF+-A=+—HIFE

Hitvn FEHR
BE—E—AF1A=1+—-HAILFE

Intemet Intelligent
of things  manufacturing

business business Property
il 2%  development  Unallocated  Consolidated

o OKERE NEER #28 R
HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T&7 TEL TEn T&7 TER

3,161 34,386 7 - 58997
337 33704 - - 194485
4,834 8,001 329 1740 683%
L2 419 - - 156,18
17 390 - 415 3114

- - - - (3324)

- - - - (6,304)

- - - - (2898)

- - - - 885

RANKEBRERAR —F AFFH 133



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

Other segment information (CoNTINUED) Hittp BER (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE—ZF—aF+-_A=+—HIFEF
Sale of
handsets,
solutions and Sale of
intelligent Wireless Internet Intelligent Sale of
terminals communication of things - manufacturing display
HEFH modules business business modules Property
BAARR  HEER i By #E  development  Unallocated  Consolidated

Rl EER % PEEE ETER O MEER RO e
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000
Fién T i FiEn Tin Fiin T Fiin
Amounts included in the EENRERINE

meastre of segment profit BESRNEE .
or loss or segment assefs:

Additions of property, plant RENE  BRRS

and equipment 14420 8105 7579 729 - 17 66 37486
Additions of intangible assets NEEVEE 105,949 43017 439 18,597 - - - 171,962
Depreciation of property, plant 1%+ BER:RE

and equipment g 44,735 10397 2953 3242 - 453 2013 63,793
Amortisation of intangible assels & AE & 78798 41602 1851 3314 = = = 125,565
Amortisation of land use rights ~ +tEFRIEE 1833 4% 127 391 = = 149 2,99%
(Reversal o allowance forbad ~ ERE (BE) &

and doubtful debts (1,230) 1833 - - - - - 603

Impaiment loss recognised i~ 4% ~ BERKE
respect of property, plantand A BESE

equipment - - - - 4305 - - 4305
Loss on disposal of property, LENE  BEREE
plant and equipment pd 2402 = = = = = = 2402
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Revenue from major products/services

Sale of handsets, solutions and
intelligent terminals

Sale of wireless communication SHE B mER
modules

Sale of goods to vending machine
customers and franchisees

Finance lease of equipment RERERE
Procurement agency service IRERER

Sale of intelligent manufacturing HEE RIS EM
products

Sale of residential properties SHEEEYE

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of total sales of the Group are as
follows:

Customer Al = Al

Customer B2 =P B2

L Customer A operates in the mobile phone technology industry in

the PRC.

2 Customer B operates in the mobile phone technology industry in
Taiwan.

8 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total

revenue of the Group.

HETFH  BRTRRE

N e
Hu,.gﬁ

AEEREF KSR LRHIEE

Notes to

the Consolidated Financial Statements
R M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FITA=1+—HLFE

REETEERREHBA
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THT
1,271,117 2,043,240
815,016 638,847
Hn
272,490 252,805
3,720 4,329
26,144 15,856
143,454 80,301
192,449 161,911
2,724,390 3,197,289
EREEREFHNER
RAEEFERBEANEEAHEEEB 0%
BEFEWALT
2016 2015
= —T-0F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THT
N/A3 654,009
TEA3
N/A3 517,955
REA?
. B AR BB B TR IE S0 8 255 -

3|

HEFEBR

BEBBTREMERCEE -

FERERAL BB AR BB A 10% A £ -

RABBEBRRAE —F—AFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue and non-current assets are substantially
located in the PRC, the country of domicile from which the
group entities derive revenue and hold assets. Accordingly, no

further analysis is presented.

Refund of Value Added Tax
(“VAT") (Note 1)
Government grants (Note 2)
Interest income earned on bank
balances and structured deposits
Interest income earned on entrusted
loan receivables
Rental income (Less: outgoings
of HK$2,967,000
(2015: HK$3,734,000))
Others

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016

AEBBARFERDEETEZRA RMUNF
P I AREH
o Fltt - WEETIE—F DM

HE(ER (B ET )
BE(HF 1)
BURIE B WA (B2 2)
IRITHEER S AEB MET SRIRER
Z A SIA
PR R SR 2 F B U

FAS WA O+ 2 2,967,0007%5 7T
(ZZT—F % : 3,734,000/E7T))

Hit

ERELBARBBEEE A

2016 2015
—E-RE —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FAET
10,876 8,227
20,034 28,122
2,575 6,863
8,938 12,787
28,464 37,336
115 1,523
71,002 94,858




Notes:

Shanghai Simcom Limited (“Shanghai Simcom”) and Shanghai
Simcom Wireless Solutions Limited (“Simcom Wireless”) (2015:
Shanghai Simcom, Shanghai Wireless and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda
Technology Development Company Limited (“Shenzhen
Zhuoxuda”)) are engaged in the business of distribution of self-
developed and produced software and the development of
automated test equipment and software. Under the current PRC
tax regulation, they are entitled to a refund of VAT paid for sales
of self-developed and produced software and the development of
automated test software in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the amount includes
HK$14,681,000 related to a conditional government grant granted
to the Group in prior years. In the opinion of the Directors, during
the year ended 31 December 2015, the conditions attached to
the government grant are all fulfilled, amongst others, including
the completed works were approved and verified by government
officers. Therefore, government grants of HK$14,681,000 was
recognised to profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2015. As at 31 December 2016, an amount of HK$4,250,000
(2015: HK$14,681,000) had yet been received and hence
included in other receivables, deposits and prepayments.

The amount includes HK$2,487,000 (2015: HK$3,278,000)
unconditional government grants received during the year ended
31 December 2016, which was granted to encourage the Group’s
research and developments activities in the PRC.

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
also received government grants of HK$19,591,000 (2015:
HK$22,065,000) towards the cost of development of wireless
communication modules and handsets, solutions and intelligent
terminals in Shanghai and Shenyang. The amount received
is deferred and is transferred to other income to match actual
expenditure used in research and development activities and
HK$17,547,000 (2015: HK$10,163,000) was recognised in the
profit or loss during the year. As at 31 December 2016, an amount
of HK$57,134,000 (2015: HK$58,687,000) remained to be
amortised and is included in other payables (for current portion)
and deferred income (for non-current portion).

Bret -

(2)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hre BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FITA=1+—HLFE

ARRZ2EWBARFBBEERM(LE)
ERAR ([ LEFEE]) RSB ERRHR (L
BERAR([ERBEGRHR]) (Z2—RF :
PEFEE  TRBESHME R EMERR
BRABATORESHATREREEZH
- AEFRZEBEBERBIRE - RIFPERTZ
BBER  ETERHEETHEREEZH
- AERZEEBERAREEHN 2 EERA
EHER -

BE-_T—AF+-A=+—ALFE HeE
BERBAFERNERER B IGREBUTIER K
A14,681,000/87 - EERA  BHE_T—AHF
TZA=+—HILFE - BTEB RARTSZ &
HEBEK - EREETIEEERNASEL
RiZE - Alt - RBE-Z—AF+=-A=1—
BIEFE - BFHEB YA 14,681,000 7T R 18
HZPER - RZTE—A"F+=ZA=+—H0" B
W5 A B4 % 454,250,000 T ( —F—A4F :
14,681,000 70 ) W st A H M EUARTK - & K
FaftRIE o

eEaEREE T —"F+-A=+—AL
FREWE 2 EREBUTIE B %A 2,487,000 7T
(ZZ—A4%F : 3,278,000%7T)  WABEIAEE
R BEEHEEB ML

o AEERBEE_T—A"F+=-A=+—8H
IEFE NS BURIE B YA 19,591,000 7T (=
T— A 22,065,000 7C) © AER LB R
ISHAE mEBAEL - FRRAATRREDMER
SHEI KA o BTNz SREBIRIEHE - WE S
FHMBANRSGHBEDNERMAS - W E
REREBEFHR17,547,000ET(=ZF—H
#:10,1630008 L) R=ZZE—RE+=A
=+—H ' —%57,134,0008 T (=T —H%F :
58,687,000 7T ) B FIB SR AR B S50 B 5T A K
b PR BR R (REENER A DT 5 ) RIBEE WA (BEIE
BIEAE DM S ) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net foreign exchange loss

Changes in fair values of
investment properties

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Net reversal of allowance (allowance)
for bad and doubtful debts

Reversal of impairment loss
(impairment loss) recognised
in respect of property, plant
and equipment

Interests on bank borrowings wholly
repayable within five years

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016

HEWE -« BB L& 2EE

SN SRS
BREWMENTERE

HE BB LRz s
R () RO B FR

E - B N AR RER
ZREEEREE CRERRE)

ARRAFARBEEZRITEENS

2016 2015
—E-XRE —T-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHET
(885) (2,402)
(22,397) (43,362)
12,348 13,210

- 2,191
3,324 (603)
6,304 (4,305)
(1,306) (35,271)
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FET
10,140 14,381




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hre BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FITA=1+—HLFE

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EERFETHRAEHMSE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s remuneration for the year, RIEEA LR REB R RHEIFTRE 2 A
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong FEAMBREERFTETHRABEMKER
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: &

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-E—F+-A=t+-ALFE

Retirement

benefits

scheme
Directors’  Salaries and Share-based contributions Total
fees  allowances Bonus  payments BHEHA  emoluments
EENe HeREH L URGBAR BE G BMe

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FER FER FER FER

(Note 1)

(1)
Executive Directors BTES
Ms Yeung Man Ying X BT - - - - - -
Mr Wong Cho Tung THERLE - - - - - -
Ms Tang Rongrong ERmzt - 490 350 - - 840
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard  [RiZ& %4 - 1,560 - - 72 1,632
Mr Liu Hong 25k - 840 186 - 97 1,123
Mr Liu Jun* AE L - 840 326 - 114 1,280
Sub-total et - 3,730 862 - 283 4,875
The executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were FlBMTEERFETBRAEMS EEZ@NRE
mainly for the management of the affairs of the Company and ARG RAEEER 2 ER -
the Group.
Independent BUEHITES

non-executive Directors

Mr Dong Yunting EEELE 156 - - - - 156
Mr Liu Hing Hung BEETE 156 - - - - 156
Mr Xie Linzhen HBRE 156 - - - - 156
Sub-total NG 468 - - - - 468
The independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments LB ITES e E N B EER
shown above were mainly for their services as Director of the KRABESE -
Company.
Total gt 5,343
@ Being the Chief Executive of the Company * BRABEERTE

RABBEBRRAE —F—AFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (coNTINUED)

ESRFRTHAEME (H)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-T-RF+-A=1+ALFE

Retirement
benefits
scheme
Directors’  Salaries and Share-based  contributions Total
fees  allowances Bonus  payments  RKER  emoluments
BT HekEs T MBROER REIGSA et e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T T THET THEL THEL
(Note 1)
(hi1)
Executive Directors BTES
Ms Yeung Man Ying BXEZ T = = = = = =
Mr Wong Cho Tung THEREE - - - - - -
Mr Zhang Jianping (Note 2) R&RIT 54 (#15#2) - - = = 89 89
Ms Tang Rongrong ERpTT = 516 369 = = 885
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard  BREZ& LA = 1,500 = = 69 1,569
Mr Liu Hong 25 kA - 886 197 - 9 1,182
Mr Liu Jun (Note 3) BB R (fiE3) - 517 = = 59 576
Sub-total Nt - 3419 566 - 316 4301
Chief executive officer BEREHTE
Mr Liu Jun (Note 3) BB KA (fiE3) - 369 344 = 40 753

The executive Directors’ and chief executive officer’s
emoluments shown above were mainly for the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

PRATEERTETRAEMES T EZRENY

ARBRALEEE 2 ERE

Independent BUFHTES

non-executive Directors
Mr Dong Yunting EEELE 156 = = = = 156
Mr Liu Hing Hung BEETE 156 = = = = 156
Mr Xie Linzhen R E 156 = = = = 156
Sub-total N 468 - - - = 468

The independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as Director of the
Company.

Total @t

BB TER M T 2N REEET

RARESE -

5,522

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016



Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (coNTINUED)
Notes:

(1) Incentive performance bonus for the year was determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance and

duties of Directors and the Group’s operating results.

(2) Mr Zhang Jianping resigned on 30 May 2015.

(3) Liu Jun was appointed as Director with effect from 4 June 2015.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included three (2015: three)
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2016, whose
emoluments are included in the above. The emoluments of
the remaining two (2015: two) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and allowances e MoERL
Bonus TEAT
Share-based payments LARRAD 5T 5R

Retirement benefits scheme RIRFEFIETBI R

contributions

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hre BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FITA=1+—HLFE

ESRIRTHAEME (H)
Bt

(1) FERBREDEACHFHNZEIRLERESL
RENBBEARAEE 2 KEREMETE

(2) RYFEER-T-—RFRA=+HEHE-

3 BERER-_ZT-HFAANBEEZRERE
8

BEME
HE_Z-—R"F+_A=+—HIFE 1%
ReFHALERE=2("F—8%F: =%)
B HMeCREXEE - TIME (=T
—hF: MB)ALZHEMT

2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-AfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
1,679 1,771
198 855

609 609

194 198
2,680 3,433

BE 2 S EIATFAFIEEE :

2016 2015

ZE-KRF —E-TF

Number of Number of

employees employees

EBEA™ EEAH

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7TZ 1,500,000 77T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T % 2,000,000 77T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T Z 2,500,000 7 7T - 1

RABBEBRRAE —F—AFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

Employees’ emoluments (CONTINUED)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the Directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors waived
any emoluments for both years.

EEME (&)
REE  AEFBYARAENEEH AR RS H
A EXEABE - (ERBEREMARSE
I 2l 70 1 S A S 2 R B ) 982 35 32 < 2 AR AT R
B RERBBAHE - RMEFEHEESK
REMME -

2016 2015
ZE-XRE —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERr FHET
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) R SEPTIS AR (TR EFTISHL ) (16,892) (14,154)
LAT in the PRC ARt IR (E R (3,801) (3,239)

Overprovisions on PRC EIT in BAEFERBECEMSHBRERE
previous years 7,447 3,620
(13,246) (13,773)

Deferred tax expense for current year —~ ANFEIREFIAR S (#72220)

(note 20) (8,821) (6,002)
Taxation for the year AEFZFHIE (22,067) (19,775)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for
both years as the Group has no assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong.

EIT is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
districts of the PRC taking relevant tax incentives into
account. Simcom Wireless, Shanghai Sunrise Simcom
Limited (“Shanghai Sunrise Simcom”), Shanghai Simcom
and Shenyang SIM Simcom Technology Limited (“Shenyang
SIM Simcom”) are classified as New and High Technology
Enterprise and is entitled to adopt a tax rate of 15% (2015:
Simcom Wireless, Shanghai Sunrise Simcom and Shanghai
Simcom are classified as New and High Technology
Enterprise and is entitled to adopt a tax rate of 15%). The
relevant annual tax rate used for PRC Enterprise Income Tax
for the Group’s subsidiaries ranged from 15% to 25% (2015:
15% to 25%).

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016

HRANEEER B BELRRDGHN - L&
HREFEELBEENSHRESE -

EMBHRT IEEHEESRE  EHRE
BbE 2 IRITR R E - SARER - EER
EAWBEFREARAR( LERERFE
| DEFERBREGEMASRBEEER
AR (LS AEEE ) WA [ S eE]
WERRAIHBE(ZZE—RF B
ERPEREFEBR EEFRBETAS
T ZE | WARERA 15% WFHR) - K&
B BARRAZFECEMESHARTEER
ENTF1I5%E25% 2B (ZFE—RF : 15% %
25%) °



The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant tax laws and regulations
of the PRC, which is charged at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% (2015: 30% to 60%) of the appreciation value,

with certain allowable deductions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

as follows:

Profit before taxation

Taxation at the PRC income tax rate
of 25% (2015: 25%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Overprovisions on PRC EIT in
previous years

Income tax on concessionary rate

LAT

Income tax effect on LAT

Tax charge for the year

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MmN

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

T B (E R B TR R T B A B R B A A 2 A
EIRFTE MR E GEHEL - BREBIERISES
DI R 30% £ 60% (—F—H4F : 30%
£60%)TE - WAIEETHIR -

NEERIBNGEGSBRERPIIRZGRA
AR
2016 2015
ZB-XRF —ZT-nf
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHET
BR A% A& A 96,500 89,650
=P BFTSHF K 25%
(ZZ—F%F : 25%):TE 2 FiE (24,125) (22,413)
IR o e 5 -
(7,234) (7,703)
BERRZ WA Z RIS E
14,387 12,139
RER G EIB 2 RIS & (24,717) (19,755)
FABARERZ HISEE
9,841 16,080
BEFEPBEMSEMSHBEERE
7,447 3,620
REBRRTE 2SR 5,185 636
T IR ERL (3,801) (3,239)
TS ER 2 TSR & 950 810
ANFERIEMER (22,067) (19,775)

RABBEBRRIE —F—AFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fre B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

Profit for the year is arrived at
after charging (crediting):

Auditor's remuneration

Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in cost of sales)

Less: Amount capitalised in
development costs

Amortisation of land use rights
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Less: Amount capitalised in
development costs

Reversal of allowance of inventories
(included in cost of sales)
Costs of inventories recognised as an
expense (included in cost of sales)
Cost of properties sold
(included in cost of sales)
Staff costs:
Directors’ emoluments (note 10)
Other staff costs
— Salaries and other benefits
— Retirement benefits scheme
contributions
— Share-based payments

Less: Amount capitalised in
development costs

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016

AEZEMNEHER GHA)

SR

B EERE
(FTASHERA)
B EEAMERFIEA

T b PR
W% - BELRBITE

B EEAMERFIEA

FER LI
(FrASHERA)
HRBHAX ZFERA
(FFASEERA)

B EMERNKR
(FrASHERKAN)
BTHA :
BRI (H:E10)
H 8 TRA
—TE&RHEMER
—RIRIEFIFH B

— AR IR

B EEAMERFEA

2016 2015

= e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER TRT
2,160 1,950
156,182 125,565
(4,307) (2,645)
151,875 122,920
3,114 2,996
68,395 63,793
(2,864) (3,845)
65,531 59,948
(2,898) =
2,149,914 2,635,235
172,695 136,291
5,343 4,769
317,352 301,443
61,914 57,707
2,904 2,904
387,513 366,823
(146,920) (130,248)
240,593 236,575




The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$25,579,000 (HK 1 cent per share) (2015: nil) for the year
ended 31 December 2016 which is subject to approval by the i)
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

Earnings

Earnings for the purposes of basic
and diluted earning per share
(profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company)

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares-share option

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose
of diluted earning per share

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the computation
of diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise
of the Company’s outstanding share options because the
exercise prices of these share options were higher than the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2F
SAEEREANEERT

Z BN (RABHEEA
PG AR M)

REBE

RN EESRERER M
TE A8 E

BEERE TRk VR —BE

AR EERE SR
TR A E

HHE e

average market price for shares for the year.

e MIEHMANE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FITA=1+—HLFE

BEREMEE-_T—AFt+_A=1+—81t
F RN REIAL B 25,579,000 7T (B 175
—T-RHF D) EEFERERERER
REFAS & -

AR A AR SRR R RFIT
RS

2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
77,278 64,645
2016 2015
—E-XRF —ET—hF
'000 '000

Fr TR
2,557,896 2,557,747
- 15,092
2,557,896 2,572,839

HEZ-—R"E+-A=T—HILFE  HEFK
BERN Y EEREITEARRR N M ARITE B
1 AA%ERBENTEESRAFRERD T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

HK$'000
FAET
FAIR VALUE NF{E
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—HA—H 363,850
Increase in fair value recognised RIBETER 2 A FEL M
in profit or loss 13,210
Exchange differences fERZR (21,079)
At 31 December 2015 R-_ZE—hF+-_A=+—H 355,981
Increase in fair value recognised MRIBETER 2 A FEE M
in profit or loss 12,348
Exchange differences ExRzR (17,550)
At 31 December 2016 R_ZE—XR"F+=-_A=+—H 350,779
Unrealised gain on property A KSR EGHE RS
valuation included in profit or loss 12,348

The Group's investment properties are held under medium-
term leases in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2016 and 2015 and at the relevant dates of
transfer from property, plant and equipment and land use
rights have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited,
independent qualified professional valuers not related to the
Group.
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AEBUNTBEZ ZREMERDIRE S BEAOR
5o

REBREMER —_ZT—RFA_T—AF
TZA=ZT—BURBHDE - BERREA
K3t FRMEAARE B Bl 2 A8 - THPABAR S
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The fair value was determined based on the income
capitalisation approach, where the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties are assessed and discounted
at the market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed based on
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terMs of
existing lease and reasonable and supportable assumptions
that represent what knowledgeable willing parties would
assume about rental income for future leases in the light of
current conditions. The rate is determined by reference to
the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions of
similar commercial properties in Shanghai. There has been no
change from the valuation technique used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use. At the end of the
reporting period, the chief financial officer of the Group works
closely with the independent qualified professional valuer to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value
of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to
the management of the Group.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hre BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FITA=1+—HLFE

RDFETIRBBABNMOEEE @ Bt - &-:F
EMENMBENEAEML 2 TSES - WiKK
BEUIEYEMAMZ TI5EHREEIIR - T
BHEE HREBEFARRRASRE - WARE
BEMrAERENZBRZ(AAMEERETE
BATHER T H AR P 2 RER) 1B #F o
Wk 2EST LERBEENEHERS
BhHZWRXRET - AERTGEBEFEMR
REMRR -

btk R THER - M2 &m R&IER
BAHEBAARE NREMR - AEEUBE
EEBVAEREXRMAEMEIAIE - AL
REEAENGERTDRBARE - WEEZ
RNFELREREE)  BRAAKEEEEER
HIRE 2 REA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in
the determination of fair values for investment properties and
unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.

As at 31 December 2016

Fair value Valuation
hierarchy techniques Fair value
AVHERE RERD AYE
HK$'000
THET
Level 3 Income 350,779
E capitalisation
approach
WABRIE

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016

EREATTHRGARBETAVENEZ

'x

TRETEEREMERTHEMA 2 AERD
RALEEATAZ T BRE ABE -

RZZE—XRFE+=ZA=+—H

Unobservable inputs

FABRAARE

(i) Capitalisation rate

(i) EAe®

(i) Market rent
(i 5L

(iii) Growth rate
(iii) B RE

Range of
unobservable inputs

FABE
BAREEE

5.5%-7.3%

RMB3.6-RMB7.8
per month
per square meter
BREIEHK
AR¥36TE
ARET8TT
2.5%

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
FUBR
BAHBH
AHEZEE

The higher the
capitalisation rate,
the lower
the fair value.

BEAMEEHS -
ATEBIE -

The higher
the market rent,
the higher
the fair value.

[ riEba =
AFERS -

The higher
the growth rate,
the higher
the fair value.

BEENE
AFEHE -



Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (continued)
As at 31 December 2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hre BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FITA=1+—HLFE

FEREATITHERARBETAFENEZ
&P (|
RZE—RAF+=ZA=+—H

Relationship of

unobservable
Range of inputs to fair value
Fair value Valuation unobservable inputs TABR
hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs TABR AR
NTEREE HERD N TABEGAHE BAZEEE AYEZ BE
HK$'000
T
Level 3 Income 355,981 (i) Capitalisation rate 5.8%-6.4% The higher the
F=8 capitalisation () B X% capitalisation
approach rate, the lower
WABREE the fair value.
EAMEEE -
ATEBE -
(if) Market rent RMB3.5-RMB7.5 The higher
(i) miEEE per month the market rent,
per square meter the higher
FRAEYHX the fair value.
ARE35TE mEHe s
ARET5T AEERS -
(iii) Growth rate 2.0% The higher
(i) BR® the growth rate,
the higher
the fair value.
EREHE
ATEYS -

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and

accounted for as investment properties.

REBABRELLHERB L ERNER K
BEARRERENYFRERS  HRAXFERN

FAEERDBERARISREDE -

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has pledged W=

E-—RE+ZA=+—B  xEER

investment properties having a fair value of approximately
HK$103,507,000 (2015: HK$148,403,000) to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

F & 49103,507,0008 jt( — T — A F:
148,403,000 7T ) 21 EMEE THEIF - 1EA
AEETES —RIBTHEZER -

RABBEBRRAE —F—AFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

Equipment,
furniture
Leasehold and Plant and
improvements fixtures machinery Motor Total
Buildings nENE BB &R BER vehicles
BF &8 RiE W RE @it

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Thx Thx Thx Thx Thx Thx

cosT BA
At 1 January 2015 RZE-hF—-f-AH 479,683 4973 264,237 270,757 11,791 1,031,441
Exchange differences ExzZ (27.137) 272) (14,867) (15,318) (636) (58,230)
Additions RE - 1,124 16,997 17,232 2,133 37486
Disposals e = - (8,968) (32,553) (211) (41,732)
Acquisition of subsidiaries AN - = 507 = = 507
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHEAR - - (16) - - (16)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-RA%+-A=+-A 452 546 5825 257,890 240,118 13,077 969,456
Exchange differences Exz2 (21,781) (272) (12.910) (11,559) (602) (47,130)
Additions nE - - 11,297 47 3% 304 58,997
Disposals HE - = (8,442) (45,941) (839) (55,222)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—"E+-A=1-H 430,759 5553 247 835 230,014 11,940 926,101
DEPRECIATION AND FTERRE

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2015 R=Z-nF-A-H 140,480 4973 236,559 173499 8636 564,147
Exchange differences EXxzZE (8,844) (275) (13,351) (9,356) (488) (32314)
Charge for the year RERHG 23968 8 13941 24,664 1,142 63,793
Impairment loss recognised B ERFERSE = = = 4,305 = 4,305
Eliminated on disposals PNEERBSH - = (8.970) (27,268) (212) (36,450)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RNBAR - - (1) - - (1)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-h%+-A=+-AH 155,604 4,776 228,178 165,844 9,078 563,480
Exchange differences Exz2 (8,249) (227) (11,277) (7,164) (405) (27322)
Charge for the year AEEHR 22,613 149 9,751 34,895 %7 68,395
Eliminated on disposals R EREH - - (7,241) (41,028) (793) (49,062)
Reversal of impairmentloss ~ HEFEEBBER

upon disposal - - - (6,304) - (6,304)
At 31 December 2016 R_E-~E+-A=+-A 169,968 4,698 219411 146,243 8867 549,187
CARRYING AMOUNTS EEE
At 31 December 2016 R_E-~E+-A=+-A 260,791 805 28424 83771 3073 376914
At 31 December 2015 R=ZE—hF+=-A=1-H 296,942 1,049 29,712 74274 3,999 405976
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Property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress are depreciated on its cost less their residual values
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings gF
Leasehold improvements HEMFEELE

)

§

Equipment, furniture and fixtures  &f& - R NEE

Plant and machinery R K =S
Motor vehicles RE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has pledged buildings
having a carrying value of approximately HK$229,049,000
(2015: HK$295,842,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hre BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XRF+-A=+—HIFE

WE - B Mk (FEZTAERRSN) Thi EL R AR
BMERIREE - WABARER THFERFE -

5%

The shorter of the lease terMs and 5 years
HEBRERSFrEEE

20%-25%

10%-20%

20%

R-B—RE+-A=+—08 A£EEIK
B T {8 49 229,049,000 T ( =& — R F
295,842,000/ 7T ) Z1EF « tEAASEEAES
—MRIBITRLE 2 PEIR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

COST R
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—HA—H
Exchange differences xR

At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+=A=+—H
Exchange differences ERZR

At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+ZA=+—H
AMORTISATION e

At 1 January 2015 R—_ZT—RFE—HF—H
Charge for the year ANEFE AR

Exchange differences fExR=R

At 31 December 2015

RZZE—RF+=A=+—H

Charge for the year AREFE B
Exchange differences ERER

At 31 December 2016

RZB—RF+ZA=+—H

HK$'000
THETT

115,948
(6,559)

109,389
(5,266)

104,123

15,794
2,996
(1,006)

17,784
3,114
(960)

19,938

CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2016 RZBE—RF+-A=+—H
At 31 December 2015 R_ZE—hAF+_-_A=+—H

The land use rights of the Group are held under medium-term
lease in the PRC and amortised over the term of the lease of
50 years.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has pledged land use
rights having a carrying value of approximately HK$1,795,000
(2015: HK$46,130,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FITA=1+—HLFE

2016 2015

—E—XfF —Z—0F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Current finance lease receivables RERVERE 2 B EE 6,085 9,954
Non-current finance lease receivables  JERBIREEFE & 2 FE U FIAE 637 3,184
6,722 13,138

Leasing arrangements

Certain of the Group’s storage equipment are leased out
under finance leases. All leases are denominated in RMB.
The average term of finance leases entered into is 4.5 years.

Amounts receivable under finance leases

Not later than one year —F AR
Later than one year and
not later than five years —FAERFUR
Less: unearned finance B RBRE A W
income
Present value of minimum W SRR ERIERE

lease payments receivable

Unguaranteed residual values of assets leased under finance
leases at the end of the reporting period are estimated at
HK$6,722,000 (2015: HK$13,138,000).

HEZH
AEBETHERREDREREHEE LM - 7
BHEXARKE  BEMES 2 TFHFHA

454 o
R EHE 2 B RIE
Present
Minimum value of
lease payments lease payments
BEHENR HENRRE
2016 2015 2016 2015

—F-R"F ZTHF ZB-RF ZT-IOF
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR TAT TR TAT

6,930 11,582 6,085 9,954

803 7,340 637 3,184
7,733 18,922 6,722 13,138
(1,011) (5,784) n/a n/a
6,722 13,138 6,722 13,138

RBEYR - REBEHEREZBEEZ BIE
RFEEAEEMF 267220008 T (—ZF—H1
£ : 13,138,000 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract
date for the entire lease term. The average effective interest
rate is approximately 26% (2015: 26%) per annum.

The finance lease receivables at the end of the reporting
period are neither past due nor impaired.

HERBEEBcASNERNEHNAYERR
ERF - FHERFENEROR26%(ZF—H

F:26%) °

RBER 2 KRB ERE W A HRE -

Licence  Development Technical Customer
fee Costs know-how contracts Total
FuEE R A EveE U] REAH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT TAT TAT FAL
COST B
At 1 January 2015 RN—E—hF—HF—H 82,699 734,346 71,339 27,514 915,898
Additions NE 1,168 170,794 - - 171,962
Exchange differences Ex=E (4,722) (47,932) = = (52,654)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z—1&+-A=1—H 79,145 857,208 71,339 27,514 1,035,206
Additions NE 604 193,881 - - 194,485
Exchange differences ExzR (7,221) (60,175) = = (67,396)
At 31 December 2016 R-Z—"&+-A=1—H 72,528 990,914 71,339 27514 1,162,295
AMORTISATION AND BERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2015 R-ZB—hF—HA—H 79,190 661,162 71,339 27514 839,205
Charge for the year KEEMK 2,669 122,89 = = 125,565
Exchange differences Exzg (4,581) (42,000) - - (46,581)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-RF+-A=1+—H 77,278 742,058 71,339 27,514 918,189
Charge for the year KEEMK 1,491 154,691 = = 156,182
Exchange differences Exzg (7,160) (53,321) - - (60,481)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE-—~"E+-A=1—H 71,609 843,428 71,339 27,514 1,013,890
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 December 2016 RZZE-~"F+-A=1—H 919 147,486 - - 148,405
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-R%+-A=1—H 1,867 115,150 - - 117,017
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Licence fee, technical know-how and customer contracts of
the Group were acquired from third parties.

The intangible assets have finite useful lives. Intangible
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following
period:

Licence fee 1-5 years
Development costs 9 months-2 years
Technical know-how 5-8 years
Customer contracts 3 years

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised by the Group and the movement thereon, during
the current and prior years.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hre BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XRF+-A=+—HIFE

AEBZFHAIEE  BERMREFEHEA
BE=FIIE -

B EAEERFNAER - BEENERZE
RAT HAR# 85

AR 1&=5%
FEERCR IfEAE2%F
BE M 5ZE8%F
EFAH 3%

NTERAEERBEFE - NEBFHERZ
TREEHA (AR EERERED -

Revaluation of Write-down of Impairment of
available-  Development inventories property, Revaluation of
for-sale cost and trade plantand investment
investment  capitalised  receivables  equipment properties
THEE  BEAL FEREW % BER  REUE Total
REEfE  WEAX E2BRME  REEE Bft &zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn Tin TiEn TiEn Tin
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-h%-f-A = (7,853) 29,373 18,183 (53,548) (13,845)
Exchange differences ExzZE = 538 (732) (1,029 3,029 1,806
Charge to profit or loss REEHSR - (2515) (308) = (3179) (6,002)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RE+=A=1-H = (9,830) 28333 17154 (53,698) (18,041)
Exchange differences ExZE = 612 (966) (748) 2688 1,586
(Charge) credit to proft B (B FA
or loss - (4,149 702 (2,287) (3,087) (8.821)
Charge to other REM 2T Mk
comprehensive income (42,643) - - - - (42,643)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"ETZA=T-R (42,643) (13,367) 28,069 14119 (54,097) (67,919)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets RIEFIIAE BE
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEE F

At 31 December 2016, other than the deferred tax assets
and liabilities mentioned above, subsidiaries of the Group
had unused tax losses of approximately HK$341,508,000
(2015: HK$335,204,000) available for offset against future
profit. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streaMs of those subsidiaries.
Included in unused tax losses was HK$98,871,000 (2015:
HK$79,020,000) that will expire by 2021 (2015: 2020). Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$976,399,000 (2015: HK$881,215,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2016 2015
—E-REF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT
43,719 45,487
(111,638) (63,528)
(67,919) (18,041)

R-TE—R"E+_A=1+—8 BLlET
HBEERBEIIN AEEMBRARAE XD
FH % TE E5 18 49341,508,000/8 ot ( — T — A
£ : 335,204,000 7T ) A] K 85 K 2K A o
SR N N P S e ) I
WEEREERIBEEE - RPAHIEBE+TE
98,871,000/ 7L (== — A F : 79,020,000
TR ZZTEZ—F(ZE—RF: 2%
F)ERm o HAEE ] MR e o

BIEFBCEMERE  URBERBATR=
TE)N\FE— A —BEABEUEN T RO EA
BRIENF o iR A BMIEIMER A RS s B S
A A BT A Y E R 2 58 976,399,000 /8 7T (=
T—F4F ¢ 881,215,00078 7T ) 1 H IE LT R T8 B
% REANSEEIEHZEGREENED
B ARZETRZ A R AR ARE]
BEREE o



Carrying amount receivable based BB E R E
on maturity set out in the loan RSNz
agreements e SRR E
Within one year —FR
More than one year but less than —FEETEMRE

two years

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s wholly owned
subsidiary, Shanghai Suncom Logistics (“Suncom Logistics”)
had an entrusted loan agreement with Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank. Pursuant to the agreement, Suncom
Logistics entrusted an aggregated amount of RMB30,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$33,810,000) to a specific
corporate borrower at an interest rate of 8.6% per annum.
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank acted as the trustee of
the entrusted loan for a trustee fee of 0.1% per month. This
entrusted loan will be matured in August 2017.

As at 31 December 2016, Suncom Logistics also had an
entrusted loan agreement with Bank of Communications.
Pursuant to the agreement, Suncom Logistics entrusted
an aggregated amount of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$33,810,000) to a specific corporate
borrower at an interest rate of 10% per annum. Bank of
Communications acted as the trustee of this entrusted loan.
Trustee fee of 0.1% per month is charged. This entrusted loan
will be matured in April 2017.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hre BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FITA=1+—HLFE

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TR
112,700 74,592

- 47,360

112,700 121,952

RZZE—XRE+=-A=+—H8 c5£EZ2EHK
"&7 BRI AETHARAR([EEMH
M) HE PR RERIBITEI —HELERR
& o RIEZ W BRITAK —ZERBARE
30,000,000 7T (4855744 33,810,000/8 7T ) Z 3K
BEXTT—RIEEARMERA  BEFIERS
FIER86EAE - iﬁ%%ﬁf@fﬁm&%é%
BRZZTIAFAWE0.1%TEE - ZrtEX
BHR_ZT—+FN\AEIH -

R-ZE—RNE+-A=+—8 ZEFEHa/rs
XLﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂi RETEF B o RIEZ
Wik o EEHTEE—$ 8% AR 30,000,000
7 (FZ A 4933,810,00078 7T ) Z TRIBRE T —
%%EﬂﬂﬁmA’ﬁ%%E&¢ﬂ$mrﬁ
B o EBEREREBITIEAZTERZZEA
tﬂ%ﬁM%uA% ZREEFER =T+
FEp0 AP -

RABBEBRRAE —F—AFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, Suncom Logistics
had two entrusted loan agreements with China Fortune
Securities Co. Ltd. (“China Fortune”) and China Minsheng
Banking Corp., Ltd. Shanghai Branch (“Minsheng Bank”).
Pursuant to these agreements, Suncom Logistics entrusted
an aggregated amount of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$45,080,000) (2015: HK$47,360,000) to
a specific corporate borrower at an interest rate of 9.25% per
annum. China Fortune acted as a manager to manage the
entrusted loan for a management fee of 1.2% per annum and
Minsheng Bank acted as the trustee of the entrusted loan for
a trustee fee of 0.05% per month. These entrusted loans will
be matured in April 2017.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s wholly owned
subsidiary, Shanghai Simcom Wireless, had an entrusted
loan agreement with Agricultural Bank of China. Pursuant
to the agreement, Shanghai Suncom Wireless entrusted
an aggregated amount of RMB33,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$39,072,000) to a specific corporate borrower at an
interest rate of 10% per annum. Agricultural Bank of China
acted as the trustee of this entrusted loan. Trustee fee of
0.05% per month is charged by Agriculture Bank of China.
The entrusted loan has been fully settled during the year.

As at 31 December 2015, Suncom Logistics had an entrusted
loan agreement with Shanghai Pudong Development Bank.
Pursuant to the agreement, Suncom Logistics entrusted
an aggregated amount of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$35,520,000) to a specific corporate borrower at
an interest rate of 8.6% per annum. Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank acted as the trustee of the entrusted loan
for a trustee fee of 0.1% per month. The entrusted loan has
been fully settled during the year.

As at 31 December 2016, interest income generated
from entrusted loans amounting HK$8,938,000 (2015:
HK$12,787,000) and recognised as other income.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, no entrusted loan
receivables have been past due or impaired.

All the Group’s entrusted loan receivables are denominated in
RMB, which is the functional currency of the respective group
companies.
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R-ZE—RNER_FT—FHF+-_A=+—8"
EREICATHEESZAGRET AR ([H#EE])
MABRAERITROBRAR(EES7T) (R
HFIRIT TN ELE R B o IREZEH
# o BEHTHMIZO 25 EEMNKRE —ZIEFEAT
fERA BT — 2 2% A AR % 40,000,0007T
(FER 4945,080,0008 ) 2 KB (ZF—H
47,360,000 7T) - EHELREEA - 5
ERERTFEWEL 2% BIRE - MERERTT
EAZRAERZEEA B AWE0.05% EE
B ZEZAEFER S —tFMARIE -

R-ZB—R+-_A=+—0 "&EE2EH
BAR EBCHAEGEPBERZREIRITRI L
ZRERGH  BEZWE - LEEMEE
1 — S5 AR 33,000,0007C (HHER 4
39,072,000/ L) Z REEA T —RZIETAA]
BRA - BEFEREFNERI0EE - hEE
ERITEBZEZAERZZTA - hEEER
TEAWEN0.05% T EE - ZEAEHNERAE
FEBRES -

RZB-—AF+-A=+—H - #RHaNE
EERRERRITIL —MDEEER G
RIEZ G BEETEK -—SFEBARE
30,000,000 7T (F8 % FA 47 35,520,000 78 7T ) 2 5K
BRXAT - REERAMERA  BEFIREE
MEBEERTE - LBHRERRITEREZE
BN ZAATAKIR0.1I%EEE - ZETE
RERFREBRAES

R-ZE—RE+-A=+—0 x£EE%
B A & U A 8,938,000 (=& — F F -
12,787,000/ 7T) » WS EHMER ABEAKA -

RZEB—ARER_FT—ARF+=_A=+—8"
JEWZ BRI EmEAsRE -

A EEF AR E L ETIAARSHE -
ARM BIEREE AT 2 AR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hre BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FITA=1+—HLFE

2016 2015
—B-KRE —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Costs of investments in unlisted RIELEMEE QT2
associates B Z AR 33,744 35,011
Share of post-acquisition losses iU EEE B R (3,827) (2,294)
Less: Asset classified as held for sale & : D AABIEHE 2B E (26,117) (27,384)
3,800 D383
The Group had interests in the following associates: REERTYHEEARPHEER
Form of Principal Proportion of Proportion
business Country of place of Class of registered capital of voting
Name of entity structure incorporation  operation share held held by the Group power held Principal activities
AEEfG
RB4H ERGRYA AMAER FEEEMY  FRRHEN HfEALH FisRERLH 3
% %
2016 215 2016 215
ZE-AE CE-TE ZE-NE CE-TF
Xian Helicopter Co. Incorporated The PRC The PRC Registered - - - - Provision of industrial
Limited capital (Note ) (Note i) (Note i) (Note i) use helicopter services
(*Xian Helicopter’) RalAT k| o HER - - - - RETZREAERR
EREAHAERAR W) E) (KE) E)
(EREAE])
Beijing Yunyifangyu 10T Incorporated The PRC The PRC Registered 45 4 45 4 Software development
Limited (*Beijing Yunyi") capttal
IREGHTIER A hE e iHhER 45 4 45 4 bl
BRAR(HRER])
LERSBENE Incorporated The PRC The PRC Registered 40 40 40 4 Software development
BRAR (SRS ) capttl (Note i) (Note i)
et e hE iHhER 40 40 40 40 e
(ki) (i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R
For the year ended 31 December 2016

]z

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

—E-AE+-A=t+-ALEE

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (“Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with the existing major shareholder of Xian Helicopter
(the “Acquirer”), to dispose of the Group’s entire 30% equity
interest in Xian Helicopter for a consideration of RMB26,160,000
(or equivalent to approximately HK$32,831,000) which will be
settled by three instalments. As at 31 December 2016, part of
the consideration amounting to RMB22,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$24,794,000) (2015: RMB20,950,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$24,805,000)) has been received
by the Group and the remaining RMB4,160,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,037,000) (2015: RMB5,210,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$8,026,000)) has not been settled. The
transaction will be completed upon the receipt of the full
consideration by the Group. As at 31 December 2016, the interest
in Xian Helicopter has been classified as asset classified as held
for sale and the consideration received of HK$24,794,000 (2015:
HK$24,805,000) has been classified as liability associated with
asset classified as held for sale.

The sale proceeds exceed the carrying amount of the interest in
Xian Helicopter and, accordingly, no impairment loss has been
recognised. The remaining consideration has been fully settled

subsequent to the reporting period and the disposal is completed.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group incorporated
8RS with registered capital of RMB20,000,000. Initial
capital injection of RMB4,000,000 was made by the Group
upon incorporation. As at 31 December 2016, the Group and
other investors had capital commitment of RMB4,000,000
(equivalent to HK$4,508,000) (2015: RMB4,000,000
(equivalent to HK$4,736,000)) and RMB12,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$13,524,000) (2015: RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$14,208,000)). The Group’s capital commitment is set out in
note 34.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the
associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash
dividends, or to repay loans or advance made by the Group.

Summarised financial information of each reporting period is

not disclosed as it is not material to the Group.
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(ii)

HE-_ZT-—NF+-A=+—HLEE ' ~%E
HEREARBREEERR(ESDILER
R ((EERR])  HEAEEREREAK Y
2 E30% ki - RERARY26,160,0007T (3
B M 432,831,000/7T) * D =M - B
T—RF+ZA=+—8  FEESKEHD
REAE%ﬂmmmmmm%%mzw%pm
BL(ZZE—HF : ARY%20,950,0007T (155
A #724,805,00077T)) + % T AR # 4,160,000
T (ISR 48,037,000 8T (ZE—HfF : AR
# 5,210,000 7T ( 48 & 17 498,026,000 7T )) i#
KRER - ZRIERAEBUBREEREET
KeR=ZF—XR"E+=-A=+—08 RAZEFH
W2 REESEARELEEE  MEKRESR
24,794,000 % 7T (ZF— AR : 24,805,000 7T)
EDEREHELE 2 AERBZ 8F

HEMBSFRBANAREN R R ZRE
B EANTEERREEHE SR TIREERES
HREERES AHEETK °

HE-_ZT—AF+-A=+—HALFE" XK
%@ﬁ%%mt@ﬁ%~ﬁ%ﬁmﬁAEM
20,000,000 7 © A B M AL SR 20 A
R#4,000,0007C c R=ZFE—A~F+=ZA=+—
B AEBEREMKEENERRERARKE
4,000,000t (1B #94,508,00087C) (=T —H
F + AR¥4,000,0007T (16574,736,00077T) )
K AR ¥ 12,000,000 7T (1825 7 47 13,524,000 7
) (ZZ—R%F : ARM 12,000,000 7T (FHFR
14,208,000 7)) ° AREE 2 & AREEE M FE
340

BERRARERETAAAEEERES K
EEASBERHZERLBRZENLERE
EWNIELIE

EREPMBENRBLREE - AAEHA

S

TWTEA -



Available-for-sale investment comprise: At H & E B IE -

Listed equity securities outside
Hong Kong, at fair value (note) (H1a+)

Unlisted equity securities
in the PRC (note)

Note:

At 31 December 2015, the unlisted equity investments represent
investments in unlisted equity securities issued by a private entity
incorporated in the PRC. They are measured at cost less impairment at
the end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair

values cannot be measured reliably.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the private entity was listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Immediately upon the listing, the carrying
amount of the investment was measured at fair value based on the quoted
bid price in an active market. At 31 December 2016, the total carrying
amount of the investment was approximately HK$187,448,000 with the
change in fair value of approximately HK$170,573,000 credited to assets

revaluation reserve in equity.

Raw materials R
Work in progress FEE
Finished goods BURK i

REBEBAIN EHRARE S

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ire BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

WA B2 I AR S (MaE)

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TR
(RAFE)
187,448 -
- 16,875
187,448 16,875

Bret -

WoP—HFTA=+—8  FETRARARER
AR — MR B MR WA BB BT LD
BAES - RAATENABAT BEEA - EFRA
HATETR AR & - FUR RS BRER AR
AT & -

BE-T-AFH-ASt—BLFE  ZRAKER
RYIRHH L » FiE ik - XA OB T BRI
BT SHENATENE - RoF—AF+ZA=+—
B RRARBEENS187,M8000/8T - ATES
4170,573 000 BTEAT A B AE A -

2016 2015
—E-RF —T-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TR
448,608 316,903
55,201 39,542
233,608 311,826
737,417 668,271

RABBEBRRIE —F—AFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fre B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

At 1 January 2015
Additions nNE

Exchange differences fExR=R

Transfer to properties held for sale EEERENEYE

At 31 December 2015

Additions NE
Exchange differences ERER
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+ZA=+—H

The properties under development for sale of the Group are
situated in the PRC and located on land use rights under
medium-term leases.

Included in the properties under development for sale
classified as current assets as at 31 December 2015 is an
amount of HK$90,951,000 which represents the carrying
value of the properties expected to be completed and sold
after more than twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. Whereas, as at 31 December 2016, amount of
HK$359,130,000 represents the carrying value of the
properties expected to be completed and sold within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

The Group’s properties held for sale are all situated in the
PRC. All the properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.
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R-ZZE—RF—H—H

RZZE—RF+=RA=+—H

HK$'000
TR

455,948

170,553

(25,795)
(373,696)

227,010
147,999
(15,879)

359,130

AEBERDAHEEW R P B R EZRZ
IR R T e AR L L -

R-ZE—AF+_A=+—8 2EARHE
EZERTPHEEYEBTE—%90,951,000
BILZHIE BEEREAZEEHRKRE
HARETZEABRERKELEZWEZER
B AWM RZE—"F+ZA=+—8"
359,130,000 7t i AR R EHAR 1218 A ATE
FHoEA R SR AREE -

REBFRHEHEMEDMUNPE - FIAREH
EMEDARE R AT BIRFHEZ RIRETIE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hre BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FTA=1+—HLFE

The normal credit period given on sale of goods relating to SHEBEFH « MR TR N e Rim - BARER
handsets, solutions and intelligent terminals, display modules MESBANEREHZERZ —REEHAET
and wireless communication modules is 0-90 days. A longer FO0K o PEEAREEE RITEKBHEAME
period is granted to a few customers with whom the Group has MABREREFEERRZ(EEH - WERE
a good business relationship and which are in sound financial EMELTEER -

condition. There is no credit given to sales of properties.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net AR AR TRE AR (BRRER A 2 B BRFEE ) FE
of allowance for bad and doubtful debts, as well as notes WE SR (B RIZREME ) LA R BN RIFE
receivables presented based on the invoice dates at the end BEHEBEL 2R DT -

of the reporting period, which approximated the revenue
recognition dates:

2016 2015
ZB-REF “T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Trade receivables FEWE Z BRI
0-30 days TE30K 164,342 169,379
31-60 days 31 E60X 31,917 75,372
61-90 days 61 90K 26,616 26,913
91-180 days 91 & 180K 14,260 3,688
Over 180 days B 180K 19,163 30,964
256,298 306,316
Less: Accumulated allowances B RETEE (21,821) (31,551)
Trade receivables e B IR 234,477 274,765
Notes receivables (Note) FEWE & (H1at)
0-30 days TE30K 23,324 17,591
91-180 days 91 & 180k 520 -
23,844 17,591
258,321 292,356
Note: Notes receivables represent the promissory notes issued by banks Bzt o FEWERE AREEWE SR RITE 2 A EE -

received from the customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fre B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed twice a
year. The Group has policy for allowance of bad and doubtful
debts which is based on an evaluation of the collectability and
age analysis of accounts on every individual trade debtor basis
and on management’s judgment including creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$15,096,000 (2015:
HK$6,348,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss
because they were either subsequently settled as at the date
of this report or there was no historical default of payments
by the respective customers. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The average age of these
receivables is 139 days (2015: 150 days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired

90-180 days
181-365 days

90 £ 180K
181 365K

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year FEERR

Exchange differences EXRER
Impairment losses recognised FTiERR BB EE
Impairment losses reversed REE D
Amount written off as uncollectible s A U e & 58
Balance at end of the year FRERR

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016

EWMEMHEPA  AEESTEEETPH
FEEERYREEFNEERSE - EFRES
FEAMAK - AREEARR - RESHEEK
B 5 RAR B 2 AR m AR E ARl R AR ER AT A
RERBZHEH (BRBREFPZEENER
BEERGE) - RRBRIELERE -

AEBZEWESEREHNEESRMAES
15,096,000 7T ( — T — F 4 : 6,348,000 7%
LMK RS ESHABBHMASL
B EBEERE - AEEZEERA
WMEABPBRMNBRELETPIEBHERNARK
e e AEBIERZELE BRI EEMIKE
Mmoo ZERBIRR Z FHERA139R(ZT
—RF : 150K) °

EEMERBENEKE 5 R 2 R

2016 2015
—EB-RE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
13,779 3,670
1,317 2,678
RERBEZEH

2016 2015
—E-RF —ZET—RHF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FET
31,551 32,877
(1,235) (1,929)
5,771 1,833
(9,095) (1,230)
(5,171) =
21,821 31,551




Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of
HK$34,024,000 (2015: HK$57,495,000) are denominated in
USD, which are not denominated in the functional currency of
the respective group entities.

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and will be
settled within twelve months after the end of reporting period.
Deposits mainly represented trade deposits paid to third
parties.

The following is the breakdown of other receivables, deposits
and prepayments:

VAT recoverable AT 1 (ER
Deposits paid to suppliers for MEEFEXNT
purchasing inventories HER ke
Deposits paid to sub-contractors BB
for construction of properties FoREERZIES

Deposits paid for the acquisition

of land use rights for property RS M zizse
development purpose
Prepayments TR
Other receivables HAb YRR
Entrusted loan interest receivable FEEEEHA R
Government subsidy receivable FEMCBUT 2R

Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries and an associate

Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayment on
demand.

FAURHE T30 AR R R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE MR
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BE_Z—R"FTA=1+—HLFE

RERBREZEDH (B

RZZT—XNE+-A=+—H - 34,024,000
TT(=Z—F% : 57,495,000 7T) HWIEWE 5
BRFUAETTETE - WIEARBEEEEERNINAE
EEEETHE -

Hip ERERFASEER - 8 RERREHR
BT_EANER -RETBRINTE=T
BT -

AT REMEEER  ReERENKEBZD
i

2016 2015
—E—-XE —ZT—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHBT
77,487 82,380
109,792 99,834
26,266 557
27,048 28,416
4,875 10,584
22,253 12,378
3,119 5,879
4,250 14,681
275,090 254,709

P W b 2 R e — R B Y R FR AR R R BRFRIR

BHZEREER  REREEREER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

The bank balances and cash of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB, HK$ and USD. The bank balances
receive variable interest at an average rate of 1% (2015: 1%)
per annum. Included in the bank balances and cash and
pledged bank deposits was an amount of HK$257,861,000
(2015: HK$316,422,000) denominated in RMB, which is not
freely convertible into other currencies.

The Group’s bank deposits of HK$76,636,000 (2015:
HK$102,864,000) as at 31 December 2016 were pledged to
secure the short-term general banking facilities granted by
banks and discounted bills. The bank deposits will mature on
clearance of the discounted bills.

At 31 December 2016, bank balances of HK$67,440,000
(2015: HK$84,431,000) are denominated in USD, which are
not denominated in the functional currency of the respective
group entities.

Trade and notes payables, other payables, deposits received
and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purposes and ongoing costs.

Trade and notes payables

Trade and notes payables (other than for the construction
of properties held for sale) principally comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purchases. The normal credit period
taken for trade purchases is 30-90 days.

Payables and accrued expenditure on construction of
properties held for sale comprise construction costs and other
project-related expenses which are payable based on project
progress measured by the Group.
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AEBZRITEHREASTENARYE BT
RETCEHE « |ITHEBILFE M IR - 115
FHMERIE(ZZ—HF:12) - RITER
RS URBERBTERARE-—FEUAR
K& EHE 2 18 257,861,000 B T (ZE— R F -
316,422,000/87T) * ZEFFIATA A HEHRE
HE™ o

AEER_E—R"FT-A=T—HZRTF
776,636,000/ 7T (=T —H4F : 102,864,000
ABIT) B TR - (ERERRITRLEN &
RITRE RAARERZER - RITFHAGNAE
REBHEERIE -

RIE—RE+-_A=+—8  UExE
HISR1TAE 82 367,440,000 T (B — R 4F
84,431,000/87T) * B REFIEW IEAEHEEE
ERNINEEETE -

BNEZEARRE - HtEMAKRK - 2l%
EREFFRIEBRREE MG 2 ARENA
PARISERA

ENEZRARREE
ENESERIEER (T RERZRIFHEY
R)IEERREREZESRESE - EHK
B —REEHRIOE0OX -

RS EHE MR 2 BN R REF R 2R
SRR R HA SR B R 2 IS - BRARIR
REBAEEFEZHBEEX -



An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and notes payables at
the end of the reporting period presented based on the invoice
dates for trade payables or date of issuance for notes payables

is as follows:

0-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
Over 90 days

TE30XK
31 E60K
61 £90K
F238 90 KX

As at 31 December 2016, included in the trade and notes
payables, HK$88,161,000 (2015: HK$150,942,000) are
denominated in USD, which are not denominated in the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

Other payables, deposits received and accruals
The following is the breakdown of other payables, deposits

received and accruals:

Deferred income (note)

Payables on acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Deposits received from customers
for sales of goods

Deposits received from customers
for pre-sales of properties

Accruals

VAT payables

Other payables

EIEWA (H1aE)
W - BE K
i BT RRRK
HEEMAEF
WHR 2 f
REEMEAES
WHR 2 &
FERTIRIR
FEREER

H A SRR
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AT RRBERRANEE 2 ENESRALE
BRENESRREZAPRENZR 2 #
H B VR 2 RRER D AT -

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
327,308 569,902
21,918 35,444
9,316 4,112
15,676 18,943
374,218 628,401

RZZB—RF+ZA=+—H EBHEZEXK
KRR N R AR TTRHE 2 505 88,161,000 78
TT(ZZF—A%F : 150,942,000 7T) * HHRK
IR I AR R B E R A M aE B R RHE -

Hitb AR - ERRSRERE

AT REMENER - EWiRE MEFTFIRZ

DT
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT
57,134 58,687
564 12,103
162,316 129,258
209,613 56,526
6,866 9,001
11,514 7,455
29,854 15,780
477,861 288,810
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

]z

—E-AE+-A=t+-ALEE

Note: As at 31 December 2016, other payables included deferred

income on government grants amounting to HK$57,134,000
(2015: HK$58,687,000). Government grants are given to support
the research and development of advanced electronic devices
and technology and used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment. These grants are released to income to cover actual
expenditure used in research and development activities or
transferred to profit or loss over useful lives of the related assets.
Included in deferred income on government grants amounting to
HK$53,866,000 (2015: HK$52,550,000) represented the income
that is not expected to be realised to profit or loss within 12 months
of the reporting date based on the depreciation rates of the related
assets and therefore has been presented to non-current liabilities.

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
and an associate
Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

Secured: M

Bank loans (note i) RITER (M)
Discounted bills (note ii) ,\Efﬁﬁ%} (Kt ii)
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Bt -

RZZE—ARF+ZA=+—1 HtEAERE
FEEFIE B WA Z B A 57,134,000 7T (=
T — A4 58,687,000 7T) - BAFIEE WATY
AR AT FRIBERM 2T ARKE
ME  BELKEE ZEHDSERERAERE
MEES) 2 BWR A s BRI 2 2 i A R e
- BNERBKRAZEERATBE—%
53,866,000/ 7T (=T —F 4 : 52,550,000 7T)
ZFE BEEREEZNESR BHABEBTIE
TERFEEHET AR ANBETZE
M2FRERDEE

EAMELR R — B QT ERRRFR

BREFRASEER 2B REEREER

2016 2015

S i
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR T
45,080 47,360
254,911 286,160
299,991 333,520




Notes:

()

(i)

At the end of the reporting period, the loans include an amount of
HK$45,080,000 denominated in RMB, which are the functional
currency of the respective group entities (2015: an amount of
HK$47,360,000 denominated in RMB, which are the functional
currency of the respective group entities). The loans carry variable
interest at LPR plus a spread (2015: variable interest at LPR plus
a spread). All loans are repayable within one year. Pursuant to the
loan agreements, the bank borrowings were secured by investment
properties, property, plant and equipment and land use rights as
disclosed in notes 15, 16 and 17 respectively.

Discounted bills include an amount of HK$254,911,000
denominated in RMB (2015: HK$54,901,000 denominated in USD
and an amount of HK$231,259,000 denominated in RMB), which
is the functional currency of respective entities of the Group, and
are secured by notes receivables. The effective interest rates of the
discounted bills range from 0.7% to 2.4% per annum (2015: 1.6%
to 2%). Bills are issued through intra-group transactions and the
relevant group entities discounted the bills to independent third
parties. The bills receivable and payable issued between group
entities are fully eliminated on consolidation.

Bret -

(i)

(i)
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PSR - AHUERBENRESEEEE 2

BB ARKGHE 2 B3045,080,000 8 T (=F
—hF  DEAEERNGEEEARBHEZER
47,360,000 7T) ° A B E FIRE FEGE R =
BEZIPHNEAFB(ZT—AF  RERER
ﬂ%bu%\%ﬁ%ﬁl%%é) FBEBERHER
—ENEE - REERRS - RITEEIARE
ME - ME - BERE ﬁﬁihﬂiﬁﬁ%#&%?ﬁw
(P BIAHIFELS » 16 R 17 R IBE) »

BRREES %LxAEMJ@Z@%@M,%LOOO
BT(ZE—AF: WExnstEze 8
54,901,000/ * RABBEERE 2K
AREHEZ £%8231,259,000587T) * WIADIEK
RITERERER - WRERZ BRFNEN
ROTBEZE24B(ZZE—H%F  16EE2E) ° %
EERBREENDRZSET  MBBEEEER
HEBRMRTELE=7 - SEEBHEMETZ
FEAS R FEA RPN A ABREF 2 2K 8Y o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Authorised:
At 1 January 2015,
31 December 2015 and
31 December 2016

Issued:
At 1 January 2015
Shares issued upon exercise
of share options

At 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2016

Details of the exercise of share options are set out in note 36.

Properties revaluation reserve

At 1 January 2015,
31 December 2015 and 2016

Assets revaluation reserve

At 1 January 2015 and
31 December 2015

Fair value change on available-for-sale
investment

At 31 December 2016
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FRE(EO.1 BTz EEk

“E-RF+-HA=+—H

;=T —XRF+=-A=+—H

BT
R-ZE—RF—HF—H
TTE BN AE R 1T 2 AR 1D

R-F—AF+_-_A=+—H

YIREGEE

BEEHMHE
R-_ZE—RF—H—H

E-E—HFT-A=+—§
A B0 E AT EED

WoB—AF+=A=+—A

T AF+-A=+—A

TTIERBAHE 2 B HIRE 36

Number Share
of shares capital
R BB ;&S

'000 HK$'000

T FAT
3,000,000 300,000
2,557,499 255,750
398 40
2,557,897 255,790
HK$'000

FET

102,827

HK$'000

FAT

127,930

127,930



Translation reserve

BERE

At 1 January 2015
Exchange differences arising on
translation to presentation

currency
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+=A
Exchange differences arising on BMEEZ27|EES
translation to presentation
currency
At 31 December 2016 R-ZTE—RE+_A=+—H

The Group as lessee

The Group made minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of office premises of approximately
HK$10,104,000 (2015: HK$10,277,000), in which
approximately HK$4,111,000 (2015: HK$5,531,000) were
capitalised in development cost.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

R-_E—RF—H—H
BMEEZ2Y|EBEENERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BE_Z—R"FTA=1+—HLFE

HK$'000
TR

261,495

(83,922)

177,573

(77,288)

100,285

NEBEREHEA
REBBPAZMEMBBLLEHEIF 2 &
KRS RIAX) 510,104,000 T (ZB—HE
10,277,000/ 7t) + HAF#)4,111,0008 (=
T—FHF : 5531,000/87C) ERFAERAFE
N

RI|ERR - AERERBETABHELEHEES
N2 RRSERSFRAEZZMBENT

2016 2015

—E-RF —FTRF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Within one year —FR 8,575 3,553
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFRF(HEMFEBEER) 2,223 1,597
10,798 5,150

Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years and
rentals are fixed for an average of two years.

HEZ FHFHEELSME - MESEESRF
B R

RABBEBRRIE —F—AFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

The Group as lessor

All of the properties held have committed tenants for the next

2-10 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease

payments:

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive
After five years

Expenditure in respect of investment
in an associate contracted for but
not provided in the consolidated
financial statements (note 22)

Expenditure in respect of properties
under development for sale
contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial
statements
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REEEZHBEA

B %

—FRN
E_EERF (BERMFREEA)
REFi&

ERTAMERREGRE M EHRESR
b=l )il |l YNl
ZIRERX (Hat22)

ERTOERNEGER B RERTEE
ZERTIHEYEFZ

i

FBERBZWMERK2E I0FIFHEAM -

SEEBTITH 2R R RER

2016 2015
—E-XRF —T-RHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
25,197 26,500
38,791 39,410
554 1,692
64,542 67,602
2016 2015
—E-RF —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
4,508 4,736
52,920 158,672




The Group operates a MPF Scheme under rules and
regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all its employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of
the Group in Hong Kong are required to join the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ salaries and are charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participate in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specific percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefits scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts of HK$62,197,000 (2015:
HK$58,023,000) contributed by the Group to the schemes
and cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents contribution payable to the schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
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REEREARFIMEATESHEKOAEMES
BRERY —EAESE - TEREBHAR
SEESHAMARESTE - HFIREEE
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2B IE T IR ELRE BRI - 8T
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

The Company had two share option schemes, including post-
initial public offering share options scheme (the “Post-IPO
Options”) and new share options scheme (the “New Share
Options”). Post-IPO Options and New Share Options were
adopted on 30 May 2005 and 1 June 2016, respectively. The
major terMs and conditions of the two schemes are set out

below:

(A)  Post-IPO Options

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other persons as the
board of directors may consider appropriate.

On 12 December 2008, a resolution to renew the
10% general limit of the Post-IPO Options was
duly passed by the shareholders of the Company.
The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options might be granted under the Post-
IPO Options must not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at 12 December 2008 (i.e. 151,749,000
shares, being 5.93% of the issued shares of the
Company as the date of this annual report) and in
any event the total maximum number of shares
which might be issued or issuable upon exercise of
all outstanding options should not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date of
grant. No consideration is required to be paid by
the grantee for the grant of options.

The exercise price of an option must be the
highest of:

o the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

° the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

° the nominal value of the share.
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(A) Post-IPO Options (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The life of the Post-IPO Options was effective
until 29 May 2015, after which time no further
option will be granted but provisions of the Post-
IPO Options shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects.

On 19 July 2013, the Company has granted an
aggregate of 63,000,000 share options under the
Post-IPO Options to eligible participants thereof,
including certain employees and business
partners of the Group (“Grantees”). The Options
entitle the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate
of 63,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each in the share capital of the Company upon
exercise in full.

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding 1
per cent of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee, if
exercised in full, would result in the total number
of shares already issued or to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted
to such grantee (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further
grant exceeding one per cent of the total number
of shares in issue, such further grant must be
separately approved by the shareholders in
general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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(B)

New Share Options

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other persons as the
board of directors may consider appropriate.

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options might be granted under the New
Share Options must not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time and in any event the
total maximum number of shares which might be
issued or issuable upon exercise of all outstanding
options should not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date of
grant. No consideration is required to be paid by
the grantee for the grant of options.

The exercise price of an option must be the
highest of:

o the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

° the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

o the nominal value of the share.

The life of the New Share Options was effective
until 1 June 2026, after which time no further
option will be granted but provisions of the New
Share Options shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects.
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(B) New Share Options (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding 1
per cent of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee, if
exercised in full, would result in the total number
of shares already issued or to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted
to such grantee (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further
grant exceeding one per cent of the total number
of shares in issue, such further grant must be
separately approved by the shareholders in
general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.

No share options were granted under the
New Share Options during the year ended 31
December 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_T—AF+-A=1+—ALFE

The following table disclose details of the options under pre- TREBFAFARE R AR ERERET
initial public offering share options scheme (the “Pre-IPO E([BXRAFEEMBERETE]) REXAH
Options”) and Post-IPO Options held by the grantee and BERBRESEEE CEREZFBERZSE
movements in such holdings: Wz 2
Quistanding ~ Reallocated Quistanding ~ Reallocated Qutstanding
Erercise it upon  Exercised Lapsed it upon  Exercised Lapsed i
Name prce  Llanuay  changeof during during 31 December  change of during during 31 December
Category of participants of scheme Date of grant Evercisable period per share 015 diectoate~ theyear  the year 005 drectorate ~ theyear the year 216
H-%-1% £ H-§-1f Ho§-7f
gk -f-B  f84ER t2R=t-R EEEE4 t2A=1-A
S9EEH iR k] k4 ikE  HAGR A ERAE EMAN  BROR  ENAR  ERRE  EARM  HAGR
(Mo ) HiS (Note )
() A1 (ki)
Directors
£
Thang Janping Pre-1P0 Ogtions 3052008 1420062952015 087 17500 (L7500 - - - - -
T ERORREN 4§k Z55EmA-RE
EhEr TA=1A “5-TERACTAR
PostIPO Options 832008 1420092732018 069 500 (300 = = = = =
EVE e ZEENEMATERE
B ] Z5-/\E=R-tA
PostIPO Options 392009 154201029019 068 875000  (8775000) = = = = =

EROREEL RN “5-ERATRAZE
EhiEr AA=R Z5-hEnAzA

Tang Rongrong PostP0 Options 83208 1542092732018 069 936000 - - - 900 - - - %00
Z2NEMATRAZ

BB ERAREER B

hEe ZA-thA 2 NERoTR
Pos PO Options 392009 154201029209 068 3510000 = = - 3510000 = = - 3510000
ERLFREL TN TE-2EMRTEAE
Bt 1AZR EEnAR
Chen Tat Wing Richard PredPO Opfons 3052005 142006952015 087 58500 = - (00 = = =
REx ERLRRED %80 i
Rl BA=1R
PastP0 Options 1542002732018 069 1872000 = = - 18200 = = - 18200
ERDRRER NERATIRZ
BREH -N\E=R=TtR
PastP0 Options 1542010292019 068 3510000 = = - 3510000 = = - 3510000
ERLRAEL TN “E-ZEMRTAE
Bl NAZR EENAE
Liu Hong PastP0 Options 13112007 1420812112017 140170 = = - 170 = = - 1700
i ERORREK BRE NEmA-RE
BREH T-RtZR EtEARR
Past \POOpms 8308 1542009273208 069 310 = = - B = = - B
ERAREER %) “ERNEMATEAE
BREH £y 3
PastPO0 Optors 39009 1542010292019 068 93600 - - - 9500 - - - 00
ERORAEL 25 “$-REMATARZ
RhEr NAzR ZE-NERAZR
L PastP0 Options 392009 154201029209 068 - %0 = - %0 = = - 300
I ERLFREL e £ k3 :
BB 1AzR

2914120 {10,179,000) - (800 1220010 - - - 12010
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Categoryof prticipants

sRERH

Chief executiv offcer
BRUAE
LiuJun
(apponted on
11 September 2014)
¥t
(W=3-BEART-R
k)

Ermployees of the Group
%8R

Consultants

A

Total

Evercisable at the end of the year
RERTFR

Name
ofscheme

i -

Post-PO Options
ERFRER
BhErd

Pre-1PO Options
EIE
EhEd
PostPO Options
BRLREEL
B
PastIP0 Options
ERORREL
EhEd
PostPO Options
BRARRER
B
PostPO Options
ERDRREH
R
PostPO Options
BNLREEL
B

PastIPO Options
ERORRER
B

Date of grant

G

392009
=0

e

05200
b 1473
1A=1A
1252006
35
il
13112007
g
+-R+R
83208
RR)E
ZR=f/\A
392009
EEE
MAzA
1972013
5k

tAtAR

1972013

“E-ckE
i

AR

Evercisable period

154201029019
“5-3EMATEAZ
“5-1ENACA

142006-95.2015
“EENFRR-AZ
“5-1FRA-TAA
112071152016
CERtE-R-RE
“5-3ERAT-A
1420812112017
“EE)\FRR-AZ
Z5-tE-A1CA
1542009-2732018
“ESNEDATEAZ
“B-NESACHA
154201029019
“E-EFLRTRAZ
ZE-NENACA
1542015187203
“§-BERATIAZ
Z5CEEATIR

A 7203
“F-EFAHERE
IR

Brercise
price
per share

068

0y

069

068

034

034%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE M HRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_T—A"F+-A=1+—ALFE

Qutstanding ~ Reallocated Quistanding ~ Reallocated Qutstanding
it upon  Bxercised Lapsed it upon  Exercised Lapsed it
Llanuary — change of during during 31 December ~ change of during during 31 December
015 diectoate~ theyear  the year 005 drectoae ~ theyear  the year 216
H-%-1§ £ H-E-1% HoE-RE
-f-8  2B4ER TIRET-R EEAEA t2A=t-8
AR AR ERGR O EMAN  BROR  EAR  EMRR  EARM HAGR
(Notei
(i)
936000 (936000) - -
8600 175500 (2581,00) - - -
2574000 (210600 2363400 - - 23340
4087.3% (61620) 3635775 - - (B0 3MIm
201006 85000 (819000) 12667005 - - (DL 1241545
BIBEH BTN (1080) (372686 403701 - - (18%9550) 38487465
17,600,000 (387,000) - 172300 - - (3000000 16913000
4400000 - 45400000 - - - 15400000
14263720 (3078000 (8373,10) 133,866,315 - - (4881000 128968215
133,866,315 128968215
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R
For the year ended 31 December 2016

]z

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

—E-AE+-A=t+-ALEE

In relation to each grantee of the options granted under the Pre-
IPO Options, subject to the vesting period set out below and terMs
of the Pre-IPO Options, an option may be exercised by the grantee
at any time during the period of 10 years commending on the date
of grant, 25% of the options will vest during the period from 1 April
2006 to 31 December 2006 and in each of the three calendar years
from 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2009.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 12 May 2006
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of the options will vest in each of the
four calendar years from 1 January 2007.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 13 November
2007 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of the options will vest in each
of the four years from 1 April 2008.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 28 March 2008
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of the four
year from 15 April 2009.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 3 September
2009 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of
the four year from 15 April 2010.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 19 July 2013
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of the four
year from 15 April 2014.

Zhang Jianping resigned with effect from 30 May 2015. Liu Jun was
appointed as chief executive officer with effect from 11 September
2014 and as Director with effect from 4 June 2015.

Fair value of share options granted to employees determined
at the date of grant is expensed over the vesting period, with
a corresponding adjustment to the Group’s share option
reserve. For the year ended 31 December 2016, an amount of
share option expense of approximately HK$2,904,000 (2015:
HK$2,904,000) has been recognised with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the Group’s share option reserve.
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(ii)

BIRBEERRAREEBRE S EXBREL
BEARAME - ETXABZEBHRERD
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HRER - ZZLF-A-—HE_ZTNAF+=
A=1t—RLE=EBFEFHE25% 2 BRE
5 -

RBBEA AR EERBRETER T RF
ARAT-BERBREZBGEEARAMS - =
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Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management other than the
Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in note 10 during the
year was as follows:

Short-term benefits 52 Bt A
Post-employment benefits BEBR 12 1B T

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the Group’s operating results, responsibilities and
performance of individuals and market trends.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

FTEEEAB 2R
RAEE - MR 10 R ENEEIME AN
IT2EREASMEWT

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
5,060 4,453

283 316

5,343 4,769

EXRIBTBRABZHEAFHERESRKE
BAKEKLEESE  EAMAEZEERER
REMGBEREE -

RABBEBRRIE —F—AFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hre B TS RER M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
disposed of its 60% equity interest in /&5 7 ¥pEE ARl
BPR/AT] Shanghai Dingxi Internet of Things Technology
Limited (“Shanghai Dingxi”) at a total consideration of
RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,000,000)
to the non-controlling shareholder (“Purchaser”) of Shanghai
Dixi (“Disposal”). The consideration will be satisfied by cash,
of which (i) the first instalment of RMB1,200,000 will be
settled at the date of the completion of the Disposal; (ii) the
second instalment of RMB600,000 will be settled on the 90th
day of the date of the completion of the Disposal; and (iii) the
final instalment of RMB2,200,000 will be settled at the third
anniversary date of the date of completion of the Disposal. The
settlement date of final instalment of RMB2,200,000 could be
delayed to the sixth anniversary date of the date of completion
of the Disposal at the discretion of the Purchaser. Fair value of
the consideration receivable is estimated by using discounted
cash flow method with imputed interest rate of 7.345% per
annum at initial recognition and subsequently measured
at amortised cost. As at 31 December 2016, the unsettled
consideration of RMB2,038,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,297,000) (2015: equivalent to approximately
HK$2,560,000) was recorded as consideration receivable in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$2,191,000 was
recognised to profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2015.
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Consideration received:

Cash received
Deferred cash consideration

Total consideration received
and receivable

Analysis of assets and liabilities
over which control was lost:

Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other payables
Bank balances and cash

Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:

Consideration received and receivable
Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal
Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration

Less: Bank balances and cash
disposed of

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hrE BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

BRAE :

EHERE
RS (B

SRR ER R

REEFEBNEERABD

VE R

B 5 MEMENRIA
RITREBEIRE
HEBEFE
HE—RHEARMERE :

U A (E
HEBEFE

HEEEZRSRAFE

RerE
o BB ZIRITESR MRS

RANKEBRERAR

ST AEEH

HK$'000
TR

1,507

2,565

4,072

HK$'000
TAT

15
(106)
1,972

1,881

4,072
(1,881)

2,191

1,507

(1,972)

(465)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R
For the year ended 31 December 2016

HEZ

T-RE+A=+—RALFE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
entered into two capital injection agreements (the “Injection
Agreements”) with the respective shareholders of E5¢
MR &L RERMAR AR Dongguan Xinlubiao
Automatic Equipment Technology Limited (“Dongguan
Xinlubiao”) and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda (shareholders of
Dongguan Xinlubiao and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda collectively
referred as the “Vendors”). Pursuant to the Injection
Agreements, the Group and the Vendors agreed to inject
capital by way of subscribing new registered capital of
Dongguan Xinlubiao and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda. The Group
owned 70% and 78% equity interests in Dongguan Xinlubiao
and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda respectively. The Group will inject
HK$15,021,000 by way of cash and the Vendors will inject
HK$6,075,000, of which, HK$3,115,000 by way of property,
plant and equipment and HK$2,960,000 by way of cash. As
at 31 December 2015, the capital injection from the Group
has been completed and the capital injection from non-
controlling shareholders has not been completed and was
recorded as amounts due from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries. The acquisitions have been accounted for
using the purchase method.
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Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of

acquisitions:

Property, plant and equipment

Inventories

Trade receivables and notes receivables
Other receivables, deposits and

prepayments
Bank balances and cash
Trade and note payables

Other payables, deposits received

and accruals
Bank borrowings
Tax payable

Less: Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries (Note i)

&
FEWE 5 IR M B R 1B
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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R RASY ERREERERE -

HK$’000
TR

507
4,840
16,818

Hitb IR - e RIAR IR

RITHEBRIEAS

BB 2R R TR

HAEMAERSR - 2diRe
N ERT IR

RITIEE

eI

I AN LN
FEAERR SRR IA (Mt 1)

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of trade receivables, notes receivables, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments acquired amounted to
HK$19,250,000 at the date of acquisitions. At the
acquisitions date, none of the contractual cash flows was not

expected to be collected.

No goodwill arose in the acquisitions of Dongguan Xinlubiao

and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda.

Net cash inflow on acquisitions

of the subsidiaries

Bank balances and cash acquired

WM B QR ZFRERA

WRBRTTHAR IR

2,432
5,629
(3,459)

(3,956)
(7,536)
(679)

14,596

(14,596)

RWERH WE2EZREFE  BKRE
B B EIREUR - RERFANRIBZ A FE
HFRLRE XS5 A 19,250,000 7T « AU H
- WERBHISKE 2 AHBRER -

YRR MR R L B BESE

HK$'000
TAT

5,629

RABBEBRRAE —F—AFFH

185



186

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

Notes:

(i) The Vendors are entitled to the distribution of the retained profits
of Dongguan Xinlubiao and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda before the
completion of the capital injection. The aggregated amount of
retained profits of Dongguan Xinlubiao and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda of
HK$14,596,000 was recorded as amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries at the completion date.

(i) In accordance with the Injection Agreements, if the profit of
Dongguan Xinlubiao and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda are able to reach
a pre-determined level, the Group required to a dispose to the
Vendors at most 19% equity interests in Dongguan Xinlubiao and
27% equity interests in Shenzhen Zhuoxuda at a pre-determined
consideration within 3 or 5 years from the completion of the capital
injection (the “Additional Considerations”). In the opinion of the
Directors, the fair value of the Additional Considerations have been
determined as insignificant as at the date of completion of the
capital injection.

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
is HK$3,823,000 attributable to the additional business
generated by Dongguan Xinlubiao and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda.
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 includes
HK$39,443,000 generated from Dongguan Xinlubiao and
Shenzhen Zhuoxuda.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2015,
total group revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015
would have been HK$3,204,335,000, and profit for the year
ended 31 December 2015 would have been HK$69,593,000.
The ‘pro forma’ information is for illustrative purposes only
and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2015, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the purchase
consideration of property, plant and equipment amounting
to HK$564,000 (2015: HK$12,103,000) remained unsettled
and included in other payables, deposits received and
accruals as at 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group and
certain non-controlling shareholders incorporated certain
non-wholly owned subsidiaries of which capital injection from
non-controlling interests amounting to HK$3,129,000 (2015:
HK$2,429,000) remained unsettled and included in amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries as at 31
December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the capital
injection of HK$6,075,000 from non-controlling shareholders
of Dongguan Xinlubiao and Shenzhen Zhuoxuda in respect to
the acquisition of business (as detailed in note 39) remained
unsettled and included in amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debts, which include the
bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated profits. The management reviews the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.
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BHE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—HIFE BS
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HFARCE—ARE+-A=t+—AEMmEN
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

Categories of financial instruments ST EER
2016 2015
—E-XE —ET-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET Tt
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including B R UL BR TR
cash and cash equivalents) (pREEeMReEEER) 824,550 951,963
Available-for-sale investment AR EZIRE 187,448 16,875
Financial liabilities =N
Amortised cost B AR 758,620 1,056,672
Financial risk management objectives and policies MR EENE ZHRBER

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investment, trade and notes receivables and
payables, other receivables and payables, accruals, finance
lease receivables, entrusted loan receivables, amounts due
from/to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an
associate, consideration receivable, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and bank borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 25% (2015: 40%) of the Group’s sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the group entity making the sale, whilst almost 60% (2015:
65%) of costs are denominated in the group entity’s functional
currency.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the major financial assets
and liabilities of the Group denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities
are trade receivables, bank balances, trade payables and
bank borrowings and the amounts are disclosed in notes 27,
28, 29 and 30 respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of reporting period are as follows:

United States Dollars (“USD”) 37T

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency expose should
the need arise.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

HEZ

T-RE+A=+—RALFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
(2015: 10%) increase and decrease in RMB against USD.
10% (2015: 10%) represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary iteMs and foreign currency
forward contracts and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 10% (2015: 10%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates an increase
in post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 10% against USD for
the both years. For a 10% weakening of RMB against USD,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax
profit and the balances below would be negative.

Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding USD
bank balances, receivables, payables and bank borrowings of the

Group at the end of the reporting period.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
notes receivables, other receivables, consideration receivable,
entrusted loan receivables, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 December 2016 and 2015 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In respect of credit risks arising
from amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries and an associate, in the opinion of the Directors,
no significant credit risks are expected as there is no default
repayment history. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group invested into four
(2015: four) entrusted loan agreements (details are set out in
note 21). Under the entrusted loan agreements, the Group
provided funding to loan borrowers through licensed asset
managers and/or licensed banks, which acted as the assets
managers and trustees respectively. The asset managers and
the trustee banks do not bear the credit risk of the entrusted
loan receivables. Before entering into these agreements, the
Group assesses the credit quality of the loan borrowers and
defines the terMs of the loans. The Group has concentration
of risk on the entrusted loan receivables as the loans are
made to three (2015: three) entrusted loan borrowers. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group received
interest income of HK$8,938,000 (2015: HK$12,787,000)
and recognised as other income. In view of the timely interest
repayment, in the opinion of the Directors, the credit risk in
respect to the entrusted loan receivables could be monitored.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s bank balances and cash are deposited with
banks in Hong Kong and the PRC and the Group has limited
the exposure to any single financial institution. In addition, the
Group’s pledged deposits are also deposited with a bank in
the PRC. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure
limited to certain customers. As at 31 December 2016, five
(2015: five) customers amounting to HK$61,792,000 (2015:
HK$86,178,000) comprised approximately 26% (2015:
31%) of the Group’s trade receivables. These customers are
within the same mobile phone technology industry in the PRC,
Singapore and the United Kingdom. The management closely
monitors the subsequent settlement of the customers. In this
regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of bank
borrowings amounted to HK$299,991,000 (2015:
HK$333,520,000). All such bank borrowings included a
repayment on demand clause exercisable at any time by
the relevant banks and are classified as current liabilities.
In accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows amount to HK$300,912,000 (2015:
HK$334,957,000). However, should the relevant banks
exercise their rights to demand immediate repayment, the
principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounting to
HK$299,991,000 (2015: HK$333,520,000) will be repayable
on demand. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the Directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Directors consider that liquidity risk is limited after
considering the future cash flows of the Group in the
foreseeable future, including the repayment schedule of bank
borrowings as discussed above and the short-term liabilities
which are required to be repaid within three months from the
end of the reporting period. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its
entrusted loan receivables.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group is exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
borrowings and bank balances.

The Group currently does not have a cash flow interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management closely monitors
its exposure to future cash flow risk as a result of change on
market interest rate and will consider hedging changes in
market interest rates should the need arise. A 100 basis point
(2015: 100 basis point) change represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) and Loan Prime Rate (“LPR”) arising from the
Group’s variable interest rate bank borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R
For the year ended 31 December 2016

HEZ

T-RE+A=+—RALFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances as a result
of the change of market interest rate is insignificant and thus
variable-rate bank balances are not included in the sensitivity
analysis.

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. If the interest rate of
bank borrowings had been 100 basis point (2015: 100 basis
point) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2016 would decrease/increase by HK$2,016,000 (2015:
HK$2,636,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

Price risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group is exposed to other price
risk through its listed available-for-sale investment. As at 31
December 2015, the Group’s available-for-sale investment
measured at cost less impairment as the fair value could
not be measured reliably, therefore no sensitivity analysis is
presented.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period. The sensitivity analysis included the available-for-sale
investment carried at fair value. If the price of the respective
available-for-sale investment in listed equity securities had
been 10% higher/lower, assuming all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s other comprehensive income (net
of tax) for the year ended 31 December 2016 would increase/
decrease by HK$14,059,000.
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Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

The Group’s available-for-sale investments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating
the fair value, the Group uses market observable data to the
extent it is available.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s available-for-sale
investments are listed equity securities outside Hong Kong of
HK$187,448,000 which was classified as Level 1 of the fair
value hierarchy. The carrying amount of the investments was
measured at fair value based on the quoted bid price in an
active market.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of its
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

n=

=

=

ANERZE-—RAF+-A=+—HR

RRZMBRRIFEWT

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital RAAFERATE/ FRER LA
Name of subsidiary AL/ 2R BETRAR Directly Indirectly
WEARER RERE RA&/2ER E# ]
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-5E ZT-nF ZB-RE ZE3-nF
SIM Technology Group (BVI) 13 October 2004 Ordinary shares 100% 100% - -
Limited BYI US$12,033
“EFINETATZR LERIBER
EERaEE
Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited 17 December 1999 Ordinary shares US$2,002 - - 100% 100%
EEZTTEARAA Samoa LER2002%T
—TANETZATEA
BEDHS
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom? 9 November 1993 Registered and - - 100% 100%
LERERER’ The PRC contributed capftal
—TN=E+—AhA RMB200,000,000
i HRREGER
ARE 200,000,000
Shanghai Simcom? 5 December 2002 Registered and - - 100% 100%
HhEEE The PRC contributed capftal
S i 1S$5,000,000
i HRREGER
5,000000% 7
Shanghai Suncom Logistics Limited 23 September 2003 Registered and - - 100% 100%
LEBRERETARAR! The PRC contributed capital
“EE=EAACTER US$400,000
e P RESER
400,000%7t
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Principal activities

IEER

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding
RER

Manufacturing and sales of handsets and
the intelligent terminals in the PRC
AL EREEFARE S

Design and development of handsefs,
solutions, intelligent terminals and
wireless communication modules in
the PRC

BRI RAETE  BRR
£ B RESERESR

Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group's products and
provides logistics services in the PRC
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Name of subsidiary

i) PG

Simeom International Holdings
Limited

Suncom International Holdings
Limited

SIM Technology HK Limited
RAMRERERAA

Shanghai Speedcomm Technology
Limited"
LERIGRRRIERAR!

Max Vision Limited
AEERAF

Max Vision (Shanghai) Limited”
FRET (L8 ARAA!

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
HREL/HR
RERBE

2 October 2003

BVI
“TE-ETAZH
ABRRES

12 January 2004

BVI

FERE-A12R
BRAFS

n
:e

s

21 April 2004

Hong Kong
ZEEMEmAC=T-A
Bk

16 November 2005

The PRC
ZZRRET-A1E
e

17 September 2003
Hong Kong
ZZRZENATLA
Bk

8 December 2003

The PRC
ZEESETCANA
e
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Proportion of nominal value of

Issued and fully paid up share capitall registered capital

share capital/ held by the Company
registered capital ALRFRRAEE/ARERZ LA
BEIRME Directly Indirectly
A/ ERER E# B
2016 2015 2016 2015
IB-RE “E-0F ZB-RF CT-1f
Ordinary share US$1 - - 100% 100%
LaR1%T
Ordinary share US$1 - - 100% 100%
LaR1%ET
Ordinary share HK$1 - - 100% 100%
LER1%T
Registered and - - 100% 100%
contributed capital
RMB7,500,000
i RESER
ARE7500,0007C
Ordinary shares HK$2 - - 100% 100%
LakoET
Registered and - - 100% 100%
contributed capital
US$200,000
i REAER
200,000%7

Principal activities

IEER

Investment holding

RARR

Investment holding
RERR

Provision of administrative services in
Hong Kong
REARBRITIIR

Design and development of handsefs,
solutions, intelligent terminals and
wireless communication modules in
the PRC

BN SR RAETE  BAS
£ BRI RERENER

[nvestment holding

REER

Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group” s products
and provides logistics services in the
PRC

RAERE - 5Me - HEREEALE
EmRaREmRRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RaMBmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

Name of subsidiary

HEAFER

Simcom Wireless!
TEES!

Shanghai SIM Technology Limited”

B L) BRAT)

Shanghai Simcom Electronic
Limited"
HEEEETERAR

Shenyang SIM Technology Limited?

FAHR (IR BRAR?

Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited

(‘SYRE'?
EER (15 ARAF

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
HREL/ER
RERBES

31 October 2006

The PRC
“ETEAZ-A
e

2 August 2006

The PRC
ZE55N\AZA
e

21 November 2006

The PRC
ZZENET-AZT-H
e

25 Qctober 2007

The PRC
“ERtETAZTRA
HE

8 November 2007

The PRC
ZEtET-ANR
HE
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Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
EERAR

A/ ER

Registered and
contributed capital
US$1,000,000

A REGEA
1,000000%7

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB40,000,000

AR EHER
AR40,000,00070

Registered and
contributed capital
US$200,000

A REGEA
200000%T

Registered and
contributed capital
US$10,000,000

AR EGER
10,000,000%7

Registered and
contributed capital
US$13,100,000

AR EGER
13,100,000%7

ZB-AF

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital

held by the Company
KAARFERARE/EREAZILH
Directly Indirectly
E# [

2016 2015 2016 2015
“Z-1F ZB-AE _3-1%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 60% 60%

Principal activities

IBER

Design and development of wireless
communication modules in the PRC

ERE SR RSB ARER

Investment holding of land use rights in
the PRC
RPEZHHERE KRR

Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group” s products
and provides logistics services in the
PRC

AR e HEREEALE
EmRREmRE

Investment holding of land use rights in
the PRC
IARERZ TR RARR

Properties development in PRC

ERENENRER



Name of subsidiary

i) PG

Shenyang SIM Simcom*
MERAAER

Shenzhen Simcom Technology
Limited*
MIFRERRERAT

Simeom Holdings HK Limited
EAERESGRAA

Shanghai iLove Limited"
PSSR BNERAR!

Shanghai Xinkang Electronic
Technology Limited ¢
HEERETHEARAR!

Goldsey Limited
BHERAT

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
HREL/ R
RERBE

24 July 2008

The PRC
“ERNELAZTER
R

28 August 2008

The PRC
“ZE\ENA=TNR
hE

22 September 2008
Hong Kong
ZZE\ENAZTZA
B

27 February 2009

The PRC
“ERAE-A-H4A
i

5 January 2009

The PRC

L e
i

31 January 2008

Hong Kong
ZEEN\E-A=1-H
Bk

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital

B/ dfEs
2016
ENF

Registered and =
contributed capital
RMB30,000,000

HMRESER
AR30,000,0007

Registered and =

contributed capital
RMB5,000,000

A REHER
AR5,0000007C

Ordinary share -

HKS1
EARIAT

Registered and -

contributed capital

US$3,000,000
AMRELER

3,000,000

Registered and -

contributed capital

RMB20,000,000
AMRELER

AR 20,000,007

Ordinary shares -

HK$18,000,000
L3R 18,000,000
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Proportion of nominal value of
share capitall registered capital
held by the Company
KARFERARE/EREA LA
BETRME Directly

Indirectly

2016
Z8-RE

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

5
2015
—E-1f

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

IEER

Design and development of handsets and
solutions and wireless communication
modules in the PRC

PR ER T RRETREERAR
REGERRS

Design and development of wireless
communication modules in the PRC

EREERT AR EGRRER

Investment holding

RABR

Investment holding

RABR

Design and development of wireless
communication modules in the PRC
tpElEE G R

Investment holding

RAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

Proportion of nominal value of

200

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital ARARBRAEE/SHRER LA
Name of subsidiary HRAYL/ 2R BERTRME Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEAR AR RERBES A/ ERER E# 3 IBER
2016 2015 2016 2015
IB-RE “E-0F ZB-RF CT-1f
Smartwireless Technology Limited 13 February 2007 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Design and development of handses,
FRERRENHARAR! The PRC contributed capital solutions and intelligent terminals in
“EEtECAt=R RMB20,500,000 the PRC
hE A REGEAR RPEFTRAETR  BRARR
ARE20,500,0007 Bt
Shanghai Mabile Phone Public 21 December 2009 Registered and - - 87.5% 87.5% Design and development of handsets,
Testing Platform Co., Ltd.* The PRC contributed capital solutions and intelligent terminals in
PEFEAHALRETEER  ZTEASTZAZT-H  RMB20,000000 the PRC
Arp! i A REGER RPEFRAETR  BRARR
ARE20,000,0007 Bitin
Taizhou SIM Real Estate Limited® 7 March 2013 Registered and - - 100% 100% Properties development in the PRC
FNBAEEERAR? The PRC contributed capital EREENEER
“Z-=£-A+A RMB120,000,000
hE A REGEAR
ARE120,000,0007C
Jiangsu Chenri Investment Limited* 24 April 2013 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
IHRARERRAT! The PRC contributed capital RERR
“E-=¥WA-1REA RMB50,000,000
hE A REHER
ARE50,000,0007
Jiangsu Yunmao Internet of Things 7 June 2013 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Development of internet of things
Technology Limited* The PRC contributed capital equipment
THERIMENEERARY  ZT-ZEXALE RMB10,000,000 RENEERE
hE RPEE T
ARE10,000,0007
Shanghai Wide-Top Financial 17 July 2013 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Finance lease service in the PRC
Leasing Co, Ltd. ! The PRC contributed capital ERRRERERERE
HERSBEREERAR!  ZE-ZELATHE RMB5,000,000
ke A REHER
ARE5,000,0007

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016



Name of subsidiary

i) PR

Jiangsu Hangjin Electronic
Technology Limited®
TEMFEFRRERAD:

Alpha Apex Limited

Wuxi Simeom 0T Limited*
FERMBERK (&5)
BRAF"

Shanhgai Boshen Vending Machine
Limited*
LERREHEERERDA

Shanghai Yunhao Trading Limited*
LEERESERAR!

Shanghai Yunmao 0T Limited"
LEEEYBANRERAR!

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
HREL/ R
RERBE

9 July 2013

The PRC
“E-ZEEANA
hEl

26 October 2012

Samoa
2 S |
EEGHS

17 January 2011

The PRC
“F——F-ATtA
hE

5 December 2014

The PRC
“Z-mETZARA
e

1 September 2014
The PRC
“E-mEAA-H
el

13 November 2014

The PRC
ZE-MET-ATZA
el

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BECGIE

R4 /ER

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB30,000,000

HMRELER
AR%30,000,0007

Registered and
contributed capital
USD§1

A REAER1ET

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB5,000

HRESER
ARE50007

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB10,000,000

AREAEAARY
10,000,007

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB38,000,000

AREAEAARY
38,000,007

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB10,000,000

AREAEAARY
10,000,007

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital

A MmN

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—R"FITA=1+—HLFE

held by the Company
KARFERARE/ERERZILH
Directly Indirectly
E# [
2016 2015 2016 2015
IB-RE “E-0F ZB-RF CT-1f
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - - 100%
(Note)
Wiz
- - 100% 100%
- - 98.7% 98.7%
- - 100% 100%

Principal activities

IEER

Development of internet of things
equipment

REMRERE

Investment holding

RAAR

Development of internet of things
equipment

FRBERE

Finance lease service and trading of
snacks in the PRC

e HEERERE R
22885

Procurement and trading of snacks in the
PRC

ERENSTRIBRES

Trading of snacks in the PRC
EPENFRRES

RANMKEBRERAR —F AFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fre B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

202

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capitall registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital RAAFERATE/ FRER LA
Name of subsidiary HRAL/ R ERTRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEARAH RERS B&/sfEs B ] IERH
2016 2015 2016 2015
Z2-RE ZE-0F ZB-RF CEIf
Shenyang Zhonghong Intel-Tech 28 October 2014 Registered and - - 75% 75% - Development of internet of things
Limited* The PRC contributed capital equipment
MBRLEENEERAR  ZT-BETAZTAR  RMB30,000000 RENRAERE
il HRESER
ARE30,000,0007
Shanghai Simcom System Limited* 17 March 2014 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Building design and construction of smart
ARBERARER(LE) The PRC contributed capiel home
BRAF ZE-MEZATtA RMB20,000 Eaptateds
e HMRESER
ARE200007T
Shenzhen Zhouxunda Technology 4 January 2015 Registered and - - 78% 78% - Development of automated test
Development Co., Limited* The PRC contributed capital equipment and software
MIMERENRERERAR —E-1F-ANA RMB7,000,000 REBBRARERRN
il HRESER
ARE7,000,0007
Hangzhou Kawo Automation 13 February 2015 Registered and - - 80% 80%  Development of automated test
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC contributed capital equipment
AMRREBLREERARY  —F-RECA+=H RMB3,750,000 REEDRARE
il HMRESER
ARE3750,0007
(Guandong Chentuo Robot 11 March 2015 Registered and - - 80% 80%  Development of automated test
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC contributed capital equipment
ERRAKSEAMBERAA  ZT-RE=At-H RMB6,606,000 REBBRIRE
e HRESER
ARE6,606,0007

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016

Proportion of nominal value of



Name of subsidiary

i) P

Dongguan Xinlubiao Automation
Equipment Technology Co.,
Limited*

REMMAE AR ERITER

G

Shenyang Jingringcheng Automation

Technology Co., Limited”
TEREIRDRIERAR?

Hefel Yunhao Trade Co., Limited*
ARERESERAR!

Hangzhou Yunyou Trade Co.,
Limited*
NEERSERAR

Shenzhen Yunding Vending
Operators Co., Limited

MIMELEHEERELAR
AR

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
HRAL/ 2R
AR

14 May 2015

The PRC
“Z-RFRATEA
o

21 August 2015
The PRC
~2-BF\A=10A
o

19 December 2014

The PRC
ZZ-METZATAR
el

3 November 2015

The PRC
“2-RF+-A=A
&

16 January 2015

The PRC
“Z-75-A15A
e

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
ERTRAR

A/ ERER

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB10,000,000

HMRESER
AR 10,000,0007

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB5,059,000

HMREHER
ARE5,059,0007

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB1,200,000

HMRESER
ARE1,200,0007

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB2,000,000

HMRESER
AR 2,000,0007

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB9,501,000

HMRESER
ARE9,501,0007

Z2-RE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Proportion of nominal value of
share capitall registered capital
held by the Company
ALRFRRAEE/ SRERZ LA
Directly Indirectly
E# [

2016 2015 2016
ZE-xE %

—2-1%

- - 70%

- - 60%

- - 80%

- - 51%

- - 70%

e MIEHMANE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FTA=1+—HLFE

2015

ik

70%

60%

80%

51%

51%

Principal activities

IBER

Development of automated test
equipment

FREDRARE

Development of automated test
equipment

FREDRARE

Trading of snacks in the PRC
ErEEERES

Trading of snacks in the PRC
fhEfEERES

Trading of snacks in the PRC
ErEEERES

BRANKEBRERAR —F AFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fre B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
Narme of subsidiary R/ R
HELIER RERS
Shanghai Bachen Intelligent 14 October 2015
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC
LEEREERIERARY  —T-RETATEA
e
Shanghai Jizhi Automation 29 September 2014
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC
DESRESMRERAT  —T-BEAAZTAR
e
Shanghai Pami Intelligent 14 March 2016
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC
LEEREERREARAT ZE- FZRTEA
el
(Guangdong Chengshida Automation 21 April 2016
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC
ERREEEDMHHERLA 2 EMA-T-A
P
Wuhan Yunbang Supply Chain 30 June 2016

Management Co., Limited* The PRC
REZARERERERAA 2 E A=TH
ki

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
ERTRAR
BA/RER

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB5,500,000

HRESER
ARE5,500,0007

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB5,000,000

HRESER
ARE5,000,0007

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB10,000,000

HRESER
ARE10,000,0007

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB10,000,000

HMRESER
ARE10,000,0007

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB2,000,000

HRESER
ARE2,000,0007

Proportion of nominal value of
share capitall registered capital
held by the Company
ALRMERAEE/ARERZ LA
Directly Indirectly
E# ]

2016 005 2006 2015
SEaF ZFRF CEaF CFER

- - 100% 100%

- - 100% 100%

- - 100% -

- - 100% -

- - 51% -

Principal activities

IBER

Trading of snacks in the PRC
ErEEERES

Development ofinternet of tings
equipment

REMRERE

Development of automated test
equipment

REEBLRARE

Development of automated test
equipment

REEBLRARE

Trading of snacks in the PRC
EPEETRES



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hre BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"FTA=1+—HLFE

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capitall registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital ARAFERATE/ FRER2 LA
Name of subsidiary HRAL/ R ERTRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
KEARER AR A/ RER E# 3 IBER
2016 2015 2016 2015
I2-RE “Z-0F ZB-RF CE0F
Ningbo Yunjing Supply Chain 24 June 2016 Registered and - - 51% ~Trading of snacks in the PRC
Management Co., Limited The PRC contributed capital fThEfEERES
ERERMERERERAR'  ZE-EAAZTEA RMB2000000
" HRESER
AR 2,000,000
Fujiansheng Yunxiang Supply Chain 3 August 2016 Registered and - - 51% - Trading of snacks in the PRC
Management Co., Limited The PRC contributed capital fhEfEERES
REAEMEEERERAR —T-EN\AZH RMB10,000,000
E HRESER
AR10,000,0007
Shijiazhuang Yunhao Supply Chain 30 August 2016 Registered and - - 51% ~Trading of snacks in the PRC
Management Co., Limited The PRC contributed capital fhEfEERES
RFHERMERERARAR —T—nEN\AT/\A RMB2,000,000
" HRESER
AR 2,000,007
1 Wholly foreign owned enterprises (“WFOE”) registered in the PRC. 2 ERBEFMZINEEERE -
2 Sino-foreign equity joint venture registered in the PRC. 8 FEREFMRZRINEERE -
g Re-investment in WFOE registered in the PRC. 8 BMRENEREFMZINTBERE -
4 Domestic Company registered in the PRC. 4 EFEFRz2RERE -

Note: The company was deregistered at 29 September 2016.

Hiet : ZARRZFE—RFNAZTABBUHEM °

BRANKEBRERAR —F AFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at A EE AT B B A R AN [E AR S A F E AR

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

i A (R A B E S o

A majority of these subsidiaries operate in sale of handsets, ZEMBRARIARBDNEEHETH  BAFTR
solutions, and intelligent terminals, sale of wireless MEgeR - HEEGRAER MEEE -
communication modules, property development, internet of VB REES R SRR - ZEWBRARZ
things business and intelligent manufacturing business. The FEEBHIIAT

principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as

follows:

Principal place of

Principal activities of business Number of subsidiaries
FEXEWR FTEEEME Mg AR E
2016 2015
—B-KRE —E-AF
Sale of handsets, solutions and
intelligent terminals PRC 7 8
HEFH - BAT R R RN R
Sale of display modules PRC - 1
HERRELR H
Sale of wireless communication modules PRC 3 4
THE MARBIRL H
Property development PRC 2 2
MEER H
Internet of things business PRC 14 9
Pugs 48 H
Intelligent manufacturing business PRC 10 9
BREEBEET H
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TREIAEBREFHBEEAFERER 2
subsidiaries of the Group that has material non-controlling IF2EWBAR :

interests:

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ire BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

Place of Proportion of
incorporation ownership interests (Loss) profit
and principal and voting rights held by allocated to Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiaries place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests controlling interests
FERBHMS FREFERER
WEARAE HRAIRIEEENY BRREERREELH (BR)EH ZitFERER
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

“E-RE 0 ZE-RF 0 ZE-XE B ZE-RE ZE-1E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tir TET Fhr

SYRE PRC 40% 40% (2,697) 235 69,724 76,290
FHER e
Individually immaterial subsidiaries

with non-controlling interests 36,077 26,315

EEFEREL BRI EANEAR
105,801 102,605

Summarised financial information for the years ended REBEEEEAFERES CHBRARTRER
31 December 2016 and 2015 in respect of the Group’s TERERZET-RFTA=1T—HILF
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is EZMBERBENT o TXATE 2B ER
set out below. The summarised financial information below BE T ARIEL EEAA R -

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

SYRE
ERE%
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Non-current assets EMBEE 216 250
Current assets MENEE 295,614 301,484
Current liabilities mENBE (121,520) (111,009)
Total equity R ARER 174,310 190,725
Revenue WA 93,123 59,042
Expenses 53 (99,865) (58,455)
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (B1R) & (6,742) 587
Other comprehensive expense AEEHMEEMR
for the year (9,673) (11,424)
Total comprehensive expense AFEEEFAY A
for the year (16,415) (10,837)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to N3l IARE(G A ERE (E518 ) 3% F
— the owners of SYRE -RABECHEAA (4,045) 352
— non-controlling interests of SYRE - EABE 2 TR (2,697) 235
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (E518) 5 (6,742) 587
Other comprehensive expense TS EEERNFEEMEEMY
for the year attributable to (5,804) (6,854)
— non-controlling interests of SYRE - BB FE 2 TR ER (3,869) (4,570)
Other comprehensive expense AEEHMEEAS
for the year (9,673) (11,424)
Total comprehensive expense TYSEREAFEEEE
for the year attributable to 4858
— the owners of SYRE -RABEEZHEEA (9,849) (6,502)
— non-controlling interests of SYRE - BB X 2 TR (6,566) (4,335)
Total comprehensive expense AFE2EMAL AR
for the year (16,415) (10,837)
Net cash outflow used in operating R TRENIR ST FER
activities (12,260) (31,225)
Net cash inflow from (outflow used in) &EEERSHRA CREFTR) T8
from investing activities 38 (18)
Net cash outflow used in financing MEEIRS RLEEE
activities (6,886) (6,004)
Net cash outflow RE ML FEE (19,108) (37,247)
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Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets
Other receivables
Bank balances

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other payables and accruals

Net current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

FRBEE
RSB AR ZIRE
JE LB 8 X R 3RIR

RBEE
H b el IR
RITHESR

RBAE
AN EYNCIE
H At B AR R 50R

RBEEFE
HEERRBAE
BEXR#E

N

G4

S

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MmN

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—EB—-REF —E—RHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
118,401 118,401
1,101,519 1,074,295
1,219,920 1,192,696
614 623

393 140
1,007 763

106 106

1,751 1,190
1,857 1,296
(850) (E88)
1,219,070 1,192,163
255,790 255,790
963,280 936,373
1,219,070 1,192,163

RABBEBRRIE —F—AFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fre B SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE

Movement in the Company’s reserves

At 1 January 2015

Gain and total comprehensive
income for the year

Share options lapsed

Issue of new shares upon
exercising of share options

Transfer upon exercise of
share options

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments

At 31 December 2015

(Gain and total comprehensive
income for the year

Share options lapsed

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments

At 31 December 2016

WZE—1F
—-A-A

AEEWHEREE
st

BRERN

TR R 2T
i)

BT REmER

FERURIERE 2
RIAR

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2016

AARREEE
Capital Share

Share  redemption option Special  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RiEE EXBRERE  BRERE R ZitER @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAR ThR ThR ThR ThR Thx
831,188 2,282 32,374 193,848 (149,371) 910,321
- - - - 23,047 23,047
= = (4,316) = 4316 -
101 - - - - 101
74 - (74) = = =
- - 2,904 - - 2,904
831,363 2,282 30,888 193,848 (122,008) 936,373
- - - - 24,003 24,003
- - (4,280) = 4,280 -
- - 2,904 - - 2,904
831,363 2,282 29,512 193,848 (93,725) 963,280




RESULTS
Revenue

(Loss) profit before taxation
Tax credit (charge)

(Loss) profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

£ |
WA

BRHAD (518 A
BIRGTA (F1BR)

AER (BR)EM

AT LS :
KREEAA
SRS

EERAME
REE

RafE

ARAEEA
iy e
IR

Financial Summary

& 45z oh
MRRE
For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1+-HLEE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—E-CF —T-=F T “T-hF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TET TET THET TET
2,925,316 1,716,079 2,352,353 3,197,289 2,724,390
(95,407) (266,178) 50,175 89,650 96,500
(1,492) 13,797 (16,029) (19,775) (22,067)
(96,899) (252,381) 34,146 69,875 74,433
(96,671) (239,198) 23,967 64,645 77,278
(228) (13,183) 10,179 5,230 (2,845)
(96,899) (252,381) 34,146 69,875 74,433
As at 31 December
Rt=A=+-8
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—ECf =% —EmE —T-1F ZE-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT AT AT THET TERT
3,463,334 2,858,620 3,074,583 3,396,089 3,479,800
(1,291,461) (899,572) (1,076,129) (1,397,705) (1,347,253)
2,171,873 1,959,048 1,998,454 1,998,384 2,132,547
2,082,239 1,880,947 1,912,011 1,895,779 2,026,746
89,634 78,101 86,443 102,605 105,801
2,171,873 1,959,048 1,998,454 1,998,384 2,132,547

RABBEBRRAE —F—AFFH
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Hang Seng Bank Limited

Bank of Communications

Shanghai Pudong Development
Bank

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Unit 2908, 29th Floor,
248 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Butterfield Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited
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